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Build and Rebuild

Farhan Siki
Synthetic enamel on canvas
140 x 110 cm
Build and Rebuild, the top winner of the 2022 UOB Painting of the Year (Indonesia) competition, Established Artist Category, is the design inspiration
for this year's Annual Report. The artwork depicts the scene of reconstruction work to advance a nation despite the uncertain future.

Through the images of people laying bricks, working on cement mixers and climbing up and down the scaffolding, we see the building of homes,
places of work and public facilities. This is a reflection of the fast development of our home region, where UOB strives to build a brighter future for

the people and businesses in ASEAN.

As the leading patron of the arts in Asia, UOB believes in the vital role of art in connecting communities. The UOB Painting of the Year competition,
the Bank’s flagship art programme now in its 427 year, is currently held across five Southeast Asian markets where UOB has a deep presence.
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UOB is a leading bank in Asia.
Operating through its head office in
Singapore and banking subsidiaries in
China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand
and Vietnam, UOB has a global
network of around 500 offices in

19 countries and territories in Asia
Pacific, Europe and North America.

Since its incorporation in 1935, UOB has grown organically
and through a series of strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is
rated among the world's top banks: Aa1 by Moody's Investors
Service and AA- by both S&P Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings.

For nearly nine decades, UOB has adopted a customer-centric
approach to create long-term value by staying relevant through
its enterprising spirit and doing right by its customers. UOB
is focused on building the future of ASEAN - for the people
and businesses within, and connecting with, ASEAN.

UOB connects businesses to opportunities in the region
with its unparalleled regional footprint and leverages data
and insights to innovate and create personalised banking
experiences and solutions catering to each customer’s unique
needs and evolving preferences.

UOB is also committed to help businesses forge a sustainable
future, by fostering social inclusiveness, creating positive
environmental impact and pursuing economic progress. UOB
believes in being a responsible financial services provider.
The Bank is steadfast in its support of support of art, children
and education, and doing right by our communities and
stakeholders.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
through ourthree core business segments - Group Retail, Group
Wholesale Banking and Group Global Markets. The range of
services cover its customers’ needs across consumer banking,

. = -—-a;.-____. ;
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L Ty bl L B 1-_.-_"-]1..-_ " Wﬁﬁuhmm"?

private banking, business banking, commercial banking,
corporate banking and institutional banking. Through its
subsidiaries, UOB also provides asset management, private
equity fund management and insurance services, among
others.
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Where We Operate

~50

RERITEILX. BN EMXBELI500K 51T RIMEL,
branches and offices in Asia Pacific, Europe and North
America.
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited L

(UOB China) is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of United Overseas Bank

Limited (UOB), a leading bank in ,
Asia. UOB China is headquartered in ' g,
Shanghai and was incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China on 18 : A —
December 2007. : _ , : —_——
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From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we
have grown our network to 16 branches and sub-branches
in major Chinese cities. i

UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB China et

by RMB2.5 billion in 2015 followed by another capital = _j
injection of RMB2 billion in 2021. UOB China's current

registered capital is RMB7.5 billion and the Bank is rated

A+ with a stable outlook by Fitch Ratings and AAA with a

stable outlook by China Cheng Xin International. o

We believe in being a responsible financial services R
provider and we are committed to making a difference _— ""“-
in the lives of our stakeholders and in the communities in L

which we operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping our
customers manage their finances wisely and to grow their i
businesses, UOB China is steadfast in our support of social e .
development, particularly in the areas of art, children and o \
education. ; = il

KT (RE) BIRAT) 20236 IR R, ‘Q"S:% F 8 8 5sinso :
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I Our Corporate Milestones

ARHiE

1984  1984s - 1999s

1984
KRERITICRDELR LI
Opens Beijing Office

e
e S Y L

1985
KRERITEIIFITERF L
Opens Xiamen Branch

™

1993
RERITRINDITERF AL
Opens Shenzhen Branch

RERITTMBITIEX T
Opens Guangzhou Branch

1999
RERIT EBDITERF UL
Opens Shanghai Branch

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

2002
KRERITIRDITERF UL
Opens Beijing Branch

2006
RERITR A LEE—FKIRHA
B IREEAWE MR ILERT
1t bank from Southeast Asia
authorised to settle capital
accounts in Shanghai

REERITRER D TTIE AL
Opens Chengdu Branch

VERSEA

2007
KREESRITILPAITIETFF L
Opens Shenyang Branch

b —

RERITHEF20075F12818
B EM LI

UOB China incorporated on
18 December 2007

2008
ARERITREERF W

UOB China officially commences
business

RERTHERET ARTEE W SIER
Receives a retail renminbi (RMB) licence

2009
RERTHPERENDTEXFL

Opens Tianjin Branch

2011

KEBITHERET LEBEERZMET
NEERERFERESE

Receives Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE)
trading membership

2012
RERTHEREBERERANBKREE
(@Dl &

Awarded a Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investors license

RERITHENINSITEXF L
Opens Hangzhou Branch

KIERITHERR T RITIE RS IBNER,
R AEHEIR G IO RIMERITZ—
Becomes one of the four foreign
banks to participate in bullion trading
on SGE's platforms

2013

ARERITHEMRAE M EFEIRS M
EERHEREBNINERITZ—

One of the first foreign banks to obtain
a local mutual fund license in China

KREERTHEIRY FBE AKX =T
Opens Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch

KIERITHEE#HRRBRITRIINCHIAA
IS SE A=k G A

Becomes one of the first market makers
for direct trading between RMB and
Singapore Dollar

KERITHERARITEESENKZE
WHEERNIIERITZ—

Obtains a trial market maker license for
interbank gold bilateral transactions

KERITHEERDITERF L
Opens Chongging Branch

RERITHREGINFITEF L
Opens Suzhou Branch

LRl el FNOEREETTREEN

KEERITRRERITHEILE251Z
UOB increased the registered capital of
UOB China by RMB2.5 billion

KERITHEIREG T ESHHORITEBOFR]
Granted an administrative licence for
the import and export of gold

KERITHERRADITER L
Opens Kunming Branch

KRERITHERAEMARTN RKEIE
REMHEZzZ—

Becomes one of the first market makers
for direct trading between the RMB and
the Thai Baht

ARERITHERINEL T T H=FHHNEH
R XRIBRTETIIEREHARBIERITAR
TTRVREA “issl” &Rt

Prices a three-year onshore RMB Financial
bond through the China interbank market
and the Bond Connect scheme (BCS),
which is the first onshore financial bond
issued by a Southeast Asian bank through
the BCS

KRERITHELSIAE—
KERITREFRE
UOB Plaza opens

KERITHFER A LBRERZMEZR
SMEIRITR R

3 foreign bank member of the Shanghai
Futures Exchange

KERITHPERNBERRKE LBRENK
RERAIN B ERIANG

1st foreign bank to become the Fixing
Member of the SGE's Shanghai Silver
Benchmark Price Trading

KRERITHERUSITERF L
Opens Zhongshan Branch

AERTHPERABREARTRSZMER
FERILTFEEHIINERITSR

1st foreign bank member of the Cross-
border RMB Trade Finance Asset Transfer
Platform

KREERITHEREFRERITEIINCHIZAD
HA R AN S IR T

Becomes RMB/FX Spot/Forward/Swap/
Option Trial Market Maker

AKERTHPERAEHARTENE AL
BHiEMHERTZ—

One of the first banks to be a direct market
maker for RMB against Indonesian Rupiah

KRERITEAAAERITHEIGEE201Z
UOB completes a capital increase by
RMB?2 billion

REFRITHERANEZEFFE (LB B
R 2B X I XIMERIT

15t foreign bank to set presence in the
Lingang Special Area of the China
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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I Financial Highlights

FEWSER

2023 2022 Increase
(Decrease)
ZEMR Operating result AR+t RMB'000 %
EWRANETT Total operating income 1,887,133 1,778,561 6.1
ENE= Total operating expenses 1,244,535 1,107,938 12.3
RFEREIRK Impairment charges 160,610 29,891 437.3
AR IVE| Profit before tax 481,162 640,401 (24.9)
BFEfR Balance sheet AEK™TF 7T RMB'000 %
BRI Total assets 82,280,883 77,203,355 6.6
W SSHEAR Financial indicators % % %
e NP ES Return on equity 3.6 5.8 (2.2)
BRFEFE=E Return on average total assets 0.5 0.7 (0.2)
52NN Expenses/income ratio 65.0 61.4 36
FEBERBEEBANLLZEAN Net fee and commission income/ 8.4 10.2 (1.8)
total operating income

FHIL Loan-to-deposit ratio 83.5 95.4 (11.9)
M Leverage ratio 9.5 9.7 (0.2)
TREmE Non-performing loan ratio 0.7 0.6 0.1
REBEX Non-performing loan coverage ratio 339.5 4249 (85.4)
IRIR R Provision-to-loan ratio 2.5 2.5 -
REh AR Liquidity matching ratio 134.4 129.8 46
BB B = High-quality liquid asset adequacy ratio 205.4 194.8 10.6
RAFE B EIEIR Capital adequacy ratio

ZOD—RABERTRE Core Tier 1 CAR 16.3 16.8 (0.5)

—RAAFRE Tier 1 CAR 16.3 16.8 (0.5)

RAEFTREER Total CAR 18.9 19.6 (0.7)

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Chairman’s Statement I

EERKNH

Em (RIS, ER) RS FFERIMANKIT RBFKIR X IR FmiE
LT —TEREEAZLRE, Big I ERNSR. CiREER
1, REEREFELHBFEREZAZR, MEANVBENKILE
W, TERBHHE.

XWENKRERITHAKLERALHREBZE, HNERE
FERAZFHNERZH, HNNBRIZIL T, BITHER
SRR, FESRRER BN SIRNMNGE, 5
B HEERIFHIRE,

S|P E-ARBEEKEEIWS

2023F 2REFRAEBEERSM AT, RERIEKE
18200, ThRE Z BRI IERT,

REENEMFRBIFHEN, PELFNARS T —ERHIE.
PEABRSFUERHESRNES, W ESFNFENK
RIRZ U EEERES B ERERBZEBRUARX
R 5, WLE RAH IR E,

20245, FA IR T ERERHM LRI F40 N EkK I2ES, M
FALRIRILE—TDELTG, R RERXEFREIFRN, B2
WS ENE, IEHES5 T RENEF A BMPET IV AIERR
Lz, SR T ERMEFRFERRK.

BOH, MEAERTERAEENRBERRITHERRTS B
i, WIT RS R P E—ARBEERKEB S, RUSER
ESAHER, 5% A BIFKFHBRERE, 5 R THHXEITHIT
YR TE A

“Build and Rebuild" is the title of the painting on the cover of this
year's Annual Report. It depicts construction, de-construction
and rebuilding following unprecedented changes. It is a
reminder that while the world has gone through an intense
period of change in the past few years, we also have the
capacity to transform and to regenerate.

This has been the case for UOB. We have emerged stronger
and better since the pandemic. Amid the sea of changes,
we remain steadfast in our commitment to doing right by
our customers. We are progressively building our scale and
franchise in ASEAN as we build a brighter future together.

Championing China-ASEAN connectivity

In 2023, the global economy faced uncertainties and
challenges, as global economic activity moderated on the
back of slower demand.

While domestic demand remained challenging, China's
economy has demonstrated resilience. China and ASEAN
remained as each other's largest trading partner for the
fourth year. With Chinese businesses recalibrating their value
chains between China and ASEAN, economic ties have grown
even stronger.

In 2024, UOB China is celebrating our 40th anniversary.
Reflecting on the journey since the establishment of our
first representative office in Beijing, we have witnessed
the country’s rapid economic development and the global
expansion of Chinese companies. In tandem with China'’s
reform and opening up, we have grown together with our
colleagues, clients and partners.

We will continue to champion China-ASEAN connectivity
as we set our sights on becoming the most preferred bank
in Southeast Asia. We will deepen our commitment to help
businesses connect with and within ASEAN, and to do right
by our customers, communities and the environment.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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I Chairman’s Statement

EERKNH

S FREHE

2023%F, HITEWRNRLLIE KT 61%EARM18.9127T,
BRn TR R A X W@ EBIE K. ZEIEARERK
BFr LA, 2023F R E5FENART3.6127T, AL
TBE27.9%0

R TREBRHREFRN, RTIRZREA XK mF LG K
26.5%EANK™5.2127T,

BT HELL EA12.3%EARMI2.4127T, EBHT RIS
MRV SHEX BB L. B THRE T —RRBE /S KT LR
TR ARE N, ERRERK L1327,

2023 R, WRAMREANARM3I78.4127%, ZRARNART
453 71270 HITH A RERE RIF, FREREN0.7%.

B 1E2023F128318, HITRIFRGFBUREIIEK T, RepE T
FERMMABUREME R~ TREER D 5 79134.4%H205.4%, T8
P RMEEER,

BITORO—RAETERNEALTTERD 517916.3%]
18.9%, ZETREEEE R,

B8, KERTHENSGEM S KL IREZA+LUNFIREAAA
&, WWERRENIRE,

BhEEFFIE K, By HEXE&

BBNARTESRIT— IR LRI, I L BRIMaRILSS
RMIRHE RS HA 1T UWHTTICRRMNAHIHEN, 9K
1RERSEE BN TR AL W3S B By 73R 1R, BRI KIS,

RIRRINRS 2 —HESTHARTRAS R, 20234,
RIEA R/ EDE A AV R S M A RAT MO A IR, AT
4 1y M 0P E B EN B MBS A A St — R A ES
=, 2RI ESNE AT, ENCEHER
8], A RSN A S BE, I T WAARTAR &
ORI AR (e-CNY) B P IR 22, BN 38
I F IR EAHERFRI VENST A RBUEHRIRS, 5
SHEHEFARTLS.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Resilient financial performance

In 2023, operating income grew 4.1 per cent to RMB1.9 billion,
driven by double-digit growth in trading and investment
income. Net profit after tax fell 27.9 per cent to RMB363.9
million due to impairment charges.

Trading and investment income rose 26.5 per cent to RMB517.3
million, mainly from improved gains from precious metals
trading.

Total operating expenses increased 12.3 per cent to RMB1.2
billion, led by an increase in staff costs and business-related
expenses. Impairment charges increased by RMB130.7 million,
as a higher general allowance was set aside to cushion
against market uncertainties and volatilities.

Loans stood at RMB37.8 billion and deposits were RMB45.4
billion as at 31 December 2023. Asset quality remains resilient
with non-performing loan (NPL) ratio at 0.7 per cent.

As at 31 December 2023, our liquidity and funding positions
remained healthy, with liquidity matching ratio at 134.4 per
cent and high-quality liquid asset adequacy ratio at 205.4 per
cent, both well above the minimum regulatory requirements.

Our Common Equity Tier T and Total Capital Adequacy Ratios
were 16.3 per cent and 18.9 per cent respectively, also above
the regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China Chengxin
International Credit Rating with a stable outlook.

Catalysing business growth and
powering connectivity

Through our extensive regional footprint, UOB supports
businesses as they expand domestically and across borders.
Our unique combination of strong sector expertise and local
market knowledge enables us to help businesses navigate
market complexities and to seize growth opportunities.

An example of our expertise is our comprehensive Renminbi
solutions. Tapping our Appointed Cross-Currency Dealer
for Chinese Yuan/Indonesia Rupiah (CNY/IDR) license, we
developed a China-Indonesia cross-border RMB cash pool, the
first of its kind in the market. With this solution, clients are able
to sweep surplus funds and conduct currency swap between
CNY and IDR between accounts in China and Indonesia while
meeting the stringent requirements on foreign exchange
transactions of the two countries. We also launched the
digital RMB (e-CNY) collection solution and completed our
first batch of e-CNY transactions for a Beijing-headquartered
automobile dealership group.

HITELIN(XE2EmAF N HENRCEP) ERE RSO
BIEARMEERS” hRK2021-2022FE L &roIH
RE=FR XM EHIT2020F R L EBEEWRX—FRE,

20231 A, FATHARWELFRITUOB Infinity#E K BIH N 5%
TRARSIRIR REIE LB HNESRIARSS, A A SHEM
BRI AN 3L 5 N B LR RIER, thBhEk
BBk T R SRR F AN BB ER R,

AP ABEFPRHERICEIARSS

20235, REERITE B EIESEEITEENE B PR IE ., B3R FaIL.
REMERONRETHZENVS 2 E, ERBENZERAEK
FE80075 . HMNHESEF EIE, A IEYEER T FILFA)
NERKESFEZEPRE T ATE FEH LM EEE RN
539, LUB R AR R E BT RMAAE,

FITE2023F A5 RN AR EEQT G, E3HMK
B2 QBN EENHIERY, N7 22 EIRINENIFIX
B2 R m, BEEARMESRINESHRENS, 98 R
EETHNERETEEAS.

FITERUTETRS £ENaSFERERMNER, FEKE
BIFAHFRIAER, NEREEZEFITET “—HE TR’
2% REVENPERXNRAUEFR RN Z R ERIER.

HIATHIER K

S RERFSHMABEIEES, KERTESEFQLERN
A, USSR EIE K, AREBMNET BN E,
It, AR A “SRMELF (FR, N E P IR EREIR
HEFRE R,

HEEBSMBUNETIERSEEAZTD, Tl Rk AliFaE
HEIR FBRIE. AR BRI S REE m, H7E2023
FRRT ZTREKRBERIL AERTHEE—BRERPEM
FAEERETER LA RBIHAE WS UNFHRFRETD
WEBEEUH, XFHEFEZXNEFNEERE,

Our cross-border RMB settlement service for gold imports from
the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership member
countries won the Shanghai Financial Innovation Awards in
2023, the second time we have achieved this award since 2020.

In November 2023, we launched new financial supply chain
management capabilities on UOB Infinity, our digital banking
platform for businesses. With this platform, clients can now
connect efficiently with their supply chain ecosystem partners.
These include suppliers, buyers and distributors within Ching,
and across China and ASEAN.

Personalising banking experiences for
aspiring individuals

In 2023, UOB grew our retail customer base to more than eight
million across the region as we completed the acquisition
of Citigroup's consumer banking businesses in four ASEAN
markets - Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam. Our
ambition is to be the Bank of choice for aspiring individuals.
This includes providing affluent and high-net-worth customers
wealth management advisory and experiences that meet
their needs and aspirations.

UOB China collaborated with world-renowned asset
management companies to introduce two new fund houses and
added 22 qualified domestic institutional investor (QDII) fund
products. Our customers can seize investment opportunities
in the QDII fund market and build a more diversified portfolio
against market volatility.

We also enhanced our wellness and lifestyle privilege services
for our customers such as working with our ecosystem
partners to hold exclusive events across cities, including
cross generations private wealth management seminar and
personalised wellness programmes.

Forging a sustainable future

UOB supports an orderly and just transition to net zero so
that economies can continue to grow, and people’s lives and
livelihood continue to improve. We aim to catalyse funding
and to support our customers on their transition journeys.

Building on our strengths and in-depth experience, we provide
progressive solutions such as sustainability-linked loans,
green financing and sustainability-linked trade financing,
that received multiple industry recognitions in 2023. UOB
China was also an instrumental partner to China’s leading
automakers, as they expanded their electric vehicle businesses
locally and across ASEAN.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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I Chairman’s Statement

EERKNH

TEE, RITH P TETEEENAFERBALNREN, TR
ERERHENARIIISRARERS, R SHEHEME G
EWHR, BT IR AR E RS AERSHRERSE, B
BRDITHINDITDRRKINFREBAR A TIRENT B FRdiRiRE
FTRERHBIERE, TThl T W S ERAER UARY T BECUS, FFEAEHE
EAT£9182,500F ELBY,

RERITREE2023FEANREXEZRERAEZA K TH
LEEDAI#TIN 1% /5% F HICreen MarkéR B 2RI FAE INIE,

SR AN S ZASEY TRk 32K : The UOB Way

XURBARERITHERLME “WER, AED”, TKE A
KAMSERIRAL AL, FEIA LRI TR PR K EI LIRSSt
A, MBS T HA R REVEH T

FNNEARPEX BB T I HZIgHE—The UOB Way,
LERTEREEARERITHSERME R E X—X1
BEVAERITREGHEL T OGELEMEWNENZ L. KER
THRE2FHART15ZEI, LRFBRERITREIXL.
MEMHMASER,

AT BRNEREER R RAE2023FHH—RFIIE,
Bh A ISR IR B R RRBY TR A 5E 75 200 BRI FA T IR M — R T
RN, BB R TIRH AR REOR, IR AR i BE, iR ST
BYERML & R ER 12

BB TR S TIERR S TIEIF R, 1858 R TRV IEREFS

5%, A ANEMREE. X—E R N RIEF— X RAHBE S
MEMBIAZA BB, BEFAMNETG EISEEKIZAHNE,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

In the year, we transformed our operating processes and
established a Sustainability Committee to strengthen our
governance framework. We also implemented sustainable
measures, such as adopting electric vehicles for our corporate
fleet and upgrading the lighting system of our Chongging and
Guangzhou branches with LED lighting. By optimising a chiller
plant system, UOB Plaza in Shanghai saved 182,500kwh of
electricity consumption annually.

UOB Plaza achieved both the Green Mark Platinum certification
from Singapore’s Building and Construction Authority and
the LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design)
Platinum certification in 2023.

Strengthening our people culture
The UOB Way

Culture is a key differentiator for UOB. Just like strong roots
providing foundation and anchor to a tree, our culture of
care, growth and trust helps our UOB family stay grounded
and shapes how we grow.

We introduced The UOB Way in Greater China to codify our
unique culture and belief system among our people. This
is built upon our core values of Honourable, Enterprising,
United, and Committed. Throughout the year, we organised
15 sessions to engage our colleagues in discussions about
our people culture and values.

Our people are our greatest asset. In the year, we launched
programmes to enhance employees’ physical and mental well-
beings. We also rolled out initiatives to raise our colleagues’
awareness around sustainability issues and to help our people
grow their skills and careers.

We continue to invest to create a conducive environment
where our people are engaged and energised. This ensures
that we have the right culture and talent pool to deliver value
to our customers and stakeholders.

BTN X 3% T HY “E "

RIERITH R KR T B ", HR CFraEthiE
B SPREMK, S HERE R RTBISMHE N E)ENR
THENIERE, BREATER SBIRSUNZFSZARIL
EMHERRNESHERE L,

KEE, BITHASHEN “KERTEOAEN/AT EEPEL
VAL, HEBEEI3MEHEDGE008 R T, BERRE1E A
SE5HP, HEEARTES4A T, EREN 2 =EMENE
FERN) LZE FANNESFMAEST AT AR 71,500/)\8,

FNMBEZARTLUER DR, BB M. S E, AERITHEHK S
TERE KRERITEEREKEAR”, A ZRE AT, &
BEFEZAANT, AT RERTA LN EZNFa.

Bt

2024528, T TR EFIALERITREZERZEM), KE
RITHER SRR EERIE T A —IEZ DAIRTTEH IR
b A A Ko fE = ARER, B4R MBS TR IR TS E RN ILMER
BT T ARIEXBIENIS, X FARLERITAKAILMIBITIALAY
AR, BREERENFER. NERMPAFARNE AR E. FrE
RN ERM AL TR PSR AR, XEFER
W EERRABIE . HATRH

A HRIFTES BB B AP E R E I8 o 71, B
WENREEX—FRRT TR FEHHE, URELFPHEER
B, HEBATHIY T E R NT X RE. R EENEE SN
EERFIA THIRIISHF RS, (RIBE R SRS AERTT
FRER] IAE MBI X E T =Mk

&, RERSHITAENE AN AERITHRENGE. BRE
RITPRE4OFEZ IR, FAPERA BRIN— RREH B0,
HAMAN AR RR RSB EERIT.

B
EERIRE
2024438

Supporting our community as a catalyst
for change

UOB believes in doing our part to strengthen social bonds
and enrich lives as a catalyst for change. We do this through
a variety of ways including fundraising, volunteering and
supporting various social causes related to art, children and
education.

Our annual UOB Global Heartbeat Run/Walk event in China
attracted close to 900 colleagues, customers and partners
across 13 cities. The Bank raised a record sum of more than
RMB 541,000 in cash donations to improve the lives of 12,000
children in the rural area of Yunnan and children with special
needs. Our colleagues also contributed more than 1,500 hours
in support of our community initiatives.

We believe that art is a powerful source of inspiration and
connection. In the year, we launched our inaugural Art in Ink
Awards campus edition in Mainland China to uncover and
nurture young talents and to provide them with avenues to
further their artistic careers.

Acknowledgements

It was with deep sorrow that we bade farewell to UOB's
Chairman Emeritus and Honorary Adviser and UOB China’s
former Supervisor, Dr Wee Cho Yaw, in February 2024. As an
entrepreneur, business and community leader, Dr Wee had
left an indelible mark in Singapore and the region. He had
been instrumental in building UOB into a leading regional
bank today. His legacy will live on in the businesses he had
built, the values he had instilled in us and the many lives that
he had touched.

UOB will not be where we are today without our colleagues'
dedication. | would like to express my appreciation to our
colleagues for their commitment and hard work in the past
year. Our colleagues have displayed collaboration and unity
to support our customers and one another. | would also like
to thank the Board for its wise counsel and support to the
UOB China management in navigating the various challenges.

Finally, thank you to our customers for your belief in UOB
China. I look forward to your continued support as we focus
our efforts on becoming the most preferred bank for consumers
and businesses in, and connecting with, ASEAN.

Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman
March 2024

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

17



18

| 2023 Highlights

2023 KFid

—A January

AR T3EEFIIT R “CARE” H BT R
TRAEEATE

RATHRRERESH, AR TRE AL
BINERERR TS =

Kicked off Project Summit Il to provide
one-stop onboarding experience for
new hires and enhanced Flexible
Benefit Programme "CARE"

by upgrading medical check-up benefit

_H February

RS LB RREX BRI ZER
A

Became a member of Shanghai
Environment and Energy Exchange

= -
- s A F |
= A U %
o
- &

=HMarch
5chEMN B~ e O
BERTETAFESR

UREEBMS, REt—FRAFRE. M
W B I 2 E S K EN(RCEP)
MRAEZENER SRR FEHIRIREEH

Signed a trilateral memorandum of
understanding (MOU) with the China
Chamber of Commerce for Import and
Export of Machinery and Electronic
Products and the Singapore Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce &
Industry

to jointly promote industrial cooperation
and green and sustainable development
between China and Singapore as well as
other Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP) countries

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

ARERITEABEBEFI2ME M S 7%
R— W ERE

UOB Art Gallery Shanghai presented
‘Reflection’ ink art exhibition featuring
Artists Shi Jinsong and Yang Yongliang

BEAREXRAZSAFIIIHE
AXRBASR AR TRFEHRPEXA
ThiE&E

Launched UOB Greater China
Leadership Programme

to build a sustainable talent pipeline for
critical leadership roles

RERTRKERGEZEDZEBERAERSE
FHILEED$AZIAIE

Our Head Office building-UOB Plaza,
received the Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED) Platinum
certification.

<

o i, ey

PLATINUM

A April

S5HBEMENFEFRITTREMFR
B—EFENERIELREF
T AHIEFEMA Ml 5

Collaborated with Heng Feng Wealth
Management Co., Ltd. (HF Wealth), a
subsidiary of Hengfeng Bank
to distribute wealth management
products issued by HF Wealth

B2 E X ERD H—Risk Outreach
ERTTHENIZE, BrREXKMEESL
B, DERFIAR, i1 RAHI X EEE

Launched the 'Risk Outreach’ Programme
hosting four sessions to showcase best
risk management practices, share case
studies and new or updated risk policies
with branch colleagues

FHMay

BEARPERIMERIP S RE ABRE
(ESG) I B Al XL E The UOB
Way

SEFR155The UOB Wayzil, 1538
Bl f, B RTERRE

Conducted Greater China environment,
social and governance (ESG) Training
Programme and introduced The UOB
Way, our unique culture and belief
system

rolling out 15 The UOB Way workshops
across China to strengthen our culture
and build employee pride

HH ERERC TR
KEERZ R ARG LR K

Launched Women @ Work programme
to provide care and support for working
women'’s healthcare and growth

FEOMNEHE R OMRERS BER
BIBES N ARBEEREMNAFIERXAR.
HMEBFEARZE B TR -2, RE
REERGFRRK

Hosted the UOB ASEAN Captains’ Club
Summit in Guangzhou

The event featured notable speakers
from the media and academic arenas,
C-suite executives and distinguished
guests from Southeast Asia which
underscored our commitment to forging
the future together

.
HUOB - i

MESE AEY &
EREFATAEES

EH(RERITELEERERS (FER))
wREHEL, PESRBRIL “EHEHM
“FlHRTABERHE, FESRBENERE
fEIE“B8" mARK

Released 2023 UOB Business Outlook
Study 2023 (small- and medium-sized
enterprises and Large Enterprises) -
China Report

The survey shows that businesses are
looking to tap the enhanced connectivity
between China and ASEAN to expand
overseas in a bid to grow revenue and
profits

7~AJune

ATRRERENE “ERAL" AREN
MERFE (SRR OIRMRER. AR,
W52 RR, LURBRIVG2ER) #5Bh SR TS &
ROV ITIEMEES

Expanded UOB China Employee
Wellness Programme

by introducing activities across five
dimensions of wellness -physical, mental,
social, financial and career- to enable
colleagues to have a healthier work-life
balance

HEEE LSERRPH. RS RREES
5imBERARSSERDIN HHFTIREE
ERVARXEDD, HHERR TERITE" "]
REATINE

Participated in the inaugural Shanghai
International Carbon Neutrality Expo
by signing an agreement with Lingang
Group to jointly host Singapore Green
Financing Week and launching ‘Breathe’
Programme, a sustainability initiative to
raise the awareness of a green lifestyle
to the public

a i

ANPENERHERTTESHHESENEXL
FHEBERTART/ENEALLINCTT
ERSNAMYS

Organised the seminar on Chinese
Yuan/Indonesia Rupiah Direct
Conversion and Applications under
Local Currency Settlement Framework
between China and Indonesia

PHESN ARAHE

il

EREREEXTHATHEIZT, SEREE
ESEERE TSR QREE T AIRRR
RIESMIIRE AR

Signed a sustainability-linked
syndicated loan contract with a joint
venture company under a Chinese
multinational automotive group as the
appointed bookrunner and mandated
lead arranger

tHJuly

BEIAERITHE S TR (EAP)
BERHEIESNFERSEHRTRNS
OEER

Launched UOB China Employee
Assistance Programme (EAP)

to provide employees access to professional
counselling services to improve their physical
and mental wellbeing

HETWHMESEE. S REARBRTGRL
HmARBAFHEE DI P E—REHH
Aigin

EAME—— RS EERERIT, HEH R
RESEM

Attended the China-ASEAN Forum
on Emerging Industries organised by
Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of China, Provincial
Government of Guangdong and
Municipal Government of Shenzhen
Being the only ASEAN-headquartered
bank invited to speak at the forum

EETH—REERE

BT BRI FRERAFMEINNERED
BRRRERIIR B A, BRI EThEE,
HEEFRELRMRLSERD BEE, R
WRT EFTREIHRNNFTIRE

Rolled out new generation draft system
Adapting to the auto collection and auto
clearance functions required by new
draft system of Shanghai Commercial
Paper Exchange (SHCPE), which brings
flexibility for clients to endorse and
discount certain amount of bank drafts
as needed and release clients from
manual work upon draft due date
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| 2023 Highlights

2023 KFid

BEAERTRE2023B L ARE
SRNEE BEATERARES 2T
BEARNSERATR= 15 R AHATS
BERT MY

Unveiled 2023 UOB China Heartbeat
Season

The activities included a charity children
art exhibition and three sustainable art-
making workshops

J\R August

BHh—E—ENREAR"
MR TARSE, AR, RAREZS, HE
FTEXEEENXURE

Hosted the annual Appreciation Month
to encourage colleagues to take the time
to express gratitude to those who have
helped us

“RERTEOARR/ T EREEN
KTED
JEESFEETEI3 MAH D, :E900 R KITR
T, BERREGEUHSE5HSD, HEEER
BARMS54H 7T, ERERI2HoEINE

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk returned as
a physical event

Rallied close to 900 colleagues,
customers and partners across 13
cities and raised more than RMB
541,000 to support more than 12,000
disadvantaged children in Yunnan and
children with special needs

KAEEI(RME Hohhe— RCEPFMIIL
ERED

FRCEPHIE & thn 1l HF SRR R TTI
£, DRCEPTEXERL S PRI (E A
1T, B8, T ERCEPR R E D5
RANMEX L E RS A mitt h O1E5R

Released a joint research report on the
RCEP agreement

discussing how the RCEP agreement
boosts trade collaboration and
integration across the region, emerging
opportunities within different sectors in
ASEAN markets, and how businesses can
be benefitted from this trade agreement
to expand across the border

LB September

S5REESROAMRAB S IEHH B
FARTBRBRSE R
HERBEXFARTBRRZS

Partnered with China UnionPay
Merchant Services Co., Ltd to launch
the digital renminbi (e-CNY) merchant
collection solution

and completed the first e-CNY merchant
collection transaction

ERAEFIRITUOB Infinity i 3 E 21
#8Infinity Secure
BFREFETFYZEFiHAppEIPTE£ M %K
FHEP, AEIVEFPERESH.EREN
BFUBDAFIAELR,

Launched the soft token Infinity Secure
on UOB Infinity, a new digital banking
experience for business

which enables faster login and
authenticate transactions with the
convenience of a digital security token

CHINA

KERITAEFRESHINRBIGEREER
#5735 (Green Mark) 15 AJE

UOB Plaza received the Green Mark
Platinum certification from the
Building and Construction Authority
of Singapore

_—

e

+H October

BTN EENEERRARAARTE
SEART RENRBEHIFR, AT R
TEEMEEERANRSEHNLSIE
BRI

Completed the Local Retail Investment
System (LRIS) application refresh
With the improvement of software and
hardware, the upgrades enhanced the
service capabilities and our operating
resilience of our retail wealth product
system

+—A8 November

EESHEEREFERREOERS, X8
B EEFMEAERHE RS
REZIECBIRERMBRTE, QETH
BRBEREHEIEFRITUOB Infinityfft
Rz sEERIARSS, U EEEENEREEREN
MRS M ARG R

Showcased the progressive banking
solutions at the sixth China International
Import Expo (CIIE) and China'’s first
International Supply Chain Expo

exhibiting several leading cross-border
solutions including the new financial
supply chain management capabilities
on UOB Infinity and China-Indonesia cross-
border renminbi cash sweeping solution

DT E—BEARILILIE
WIRFFMAENEEN, BHKNEE
RIS, IS Fpll S RIS SRR, H R
FHBI2023F E R 2 E MR

Held the first annual Risk Forum

to inculcate a resilient risk culture to
support sustainable business growth
and presented the Top Risk Culture Stars
Awards

BEIRERITHE “KHRS K"
RS 5 TREAFR{Y B4 77, H RG]
ARITIEHBOSTE

Launched UOB China Long Service
Awards

to recognise colleagues who consistently
demonstrate dedication and to express the
Bank’s appreciation for their contributions
over the years

BE RERTFEREKREBZAKRE 5%
15 FEZARKMAPBRIH, KERTE
ANEERIEN BEFREZARE, BRHIL
RARNRENE IR R

Recognised young art talents at the
inaugural UOB Artin Ink Awards Campus
Edition

15 young artists received the Awards and
UOB Art Gallery curated an art exhibition
titled 'The Beauty of Ink' presenting
artworks from the winners and finalists

ERNEFEENE, EEENESFERS
Rt IF R KB E 1R = (FutureLab)

B E400R TR ZIEES R=(E), BT
HE RERTEEREKBZARRE M
REEFERUR “SHET IR ERHKT
Az ARMB

Supported the Art and Design Education:
FutureLab as the Lead Partner for the
fourth year

by hosting a 400-square-metre UOB Art
Space to showcase artworks from the
winners of the UOB Art in Ink Awards
Campus Edition and our art programmes

RIESKRERITEBIIRAINREMNE, 7
EeRMANERAEM IR ERTE
HAETFE R R BTN

ZEFOCERMARERITTEEEERTL
TR RSE R B R BRI

Provided a sustainability-linked trade
financing to a global leader in the
manufacturing of all-natural performance
materials

This is our first sustainability-linked trade
financing solution in the respective industry
sector

+_—H December

ARERTHETRKREFENTENRER
REBHAE=LESR”

Mr Peter Foo, President and CEO, UOB
China, received the Magnolia Silver
Award from Shanghai Foreign Affairs
Office

KAEFRITED EF-
ZWHR-FHEEGHENS

>

ERBEBEE

Jointly hosted a Shandong-ASEAN
trade promotion event with Hengfeng
Bank
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Awards Highlights
! b~
RINRE

REFRITPEERTKEAR, HAFRATA
Mt R AR SR EERIT,

We are committed to building the future of
ASEAN with the long term in mind.

FAICIF B RREIR 7T 2, RIMNEXENBY Ak 55 N
48, URBATH M mABXT5 B RKER R0 —
g, RENAIUSEPIEFHR, HEERA
FIELHIBAR

Our progressive solutions, comprehensive
network and unwavering commitment to do
Right By You continue to drive the success
of our customers towards a sustainable
tomorrow.

20234, ENERTHFAIRRIRE, BAFF
P RIMEERFENINRITHEES 2.

We dedicate these 2023 wins to our
customers, colleagues and partners.

ke 1 EY )
R,

. LERERER e |
 PERRER “EEANETE (W)

+ 2023@AHPERERE — BHRPE
- FEREESC (FRERIPESRME QRARE)

« Shanghai Pudong District Civil Affairs Bureau
- Corporate Philanthropy Awards

+ 2023 Best Employers Selections - Forbes China
- Best Employer in environment, social and governance

SEREE (ESG)
- HIEERE + Kincentric China
- 2023F AR A BALR - Sustainable Organisation 2023
+ 2023FEEERERE — FHBE < 2023 China Best Employer Awards - Zhaopin.com
- IRFEEE10058 - Top 100 China Best Employers
RETMXEREE - Best Employers for Female Employees
+ 2023PEANFFELETE — F—ANZER + 2023 China HR Pioneer Awards - Tophr.net
- NIERAEBREE - China HR Pioneer Employer

—aam e

.

2023 Triple A #&. B 5. HEERNLEERR
— (&)
- RERMACEEMRERASR
— BF TR BIRAINRHIE U =10 P 2RIk
- RIEESCRINASEEMNERBRSR
— RERS T —INE P R=FIIRE
- REARTERERERS R
— RN SIS ST PRI 2255

2023 RITR AL AL — (M ERITED
- FERERFS A S A RER

2021-20224FF LiSHERIIHR — EEHEAF
- ERIEIIM AR =FR — (K@ I IDED
(RCEP) R RE & E#H OBIEARTERRS

2023FERBFEARKERTIR — LBAETRXZFA
- EEMRBHINER

- FEREENZZER

- FERERMNRMHRESR

EJE “OfkAkR-ESGRIFTIRREHE"
- RETRICIIEG

— SERERE

F—MEIERMMNERE — F—ME
- RIETMNMNE ERR A RS RIT

2023FEARHHEMEG] — (ITLLEFIRE)
- FESUTEREBREERRSIRGT

2023FE “PER" ERI RFER — FEM
- FEBRERIRS RS M=

Chain and Risk Management - The Asset

- Best Liquidity and Investments Solution
- three cases

- Best ESG Solution - Liquidity and Investments
- one case

- Best Renminbi Internationalisation Solution
- two cases

- The Asian Banker
- Most Sustainable Trade Finance Initiative, China

+ 2021-2022 Shanghai Financial Innovation Awards -

Shanghai Municipal People's Government
- Third Prize - Cross-border RMB settlement service

for gold imports from the Regional Comprehensive

Economic Partnership member countries

+ Shanghai Gold Exchange 2023

- Best Special Member
- Best Benchmark Price Trading Member
- Best Price Matching Liquidity Provider

« The Second Zero Carbon Future ESG Awards

- Wallstreet.cn
- Best Green Financing Case

+ 2023 China Financial Value Ranking - Yicai Media

Group
- Best Foreign Direct Investment Bank in Asia

+ 2023 Golden Sail Awards - 21t Century Business

Herald

W

e B ot |
« The Triple A Awards 2023 - Treasury, Trade , Supply \..ir—! d

< The Asian Banker Business Achievement Awards 2023

- Outstanding Bank of the Year for China-ASEAN Cross-

border Financial Service

+ 2023 China Top Financial Service Case Awards -

China.com

- Best Cross-border Financial Service Case of the Year

)

R ———

"'qf"..l'rt'.-"

b il

.
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Sustoi.riobility Strdteg’y'

AL AR

BRI SR RVE RS, Jf 16T 7 A HrE R R ANBE, HE
FIME AL AT HrER, BRSS PIHFER A ANV ST RTINS
HEUSHEAPTISEUR RANES, S R TN “HINATEERE

RITHI TR R R T TE AR IRI TR F T 8 R R (AL
BERVE D o SEF RIS A BRIE R R R B AR5 2030 F AR &
WAEHRRN7IA ek R B AR, B LM AR R RIsEA
Mo BT X—Hlg, 45 B 5 I SHRAMFE R MYFERK
PR RS, AR B E AT R R BARANTT R Xo

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

We are reinforcing our commitment to forging a sustainable
future with our customers, colleagues and communities. Our
sustainability strategy is guided by our four pillars:

1. Drive Growth Sustainably

2. Keep Customers at the Centre

3. Develop Professionals of Principle
4. Uphold Corporate Responsibility

The four pillars are consistent with UOB Group's overall
sustainability strategy, which is aligned to the 17 United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals. The pillars provide
the Bank with a clear direction and purpose, as well as guide
the Bank’s initiatives in line with our business focus, China's
14th Five-Year Plan and the country’'s economic and social
development strategies.

MBHEFHENRSEAFRE R B IRRISEH

Promote United Nations Sustainable Development Goals with our stakeholders

RIS
Drive Growth Sustainably

f e
“on
BRS5 mIHF4E
Keep Customers
at the Centre

e

IS -
Develop Professionals of
Principle

@e@}

BT
Uphold Corporate
Responsibility

s MMREFLEBRIAEMNE
Contribute economically
to the progress of our
communities

BHRBERIP HERENR
AR (ESC) XX E
BB SN EIRER
Embed environmental,
social and governance
risk in our approach to
risk management

BHEMFEERENNET
SR ERYRAZ
Integrate social

and environmental
considerations into our
credit evaluation and
approval processes

RAFIHET NI SET R
LEMEBHR, RIRZH
B P EmeE st

Adopt and promote
climate-resilient
practices to support

our customers in their
transition to a low
carbon economy

o FFARFIREPIIFEIRMEN
ARG
Develop and provide
sustainable financing
and sustainable
investment solutions

o Ed LSRRG IR
1E, RIPE P IR RS
Protect customer data
and privacy through
secure and robust
systems and practices

RIFHBEN G BRAT
5
Ensure Fair Dealing

ITEEE AN RRER I
EFKL

Create intuitive and
impactful customer
experiences

BET I CIEENEAER
BB FNEIE, HMRHES
fE. FERE L 2MIRITIRS
Make banking simpler,
smarter and safer
through ethical use of
technology and data

RETERE “GRE" 1R
7RSS

Make banking more
accessible and inclusive

NRE L BN AR B
Wi HF

Support businesses
across all stages of
growth

s BT EESHRANER
FRBVBITAA
Develop high-performing
teams and future-
focused individuals

B IIES%ENFE
Promote work-life
harmony

EMRTRSELERIE
HASHMIFE LB EIE
BEE

Encourage volunteerism
and advocacy for social
and environmentall

causes

c MREARTIESS5EMNHE
E
Ensure employee
engagement and
satisfaction

SRR RENXERT
RN TIEIF IR

Ensure workplace health,
safety and well-being

eSS AT
BES

Embrace diverse abilities
and strengths

BAFRATIHAS #EX. ST OMBE SN ER A ER

o BREATNAEMX ST
R
Maintain highest
standards of governance
and risk culture

- HBREESH
Ensure regulatory
compliance

P ek A Y ey =i
Protect the financial
system against abuse

R L BRUEYEH
THRBITAH
Incorporate
sustainability principles
into our procurement
practices

BRI WIFRINRm, 8
h X ERIPIFIR

Manage direct
environmental impact
and encourage
environmental
stewardship

RN ZE AR LENHE
TFHE R

Champion social
developmentin art,
children and education

Rooted in Our Values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment
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I Sustainability Strategy

AT R R B

RIS R RIQ IR
Sustainability governance

20236, HITH P T E PSR RARLRN, FRRARERAILE
HARFRFERRER R ZERCHBRURSARBEIEEER,
53kBEWS LRSI IBIA R E, HEHH PR SR RABE
MEMERHAREREZERRURERRCRTF.

ARREARERS

RS IE E TPl
Maintaining carbon neutrality

RITE202NF LB LI ER P RITESEBEE, Rk
REVE T BER HEEE S, HE i M L eI B A AR JRIE P (RECs) Ffik
ERIES, KM LUERBE BRI R ST F el B 4 fE TR LU
KR HIE o

RITEEEFRE RS BRI SENER, Bz E—
ESCEMBREE — A 8. RE T2022F M 21T 0
REF TR EARUKR2023FEERDITM IND1TH#H
—HHE, RITEFEBEUNCEE AN E LI E L T It
b, FITBE2022F KB A “R2ITEN" ThEefS, 2023 F SLIMARIK
FERAERI35%,

BRITR A —KRERITRETHARESEL FIT L,
FREBEAR AR FLRIN, 2023 F IR R EF T RE B A ENE, ST
TXRELILMTIRES, FHEBE N 149182500 F Kb, It
oh, KIERITRKER ARG T XEZBERAEZASTTH
LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design)
FFNFRIEHE T HICreen MarkXHAZINERRR T FHE,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

In 2023, the Sustainability Committee (SC) was established
to strengthen the governance framework. The committee is
chaired by Chief Sustainability Officer, who collaborates with
members from business and support units to ensure that our
sustainability strategy and objectives are effectively being
implemented. The SC reports directly to the Management
Committee and the Board on sustainability matters.

Board of Directors

Management Committee

Sustainability Committee

We have been maintaining operational carbon neutrality for
our own footprint since 2021. We encourage green operation
and work actively to conserve energy and reduce carbon
emissions at the workplace. The hard-to-abate operational
emissions are offset through the purchase of renewable
energy certificates and carbon credits, which also support
various renewable energy generation and carbon emissions
reduction programmes.

To mitigate the scope 1 emissions, we launched a pilot
programme to adopt electric vehicle for our corporate fleet
in the year. Benefitting from lighting system upgrade rollout
of our head office building in 2022 and in Chongging and
Guangzhou branches in 2023, our electricity consumption and
scope 2 emissions reduced compared with last year. With
implementation of bank-wide Secure Print function in late
2022, our paper consumption in 2023 reduced by 35 per cent.

Our head office building, UOB Plaza is leading in the energy
conservation achievements. Besides the lighting system
upgrades, the chiller plant was optimised in 2023 as part of
UOB Group's decarbonisation deployment, which enables
UOB Plaza to save 182,500kwh of electricity consumption
annually. Meanwhile, UOB Plaza has been awarded both LEED
(Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) Platinum
certification by the US Green Building Council and Green
Mark Platinum certification by Singapore’s Building and
Construction Authority.
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Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Peter Foo Moo Tan

Registered Office

Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor
12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor 13), Room 1601 of Floor 16 (Actual Floor
14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19
(Actual Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No 116 and No 128,
Yincheng Road, Pudong New Area

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.UOBChina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration for Market Regulation

Unified Social Credit Code
913100006694147236

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 7,500,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Supervisor
Cham Tao Soon

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)

Peter Foo Moo Tan (President and CEO)
Christine Ip

Wu Yu Hua

Nie Ming

Executive Committee

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan
Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Wu Yu Hua (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Christine Ip

Nie Ming

Audit Committee
Nie Ming (Chairman)
Christine Ip

Wu Yu Hua

Connected Transactions Control Committee
Wu Yu Hua (Chairman)

Christine Ip

Nie Ming

Board Risk Management Committee
Christine Ip (Chairman)

Wu Yu Hua

Nie Ming

Company Secretary
Eliza Wang Yuan

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office
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Prof Cham was appointed as the Supervisor of
United Overseas Bank (China) with effective
from 1January 2023. Prof Cham was the Deputy
Supervisor of the Bank from 2017 to 2022 and
a non-executive and independent director of
the Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup
Restaurant and Singapore Rail Academy. He
is a former director of MFS Technology, WBL
Corporation and UOB and its subsidiary, Far
Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education
scene, Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of
Singapore University of Social Sciences and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the
founding President of Nanyang Technological
University. For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished
Service Order, Singapore'’s highest National
Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a
Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the
University of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science
in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge,
United Kingdom. He is also a Fellow of the
Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of
Engineering, United Kingdom and Institution
of Mechanical Engineers, United Kingdom and
a foreign member of Royal Swedish Academy
of Engineering Sciences.
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Mr Wee was appointed as director and
Chairman of the Bank on 5 December 2007.
A non-executive and non-independent
director, he is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 40 years’
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined
UOB in 1979 and has been a director of UOB
since 1990. He is currently the Deputy Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of UOB.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas
Insurance (Chairman), United Overseas Bank
(Malaysia) (Deputy Chairman) and United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
(Chairman). He is the President Commissioner
of PT Bank UOB Indonesia. Mr Wee was also
formerly a director of Far Eastern Bank.

Active in industry and community development,
Mr Wee serves as a Council Member of The
Association of Banks in Singapore and The
Institute of Banking and Finance. He is also
a member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation and Honorary
Council Member of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He was
previously Deputy Chairman of the Housing
and Development Board, a director of the
Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan
Pacific Hotels Group and United International
Securities, and a member of Visa AP Senior
Client Council.

Akeen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of
the Nanyang Academy of Fine Arts. He is also
a director of the Wee Foundation.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public
Service Star by the Singapore Government
for his contributions to the financial industry.

In 2022, Mr Wee was conferred The Asian
Banker CEO Leadership Achievement for
Singapore Award and named the Best CEO
by the Singapore Institute of Directors for
large-cap listed companies. Mr Wee was also
awarded The Business Times Businessman of
the Year 2021/2022.

MrWee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) and a Master of Arts (Applied
Economics) from American University, Washington,
DC.
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Mr Foo was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) in December 2016 and
a director of the Board of UOB China on 18
January 2017. An executive and non-independent
director, he is a member of UOB China's Executive
Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the
Group's Treasury and Global Markets business forits
overseas subsidiaries and branches. He also served
as President and CEO of UOB Thailand from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of experience in
banking and financial markets. Prior to joining
UOB, he served for 11 years at Fortis Bank, S.A./N.V.
Singapore, where he assumed many management
roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific Management
Board member, Managing Director of Private
Banking and Head of Global Markets. Mr Foo's
previous professional experience also includes
holding various executive positions at Bank Austria
Creditanstalt, Bank of America, and Chemical Bank
between 1988 and 2000. Mr Foo embarked on
the career as management associate with Shell
Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is a non-executive director of Hengfeng
Bank and the Director of AllF Capital Partners
Limited, the general partner of Asia Impact
Investment Fund | L.P. He is also appointed as the
Advisor to China SingCham Shanghai Committee.
Previously, he served as a Council Member of
Capital Markets Policy Council (CMPC) of CFA
Institute, the Executive Committee Member and
Regional Representative of South East Asia of
ACI-The Financial Markets Association, Board
Member of CFA Singapore, Council Member of
the Association of Banks in Singapore and an
independent director of SGX listed/Temasek's
CitySpring Infrastructure Investment Trust.

Tapping his international banking experience,
Mr Foo leads UOB China to promote connectivity
between China and ASEAN, deeply involve in
China's financial liberalisation and contribute
to Shanghai's development as an international
financial centre. In recognition of his contribution,
Mr Foo was awarded as a 2020 Shanghai
Financial Industry Innovation Figure at the
Shanghai Financiers Awards hosted by Xinhua
News Agency. He also received the Magnolia
Silver Awards from Shanghai Municipal People’s
Government in 2023. With his deep knowledge
and understanding on over-the-counter trades
and international financial derivative and
commodity markets, Mr Foo is also appointed
as the member of the first Market Development
Advisory Committee by China Financial Futures
Exchange effective from September 2021.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management
(Hons) from the National University of Singapore
and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mrs Ip, was appointed to the Board on 22
August 2011. A non-executive and non-
independent director, she is the Chairman of
the Bank’s Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit,
Nominating and Remuneration, and Connected
Transactions Control Committees.

Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 as a Managing
Director responsible for developing the
Bank's Greater China strategy. In 2012, she
was appointed CEO of UOB Hong Kong. In
2016, she took on an expanded role as CEO
of Greater China. In October 2023, Christine
assumed the role of Head of Group Strategic
Communications and Brand of UOB. Mrs Ip is
a seasoned banker with more than 30 years
of experience in both consumer and wholesale
banking, with significant experience in Greater
China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior
management positions in product and sales
management, customer segment management
and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and Mainland
China.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip
received the Asia Retail Congress Award for
"Best International Retail Banker” in 2008 and
was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China
region in 2012 by the China Outstanding
Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of
Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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Prof Werner Wu was appointed to the Board on
29 August 2018. As an independent director, he
is the Chairman of the Connected Transactions
Control Committee and the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee, and a member
of the Audit and Board Risk Management
Committees.

Prof Werner Wu is currently Vice Chairman
of the China Overseas-Educated Scholars
Development Foundation (COSDF), Executive
President of Shanghai Zhangjiang High-
tech Park Development Company Limited,
Co-founder and Executive President of
Shanghai Yangtze River Delta Sci-tech City,
Vice Chairman of Shanghai Huaxia Culture
and Economy Promotion Association, Vice
President of the New Silk Road Committee
and President of China Region of the German
Federal Association for Economic Development
and Foreign Trade, the Global Vice Chairman
of the German Federal Association of German-
Chinese Alliance (BDCA) and Chairman of
Asia-Pacific.

Prof Werner Wu formerly served as the Chief
Representative and General Manager for
Europe and Africa Regions, Director of Corporate
Strategy and Investment Management, and
Chief Translator for China Baowu Steel Group.
He took senior positions in Siemens worldwide,
including Senior Vice President of Siemens
(China) Company Limited, President of Siemens
Real Estate Investment China and President
of Siemens World EXPO Centre. He also held
senior positions in ALSTOM Group including
President of technical services in China. Prof
Werner Wu assumed the position of Director
of Executive Committee of Foreign Invested
Companies of China Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment (CAEFI).

Prof Werner Wu is a Certified Senior Economist
in China. He holds a Master's Degree in
Economics from German Siegen University
and a DBA. In 2019, Prof Werner Wu was
appointed as the guest professor of Shanghai
International Studies University and as the
Adjunct Researcher of the Financial Research
Center of Fudan University. In 2020, Prof Werner
Wu was officially nominated as Chairman of
the Council of Artificial Intelligence Research
Institute of Donghua University. In 2021, Prof
Werner Wu was reappointed as a part-time
professor of Shanghai Ocean University.
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Mr Nie was appointed to the Board on 7
September 2022. As an independent director, he
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of the Nominating and Remuneration,
Connected Transactions Control and Board
Risk Management Committees.

Mr Nie is currently an attorney-at-law of Anli
Partners Law Firm. He also serves as external
supervisor of Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank,
as well as an independent director of Sino-
Australian International Trust.

Mr Nie was formerly the director and deputy
CEO of Mizuho Bank (China) Limited. He had
previously held senior management positions in
Fuji Bank Shanghai Branch, Mizuho Corporate
Bank Shanghai Branch, Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank and Research Center of
Financial Law of Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr Nie used to be a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference Pudong New
Area and was successively elected as the
representative of the 13*, 14 and 15* Shanghai
Municipal People's Congress.

He holds a Doctorate Course of Laws from
Tokyo University (Master degree) and is an
arbitrator of Shanghai Arbitration Commission.
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I Remembering Dr Wee Cho Yaw, Chairman Emeritus and Honorary Adviser, UOB and Former Supervisor, UOB China
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Dr Wee Cho Yaw, Chairman Emeritus and Honorary Adviser
to the UOB Group and former Supervisor to UOB China
passed away on 3 February 2024 at the age of 95. Dr
Wee, a visionary banker, celebrated businessman and
community pilar, was pivotal to UOB's development into
a leading bank in Asia.

In the more than five decades under his leadership, UOB
grew from a one-branch bank to a regional bank with
around 500 branches and offices in 19 countries and
territories. Through his unwavering focus on prudent,
disciplined and sustainable growth, the Group's assets
increased from $$2.8 billion in 1974 to more than $$253
billion at the time of his retirement as Chairman in 2013,

DrWee believed in the importance of education and giving
back to the community. He was founding president of the
Singapore Federation of Chinese Clan Associations from
1985 to 2010. He also headed the Singapore Hokkien
Huay Kuan from 1972 to 2010. He was a firm believer
in the value of education and contributed to schools
and various education initiatives. Encouraged by his
commitment to the community, UOB also setup the S$50
million Wee Cho Yaw Future Leaders Award scholarship
programme to provide financial assistance to students
from disadvantaged backgrounds.
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On 7 February 2024, hundreds of UOB employees and the public gathered at the UOB Plaza Atrium to bid a final farewell to Dr Wee, as his cortege
arrived for a brief memory. As a mark of respect, the attendees observed a minute of silence during the memorial.
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Dr Wee's passing was met by an outpouring of tributes.
Thousands of people paid their respects to Dr Wee at
his wake. These included employees, clients, business
associates, and leaders from the community, government
and businesses.

Dr Wee received many accolades over his career. They
included the Distinguished Service Order, one of Singapore's
highest National Day Awards, ASEAN Business Advisory
Council Legacy Award for Singapore and Honorary
Degrees of Doctor of Letters from the National University
of Singapore and Nanyang Technological University.
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I Remembering Dr Wee Cho Yaw, Chairman Emeritus and Honorary Adviser, UOB and former Supervisor, UOB China
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Dr Wee in his office in the early days of his career.
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Singapore's first Prime Minister, Mr Lee Kuan Yew (right) with Dr Wee
at the opening ceremony of the new UOB Plaza 1 on the Bank's 60
anniversary in 1995.

201428 70 A, EREE L () SHIASE, KERITOAZBEERS () &7,
Dr Wee (right) with his father, Datuk Wee Kheng Chiang (middle),
founder of UOB, in the 1970s.
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Dr Wee with ex-OUB Chairman, Mr Lee Hee Seng (right), at the media
conference announcing UOB's acquisition of OUB in 2001.

RERITERE RGN ERDITEIIDITF1985F iR AL, HBRBIE T HED TR L L,
Dr Wee at the official opening of UOB's first branch in mainland China in Xiamen in 1985.
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“Dr Wee was one of Singapore's legendary
entrepreneurs who made immense
contributions to the banking industry and
beyond. Under his leadership, UOB expanded
greatly, both in scale and scope. He also guided
UOB through several international and regional
financial and economic crises. Throughout
his 60 years at the Bank, Dr Wee applied his
qualities in full concentration for the benefit of
the UOB Group. He also instilled in colleagues
the importance of possessing the right attitudes
and aptitudes to build the business and to
sustain its growth. Dr Wee will always be
remembered and an integral part of UOB.”

Mr Wong Kan Seng
Chairman
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KRERITHEBL RIFRENATAEIMEF LI ™IEETF (F
EARHKMEREE) « (FEARHMEBULRITE) o (P
EARHMEINARITEERG)) REKBAN. (RITERE
HWABRIAEN) FHEXEEER,

BTEFRIRETRENERZ. BE. SRAEERRREXE
BIEMA (KERT (PE) BRABER) (UTHEE (AF
B12) ) FAEFRIERE, RERIIETE BRSNS,

XTESFSESFE=

BEERNERRESE, HHRTEERR. EF=MWAKR. MR
BEREERN (REAER) WIE, NEESEclRZBNE
REWT:

"3 45 FRSS

Name Gender Position

B % BEK/FRITIERLES

Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-

independent director

R B
Peter Foo Moo Tan  Male

PITIERTES (ITKREERITE)
Executive and non-independent director From 28 October 2022 to 27 October 2025

UOB China is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

¢) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-
funded Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC
Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks;

d) the Code of Corporate Governance of Banking and
Insurance Institutions; and

e) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees,
the Supervisor and Senior Management perform their
respective duties according to the laws and regulations
of the country and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

The current Board comprises five members, two of whom
are independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank's Articles of Association. Details of
the Board members are shown in the table below:

AR

Current Term of Office

202F 9817 BE2025% 9816 H
From 17 September 2022 to 16 September
2025

202210 A28 HE 2025410 A 27 H

(President and Chief Executive Officer)

17158 Z JERITIRRIIE S

Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent
director

RELE 5 MIESE

Wu Yu Hua Male Independent director

=RA 3 BUEE

Nie Ming Male Independent director

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

2023 7B 12HE2026F 7811 H
From 12 July 2023 to 11 July 2026

2021 FE 6B 6 HE 2024 6B 5H
From 6 June 2021 to 5 June 2024

2022 9B7HE20259H6H
From 7 September 2022 to 6 September
2025

EESNEEREENT:

« AT KEAEER BT, HUERITHRRERARMRARRE,
HERITALMEY, FERRFRTENEERATE;

s WERITRVIFMR. HERAEXBEMER, EZERIREL
BREVEI RS, BEEARNIFIR. HEAEBERR, HEEBE
REEFIE, HRRABERNEER ST,

* BTIRITIE NS E B MR R UAR R ITHRFHE HIESF R
ETAE;

« BITIRITERWE. RMWRITROFESH. i, BEEHE
TERITEANSE;

« BHIGIERITYIMGE . BFBE. BFRESZHE. B,
EQESRZE = Y

o WERITHIVSRUSRMHMERITHVSKRE;

« BERZAHERITHEEZEITR, ARRTHEEMERSN
EIZIET;

o RERITHASANGLEN;

* REREDERARUNESRE;

c FNERSNSREBARNREISRE;

- WERY2EHN. HNEPREEENXOERBE. REN

RS EIBHELE;
 RERITHNRBRE. KERMHE. KRR HIZERXER
EHLPRER;

« BRHEERITHONLER, ABHEITANSMEJRENRETT,
HBRWETREENT DM

- BIEERENAE;

« HIREERTITESNBRMZF LB RN B SRR IESF]
HRERHE R PR~ 4E;

s BEHIOERITHE X KRR ZHTHIER;

o Buddx . fHERMBERE;

« HERITHERKREBRAXNFIIREESNESE. EREM
FTRMNRE;

s BSEEE R RHE TRERSRMRINENIE;

s HINHBRARBINESRH;

The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

set long-term strategic goals, approve strategic
business initiatives and investment schemes, formulate
the capital plans of the Bank and assume the ultimate
responsibility for capital or solvency management;
determine the environmental, social and governance
(ESQG) factors that are material to the Bank, consider
sustainability issues, including material ESG factors in
formulating its strategies, and oversee the management
and monitoring of the material ESG factors;

determine plans for increase or reduction of registered
capital, issuance of bonds or other securities and the
PO of the Bank;

determine plans for any significant acquisition,
repurchase shares of the Bank, amalgamation, split,
winding-up or conversion of the Bank;

approve external investments, asset purchase, asset
disposal and write-off, asset mortgage and connected
transactions;

monitor the business and financial performance of the
Bank, and approve the financial statements of the Bank;
review and approve annual business plan, budget and
key performance indicators;

determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

set dividend policy and declare dividends;

plan for the succession of Board members and Senior
Executives;

oversee the establishment of a comprehensive risk
governance framework, including the strategy, policy
and process for managing various types of risk;
determine the risk tolerance, risk appetite and risk
profile of the Bank, and approve credit discretionary
limits;

review and monitor the risk management, internal
audit and compliance functions, and ensure that these
functions are adequately resourced;

recommend amendments of Articles of Associations to
shareholders;

ensure that Management establishes appropriate
procedures and processes to avoid situations that
may give rise to improper personal gains or conflicts of
interests;

review and approve the Bank's system of controls
relating to connected transactions;

set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;
review the Bank'’s information disclosure policy and hold
responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity
of the information disclosed;

review and approve the composition and terms of
reference of the Board and Board Committees;

endorse directors' fees for recommendation to the
shareholder;
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s BMRFIRE; &
¢ BITRABETFHEMIRNAER. EMUNRITEEERNE
HERA

EELEFAAOREREN, HEFENBHIRNESERI

2023 F, RITHBAEFZSWNT
YN8

, RIWEEEERELH

>t

RIBRITERENNE, EFEEIEER S MR
2023 &, HITEFEEBIEENAN, M T AR
SWHBERER. HFEAR WFEEF. RREF. BEFRY
HIEHEFRNEATEES S EINTE P EARKNERE XERE

M (RBEERE) WEXEKR, MAEFSINIERREETRY
HRTEFERWBRT.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other power as authorised by the
shareholder and perform such other functions as
required by relevant laws, regulations and the Bank’s
Articles of Association.

The Board meets at least four times a year. Additional
Board meetings would be convened whenever necessary.

In 2023, the Board held four meetings. The quorum for each
meeting was met.

The Bank's Articles of Association also provide for the
Board to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

The Board passed nine resolutions by way of circulation in
2023.

The procedures for convening Board meetings, the quorum
required for constituting the meetings, the proceedings at
the meetings, and the procedures for voting and passing
of resolutions were in compliance with the requirements
of applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank’s
Articles of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings
and circular resolutions were properly maintained by the
Company Secretary.

XTFEFZTREINELRS

RERITHPEEFZEFA MRANENERR, B RTERA.
KERGERIERR. BIHERR. REMFHERSNESS
N EEERR,

MRTERS
0. EREMEA: B—REE (EFE) « FFRBSLLE. H7iFHR L,

b. BITER SR EERRENT!
- BERITNEEZ, SEFRERIHE. LS RERE, BE
RITASIHRIBHIT, HERXNERTE; &
o MERTESREEARUTHANEREEEI,

c. 2023 %, MREWNFNXR, IITERSKATL LLERRS
B/ #HETHEXED, AERBARIN

Q) XBEXBEHERR
o. ZEREMA REERE (XE) , Rz, BAKXE.

b. XX ZITHIZR AT EEREEW T
¢ BYHRITRERZEEGE;
o BEXBRSHITHIRIEMERIXEE;
s HE—MXEKRH; &
¢ HRERXBERZHEREFTHE,

c. 2023 F, XEXGIERIZERHBAZIN R,

d. 2023 F, XEXZEFEZEBIFENS, MET LM
Fio

Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five
Board Committees, namely, Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

« the Bank’s business operations, including formulating
internal policies and business strategies, monitoring
the execution of business plans and approving
relevant credit limits; and

* human resource matters for employees below Senior
Executives positions.

c. In 2023, the EXCO leveraged electronic means to facilitate
the review and approval of matters. Hence, it did not
hold any meeting in the year.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee
a. The CTCC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (Chairman), Mrs
Christine Ip and Mr Nie Ming.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:

 establish the framework for managing connected
transactions;

« oversee the management of connected transactions
and associated risks;

* review non-material connected transactions; and

e review and recommend material connected
transactions to the Board for approval.

c. The CTCC held one meeting in 2023.

d. The CTCC passed seven resolutions by way of circulation
in 2023.
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() HItERE
ao. ZR=MG: BAKE (FF). HFRELE. REERE,

b. HItERSMNEBEREEANFN / HEUTHEXER:
o WSSkRE, RER. SMNERERITITRIRIRS;
* ABRIHERIRERABEHZTIMNE
o AERIMNBEHITBCEERER;
s BXRRIENHZ T LSHREREATK;
© REFEITRRHZEDE;
* REREITRSMNR BT E AL
« ERIPAERMEL, SEIREGEENBERNIER;
o HUESMBERITERA; &
* SNERERIT AR RERER 1T AR I A SR ARIR R

c. 2023 F, HIHERSHBAIINTR,

4) RENFHERS
a. ZREEGA REERE (FF) , E—REE, HRFREL
+, BR%E,

b. RERFMER KT ERENT:
s MEFENHETBENEZERSHFBREA;
c RITER. TESREBAR (BEBTKBEFERITEUR
BIITK) BUSIMESAHIRESSHE; &
¢ BY—EEAONGILUTNESSHNERNE, EF2 TR
BERRREFHTH.

c. 2023 F, RERFMEASBHASN—R.

d. 2023 F, REMFHERZEBIFENS, MEHT I
R

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

(3) Audit Committee
a. The AC members are Mr Nie Ming (Chairman), Mrs
Christine Ip and Mr Wu Yu Hua.

b. The AC’'s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all
matters relating to:

» financial statements, and internal and external audit
plans and reports;

» the adequacy of internal accounting controls and
material internal controls;

 the scope and results of internal and external audits;

* the quality of, and any significant change in,
accounting policies or practices;

 the adequacy of internal audit resources;

« significant findings of internal and external auditors;

* the establishment of a comprehensive governance
framework, including the policy and procedures for
managing whistle-blowing cases;

* the approval of the external auditor's fees; and

* the nominations of the external auditor and the head
of the internal audit function.

¢. The AC held four meetings in 2023.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee
a. The NRC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (Chairman), Mr Wee
Ee Cheong, Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Nie Ming.

b. The NRC's main responsibilities are to:

» recommend nominees for appointment to the Board
and Board Committees;

* recommend a framework for the remuneration of
directors and key senior executives (including the
President and CEO and Deputy President) for the
Board's approval; and

» establish a mechanism for the formal assessment
of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the
contribution of the various Board Committees and
individual directors.

¢. The NRC held one meeting in 2023.

d. The NRC passed one resolution by way of circulation in
2023.

G) EEZERREEZRR
a. ZEREMR: WHFRAZLE (XE) . REERE. BRKE

b. ERANREEERSNEERENT:

« HERTHXMEESRRE. BERNNREZE, HRXES
=HEE;

« BMERXOEREARRRRIL, REBRUMSENSESEAM
ERRIRAEER,;

« EiR5). R, BWEMNITHEMARAIER, FEMNTE
RITNE BRI RE TR ERE;

s HEETENNERER. Rig. SHORE;

- FEEERXTARMO. XRASEHREEEMNXMRLE
ERERIRS; &

+ EHREFRSREHRETEFREIENENCEFHBES,

c. 2023 F, BEERNMNEEZRSHBASINIAR,

(5) Board Risk Management Committee
a. The BRMC members are Mrs Christine Ip (Chairman), Mr
Wu Yu Hua and Mr Nie Ming.

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies,
policies and risk appetite of the Bank for the Board's
approval;

» oversee the establishment and operation of a robust
and independent risk management system that is
consistent with the strategies and policies approved
by the Board;

* review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Bank’s risk management framework and practices
for identifying, measuring, monitoring and mitigating
various types of risks;

* review bank-wide stress test scenarios, assumptions,
parameters and reports;

* review regular management reports on risk exposures,
risk portfolio composition and the management
and monitoring of such exposures and portfolio
composition; and

* report to the Board regularly and highlight any
adverse risk event or trend for the Board's attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2023.
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XFUE

RERTHIENELEF—F, NEEFEEFERBERARRK.
BENZEFAHREERN (QEEE) NAE.

BENRNETEEE:

o KWERTMSMMSIRE;

- BWEEBR. SREEBARNTA, UAHRETHEZE, HE
VERNER. SREEARNTHITHTULILE;

o HHPIRTT. RAMEMAEEXERIZRERANGENE;
X

o OERRL EMRRITEREMER N B EFTERNEMERNAR R
BT HITHERNEMIRN,

2023 F, HMEMRIRE (PEARKMEREE) M (RB)FE)
FNE, RRBEBTHESFENSRERAREBEENIRT, £
BITIRENIRER, BEESHBEANEXFTEERNCERIK
MBBEAIRE, WHITHEERR. MSWR. HEENGRIP
URBTESNSREEZARBTRENSEZEMERITTER
WEE, ANZRTEERESREEAR, HFIFEFERN

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor, Prof Cham Tao Soon, who
was nominated by the shareholder and appointed in
accordance with regulatory requirements and the Bank's
Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisor include:

* inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the
Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Executives to ensure
that the Bank is run in a prudent manner and that the
Board and Senior Executives take corrective actions
where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant
to relevant laws, regulations and the Bank’s Articles
of Association, and as may be authorised by the
shareholder.

In 2023, the Supervisor duly discharged his responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Executives strictly,
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and the Bank's
Articles of Association. In discharging his responsibility, the
Supervisor received and reviewed regular reports on the
Bank’s operations and risk management, and conducted
supervision of the operations and financial position, and
rights of consumers of the Bank and the performance of
the Directors and Senior Executives. The Supervisor also
met with Directors and Senior Executives, and attended
Board meetings.

IR EFRBITIRERE

2023, HITRMBIMIUESE, DHINREERERTREE,
Hop, REEAEFBEEBREITRER MFIMERZTKEXZ
SERERZIRE, UKFEHELRSNEFENMNEEEZERS
5o BRASEBREEERER T&mﬁﬁéﬁﬁif,u&ﬁ%&%
WERE. XERXZIEHERESNESFENOEEERZMNR.

REEAN, MIBFEHEMRIFTMBEITTEENS, INEHINT
BIMMNR, MUBENESR. B MRENEASYEET
ARG EREERIE TIRRIER, HiP 7T RITHBENEUSHE
TE. FRA RAENEMADEXENGEN T,

(1) 2023 FHUBEHEEESINNER

M EEHE el HFE
Name of Independent (%) R)

Director No. of Board
Meetings Held

REE

Wu Yu Hua 4 4
=HH

Nie Ming 4 4

(2) MIAEFWHITAXETURLZNEIER
2023 &, RUBEHYRNEITAEENNUREIURHRN

BEREFHBEN

ﬁﬁ”%&%%ﬁﬁmE”EFLﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%Eoﬁﬁ
RS EE. NKEE. cEEESENMREENESRESE
KBRS UMEEMHH— T HIRNTE. FBTREMREZTEN
S5 EMP#HTEE, NMT RS %m&& S R ATAEAE
HLHEE R, MEMRESERITHIRIZNATURIBREZIMT IR
?ﬂ%m,mﬂﬁimﬁﬁ,hmﬂ TAEIE,

No. of Board
Meetings Attended

Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in 2023,
namely Mr Wu Yu Hua and Mr Nie Ming. Mr Wu Yu Hua is the
Chairman of the NRC and CTCC, as well as a member of the
AC and BRMC. Mr Nie Ming is the Chairman of the AC, as well
as a member of the NRC, CTCC and BRMC.

In the year under review, all independent directors discharged
their duties diligently and responsibly. They contributed to
the decision-making and oversight by the Board and Board
Committees and safeguarded the rights and overall interests
of the Bank, consumers, depositors, the shareholder and other
stakeholders.

(1) Attendance of Independent Directors at Board
Meetings in 2023

TR &iE
R) Remarks
Absent with
Apologies
0 /
0 /

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors
In 2023, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisor's and Directors’ Access to
Information

The Supervisor and Directors have unfettered access to
information and Management, and are provided with
timely and comprehensive financial, risk management and
operational reports to facilitate informed discussions during
meetings. They also have access to the Company Secretary
whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisor and
Directors on regulatory changes and best practices in
corporate governance. The Supervisor and Directors may seek
independent professional advice in the course of discharging
their duties at the Bank's expense.
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Senior Management Structure

1EHA =] HEXRER RS fEHA 1=l HEXREN
iy FR s FR
Position Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant Position Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant
Commencement Years of Commencement Years of
Experience Experience
R TEKREREHITE 5 2016 F 128 WIEEILAF B EEF T RERN 35 =5 RBETIETTE =] 2018 & 5 B HAHAEEFEML 20
FOO Moo Tan  President and Chief Male Dec 2016 Bachelor of Science, Estate Management, Honours YUAN Quan Head, Transaction Male May 2018 Master of Economics
Peter Executive Officer National University of Singapore Albert Banking Rikkyo University, Japan
RO TIm RELBHITITK
Chartered Financial Analyst General Manager of
Shanghai Branch
Hin BT 5 202010 B BAF T E/RAKFNAERNLT 22
YANG Rui Qi AIternoFe C_O:ﬂtrLCEO Male Oct 2020 I\/\Oster'ofA'pplied Finance ‘ G MEEREBEE 2 202 F 48 P EASEEEESEERAT IS+ 21
Mark REEFIRERBILE 2016 %108 The University of Melbourne, Australia LU Meng Jia Head, Personal Financial Male Apr 2022 Bachelor of Information Administration and
Head, Global Markets Oct 2016 David Services Information System
w6 AR EE £ 00548 LEREATEREREL 2 Shanghai University
ZHENG Jun Head, Wholesales Female Apr2021 Bachelor of International Finance _ L N ol s
Adaline Banking Shanghai Jioo Tong University A ) CARITERNEE ) % 2008 £ 9 A MBEAFHFL =
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit  Male Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce
PR BRI EHE 2 202618 FMEETAYTHERY+ 30 University of Otago, New Zealand
YEONG Kok Leng  Chief Risk Officer Male Jan 2022 Bachelor of Business Administration
Vincent National University of Singapore RN BURTERPEEXEE B 2014 7R EEEHEERAFEFF T 28
YEOH Kian Soon Head, Commercial Credit Male Jul 2014 Bachelor of Science
FER RERMFUIHEE 8 202518 ANARFIFRBSE R LAEEm LT 22 Benedict - Non-South China Carnegie Mellon University, USA
FANG Xicgo En Head, Channels and Male Jan 2022 Master of Business Administration
Andrew Digitalisation Leonard N. Stern School of Business, New York SEfEpe BURTERIEXEE B 201 FE 1B EEEAAYIHZEML 27
University FAN Nan Hong  Head, Commercial Credit Male Nov 2021 Master of Business Administration
Frank - South China Hong Kong Baptist University
b2 BERAE S 20233 A CHEEFRBFIEMLT 32
CHEN'G Yu Lung Chief Information Officer Male Mar 2023 MasFer of Science. . S APE LS % 007 E1E EEATHEEN+ 2
Rahmi King's College, University of London HONG Xico Yan  Head, Human Resources Female  Dec 2007 Master of Business Administration
AT ERNEE B 2018F78  HEAPAHEWL 1 Amy Fudan University
ZHU Xuan Chief Financial Officer ~ Male Jul 2018 Master of Professional Accounting . . N "
Brian HAEENKEEERTE 2023E 48 Fudan University SKIR REEITEEE ‘ z 2016 1H %éﬂg"]d‘|‘|i7k¢iﬁ27(—?—lﬁﬁ%iiﬁﬁi ' 30
Chief Sustainability Apr 2023 ZHANG Sa Head, Internal Audit Female Jan 2016 Master of Corporote Finance and Accounting
Officer Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo, USA
e P SRITEEE z 202014 REE T XARZEEFF L 17 T EREESHBREEE z 2007128 EBEXRFIHEEML 27
XIN Tao Head, Corporate Female Jan 2020 Master of Science in Economics WANG Yuan Head, Legal and Female Dec 2007 Master of Business Administration
Cynthia Banking University of Nottingham, UK Eliza Secretariat Fudan University
RAENLRATITK 2022%18
General Manager of Jan 2022 BEA K e E 017E88  EEAPERHPEL 20
Beijing Branch XIONG Da Yong Head, Compliance Male Aug 2017 Doctor of Finance
Fudan University
BE BRI TR IFREX EE Z 2018 % 4 A RENMNEIAZEFRERS . SM5RITEML 29
HUANG Ying Head, Commercial Female Apr2018 Master of Science in Internationall
Christina Banking - Non-South Economics Banking and Finance
China Cardiff University, UK
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NE]
FU Yue
Sabrina

BXE
SHING Tin Yau
Gordon

B/
ZENG Xioo Ting
Christina

[
HU Wei
Tony

e
GOU Wei
Helen

)|
HE Chuan
Charlie

k25
ZHOU Xioo Zhou
Alan

g
YE Yan
Beicy

F50
WANG Hao

Position

FREEREEEEENEE
Head, Strategic
Communications and
Brand
RESNEERERE SN
MEERTIHHREEEE
Head, Network
Partnership and Strategic
Marketing of FDI
RAERXPNAEEE
Head, Country
Customer Advocacy

ANPITITEK

General Manager of
Shenzhen Branch
RAEBVRTHEXEE
Head, Commercial
Banking - South China

IINDITITEK
General Manager of
Guangzhou Branch

HMNPITITE
General Manager of
Suzhou Branch

EBEATITE
General Manager of
Shenyang Branch

A DITITEK
General Manager of
Chengdu Branch

REDITITK
General Manager of
Tianjin Branch

MM AITITE
General Manager of
Hangzhou Branch

BRAITITK
General Manager of
Chongging Branch
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£

Female

5
Male

x

Female

Male

Female

Male

Male

z

Female

Male

1EHA

EeE
Assignment
Commencement

20ME5H

May 2011

202243 A

Mar 2022

2023F 12 8
Dec 2023

2019 £ 8 B
Aug 2019
2019438

Mar 2019

202112 B
Dec 2021

20211 B
Nov 2021

2020%8A
Aug 2020

201N A
Nov 2021

20204 4 A
Apr 2020

2018 £ 12 B
Dec 2018

2022 %3 A
Mar 2022

Highest Academic Degree

EENMZAFEGRDHEEFML
Master of Science in International Marketing

Management

University of Leeds, UK

ERETAFFERREEEFM LT
Master of Science in China Business Studies
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

A= ERAZEIAEEMLT
Master of Business Administration
The University of Waikato

FEEUHFRASEEF RIS EEM T
Master of Business Administration
Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers, France

TTREEFFFLINEFF T
Bachelor of Economics and Laws

Liaoning University

MAZBAAFRITEEFM LT
Master of Management in Banking

Massey University

REMFEEAFERITEMF L
Bachelor of Accounting and Finance
University of Hertfordshire, UK

MRRIEAFBFIREFLE
Bachelor of Electrical Engineer
Harbin Engineering University

AARFEFFEL

Doctor of Public Finance

Nankai University

e SZ T
FIR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

23

29

18

23

22

17

16

29

20

£y
CAl Wei Ling
Cissy

B—7

SHAO Yi Ning

TR
SHUM Wai Kin
Gary

SR
YAN Mi Ya
Mia

PRERE
CHEN Xiao Ling

i
DU Yan
Cherry

Bss

Position

Ea1TTK
General Manager of
Xiamen Branch

BRANTITK
General Manager of
Kunming Branch

FRLATTITE
General Manager of
Zhongshan Branch

EBERIREKETT
REBITK

Branch Manager of
Shanghai Pilot Free

Trade Zone Sub-Branch

EEHRFCERTIK
Branch Manager of
Xujiahui Sub-Branch

EBBRRTIK
Branch Manager of
Jingan Sub-Branch

ko

Female

E°S

Female

Male

Female

X

Female

E°S

Female

1EHA

s
Assignment
Commencement

202078
Jul 2020

2020 6 A
Jun 2020

2022 %9 A
Sep 2022

202388

Aug 2023

2019 £ 3 B
Mar 2019

2016 %58
May 2016

=

= 2=y

Highest Academic Degree

REPZAEAFBHSERNERESMLE
Master of Business Finance and International Business
University of Central Lancashire,UK

SRWERETHEFEL

Bachelor of Marketing

Yunnan University of Finance and Economics

HEBMAFEMFEFM L
Master of Science in Finance
City University of Hong Kong

EBETARFEFFFL

Bachelor of Economics

The University of Shanghai for Science and

Technology

EEBETRFHENHNFESRAZ L
Bachelor of Engineering (Science and Technology)
The University of Shanghai for Science and

Technology

LR S A Frmhk T EEmLt
Master of Business Administration
United Business Institutes,Belgium
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17

17

29

14

15

21
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Remuneration

FHEMEUR S5 EIE

RERTHPEHFMEERN BT RERAEHHRS HEVEFIKT
ERRITESSEHR NG EMRS. REMHFHSHITAR
. NEWERE, SKRUMENHELENSRERALT. R,
T ENECERIAI T BATR FHEN S S RITR S, KR AR
REEEIRERNES. ZHNBRERTRITEFELR T,

RIBRITHMBERPOME, RINFMKTFEESER. JTFR
EREIIR N ANGRE ZERBENR. SREZNEFKEN
I T FATZEP IR R T DAY F RS EE R K P REHSE
ERMHAL, 1o, BITMEEGMMXLEIERER]E TAIFBK
T 5 HAR B R 35 F AR SRUKFARIR L,

RITUTHWERENERE, BERSHBLERE, AL, %

AN UGB S HITHS AR 5 HRiFIRRAIN

Wi, RIEPERTROEEEEZASMAN (BURITR

I EREs) , RTNSAEEARULKNNLEERTMN

ML LR R THEED P EHMIGRERIES (. RIBERITERFNH

ENEIEAESR, TESREEARTTLHMANEIELLFI7 50%, H

SR EEAR U REEEEZR IR 5 TR ZHERY

BIELLBIN 40%, ZELE N TAURTERREERE (W0

EA) BWAHITIRME. BITEMTEFHFMEIE 7 EFINEH,

EUTERA—MERT, EERRAENLKRFEFHMNM / e

EEZMFMEYE Dt ZINASIEME L BRI TRIEENITA

WEEREBITRAE, &Ko 100%,.

o TEEHERXPLRET,

¢ BATHRZHNERFIFELH D ATAMERNEITREAHIEKR
RBzo

« MEWENERER,

o AHITRH. BEREEE.

BITERRREATTFHIMBERR / SHNERER,

AT B MR EHMERTAERHNIRRER, KERTHER
BITRERFMESS (UTER “ERY” ) , ZERRH
MREEAN, HPESSTFHBRTEREE. REEN, &

= A PVER
RASHBHFEINT R,
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Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB China aims to provide
competitive remuneration package and ensure the Bank is
able to appropriately attract, retain and motivate high quality
talents who not only fit the Bank’s culture and share the
same values but also meet the competencies the positions
require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy outlines how our
remuneration entitlement links to the Bank’s performance,
long-term benefits and risk management. This remuneration
policy applies to all of the full-time employees with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the employee’s
salary is mainly linked to the individual performance, UOB
Group's and function’s performance. The performance target
setting clearly shows the requirements and expectations of
the Bank for risk management and long-term and short-term
performance of the function and the individual. In addition,
the compensation review of the employees who are taking
compliance and risk management's roles is independent with
the performance of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes cash bonus, deferrals in
deferred cash or deferred shares, or commission, which links
the staff variable pay to the Bank's performance and current
and future risks. In line with the Supervisory Guidelines on
Sound Compensation in Commercial Banks issued by China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission, senior
management and employees whose roles have material
impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure would have a portion of
their variable pay deferred. Under the Bank’s latest deferral
framework, the 50 per cent deferral rate will be applied to
the variable pay for key senior managements whereas for
other senior managements and employees whose roles have
material impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure, the 40 per cent
deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay. This deferral
will be in the form of deferred shares or deferred cash (where
applicable). The Bank has developed a mechanism to forfeit
the unvested variable pay and/or claw back the paid variable
pay. In any of the following situations, the management will
determine the percentage of unvested compensation to be
forfeited and/or paid compensation to be claw-back. Such
percentage is at the Bank’s discretion based on the severity
of violations, up to 100%.
* Material violation of risk limits.
* Bank-wide losses or material risks due to negligent risk-
taking or inappropriate individual behavior.
* Material restatement of financial results.
*  Misconduct, malfeasance or fraud.

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and
an effective remuneration management, UOB China has
established a Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC), which consists of four Board Directors. The chairman of
NRC is an independent director. During the reporting period,
the committee held one meeting in total.

ER LFENSREEA G

2023 ERITEAERITPERIESTIANESTERSHIAR
M 965,000 75, MBEEXIHSERLSITAART 400,000 7T,

BHE2023F12831TH, RITHMZSREEAZ RN
MEEEFMKALANRT, 7£2023 FHRITHEZARIFHMH
BEAANRT 1060824857, HPEEHMZTAART
56,302,332 75, AIZHMEHANART 49,780,153 Jto

Compensation for Board Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

In 2023, the Bank paid a total of RMB965,000 directors’
fees to the independent directors of UOB China, and paid
a total of RMB400,000 supervisors' fees to the supervisors.

As of 31 December 2023, there are total 34 senior
executives and material risk takers whose roles have
material impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure. The total
compensation for these executives and material risk takers
in 2023 was RMB 106,082,485, including RMB 56,302,332
fixed pay and RMB 49,780,153 variable pay.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

R ER

RERTHEKIEFENBERZEZANBEERHAEESAERTE
FREMAEE, FPRBI. TEENRTIL SR RINERTHEIE
RAGIE, HRREBLEEFEENTEE S,

RTEFZEIEHMEAINNBRABERRITIE, FHASZM
REERMOFRE. REBELASTEHITERRSHAELHET
RE. R, FEEVERTAESMIIN, SEITGIRITAZ
IEHIE R,

RITIMTHREIZHE RN G EELEABEF IR TEFR T
BerpseEEM. FEMNERE, SEERRTERXIRG
AL, R NRERER. TEEERXRS REH.
ERUEEEITFNSUENS. ZAEERNGIEESNETERE
MARITAERER R ARITRESERIL

RERE T

FITRIU T MR RIS EN —REREHITE. TERAERE,
ABEITSEEODEFE MRNETERSMAERITERAHIT
BIRET(E;, EITHEE, ABHEITBERTITKREENTE
CIRTE.

MBI AR E BRI @ R IR R B A A BR s 1HAR S5 A0
HMEERS, MPHEFSNERRRITHEAFNEERRR, 5
EIREFRITIEEEDFABEHNR L EEZNSEENE L.
MBI EMEIBEE R AR, EHAER, HERITAEBMSE
fil. EEMSAUTRINT S ENEMIE, FNSERTNEEE.
1THI SR ERER A E, MMAEBRITENELENEEBT.
2023 &, WITAHEBREMERIER. RESLSKTEE
BRI, BXMARKESNEIA. (RHAEIEMNIE
B, FABIER. AMEITEREXINEER, B¥T
PRMSERRIIRIEE R ITINE, MISELABXNEER . ER5H
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Internal Control

UOB China has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group's policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework and systems that enable the Bank to set strategic
and practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control framework
and systems through the review of risk management reports
and analysis, operational and budget reports, internal audit
reports tabled at regular meetings, discussions at various
internal committees and from the exchange of insights with
industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement on the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to,
strengthening risk identification/assessment, monitoring
processes and risk mitigation techniques; and constantly
reviewing communication/feedback as well as evaluation/
correction mechanisms. The internal control framework and
systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance
on the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee ("“AC") and Group Audit,
while administratively reports to the President and Chief
Executive Officer ("CEO") of UOB China.

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services to improve the Bank’s operations.
It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by having
a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an
independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank'’s internal financial controls, operational and
compliance controls, and to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes. In 2023,
Internal Audit function promptly coordinated internal resource,
adjusted audit plans according to various business requests,
and promoted a smooth audit progress by applying technical
tools such as data analysis and others. During daily routine,
Internal Audit continuously concentrated on regulatory focus
areas, effectively completed thematic audits designated by

MEEAE, HITHITEIEMESEAFITHOL LTS, &
5IVEMINEENE, FELSRWRNDE, E#HEITT
ER R EFR S,

AREITHERTEERERMEEEELSR (R “RIRKLKEE
EEZRR" ) WA (BULRITASEITESD , UWRERA
MEITMHEHEN CENSIES)) BITIRR. 8FE, NEHE
THEMERIE “XRSE” BYEIT A ARER TR IR, H#
RIENHEFE TN ROEE NG, RIZERMETEER. 2R
FKAMBEARBERTIENMARFUREITER , #HitA
BEZRITNDZANAR S ERIIEEBRUKRER RS
RENNARFNESREABRE. ZHEINTISELIHEIT
ERSEHERT.

AE I EMRIBA T E A SHUAN A EIHT A RSHIT, B
FZIRBERN). FIFERS. KERTPETKREERITE
AR EEENERARTIHTHLE, MFHELRR. 7K
REFENTEEXEERHESS (WNER) DIRELHITER,
HWERFRTRMEEXR T I+, ARHITBLARTREEER
I AERER T, SMNERER T LU i E PR H AR R B L E I
FTREXHY G 4TI SRAEIE)R, WS R F LURILITN | iR
FEMHETERMNEER ] LIRERER,

regulators, and addressed to regulator comments in a timely
manner. For internal and external cooperation, Internal Audit
enhanced online and onsite cooperation with Group Audit,
strengthened collaboration and sharing with business and
support units, and increased communication with industry
peers, so as to promote better effectiveness and efficiency in
Audit activities.

Internal Audit performs its function according to the Internal
Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by
the National Financial Regulatory Administration (former
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission) and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks,
controls, management concerns and regulatory hotspots.
The audit scope covers all businesses, operations as well as
the infrastructure and applications of systems across UOB
China's headquarters and branches. The strategic audit plan
is annually reviewed and approved by the AC prior to its
implementation.

Internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the
internal audit plan approved by the AC, and carries out
investigations or reviews that may be ad hoc requested
by the regulator, the AC, the CEO or senior management.
All internal audit reports are provided to the AC, the CEQ,
relevant management and/or the Board (where required) with
significant issues highlighted. Internal Audit is responsible for
closely monitoring and assessing the follow-up actions taken
by the management on the issues raised by Internal Audit,
external audit and regulators, with reporting to the AC and
the regulator on quarterly basis.
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2023EEE S | 2023 HIGHLIGHTS

2023 F, ETERESRMEEEEIBNBEER, HITLHE
TARERITERASNODLEERNSIESIHT 7B 1HE
EXXTT. ZIESI2EESHITRR LIRS, 2EME
WIE, EEIREEERTEMAS, MANNEER,
BEMTRITEER. BEoSHBRE~REMITHIRE,

tesh, FABEFURREANIFER L BFNEE, X—K
S TE B S IR SR F SREL A TR

2023 &, RIEEREMEEEELREATNBEIIRITALE
BE, KT “RBWERKAMEESE - %" (FRTB-
SA) MIRGFAR, MANFMFRAEEDEZREER, A&
DAL Rt BNk &S i NEHnEE A AT EERAVEE
B, A 2024 EFRRAFITEETENEET XL E LR
BEFRDES. I, BIT RERBARSZ BITREN
FaCEH—P R T R Z i RENEE .

EXREERINESMESDT, KERITHERE 2023 FH
H—FHBRTRHERTNEXXCRIGHN—RIIEENES:
F2023F MBS BENTE—RBEIA “HHEITT BN
Mitls, EETNAEEXK, BHKtbEENXKRL,
UZHFHPEMARBERR—FAIRFENISEE, HEXRA
2023 EHTHINEX L Z 2MEE, 1tbsh, 2023 FXRBET
Risk Outreach IH, KEEEREANEZRAKRERITH
EXENDTRRRENXICSEE, F5RKANAKIENS1T
RAESEXRMAR, HITRMHIRPRBER,

-

Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our
risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our
stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating
business opportunities in a fast-changing environment. We
are committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance, sound risk management principles and robust
business practices to achieve sustainable, long-term growth.
We continually strengthen our risk management practices to
support our strategic objectives.

In 2023, in response to China regulator, National Financial
Regulatory Administration’s (hereinafter known as NFRA)
requirements, we released an internal guideline on risk
classification of financial assets which took effect since July
1°. This guideline sets out a comprehensive guidance on the
identification, classification and monitoring process of risk
classification for robust management of financial assets
of the bank, not only loans, strengthened asset quality
assessment in a more accurate and dynamic way.

In addition, we have strengthened our environmental risk
appetite statement with specific consideration on climate-
risk. This improvement aims to better support the Group in
achieving its climate commitment.

In 2023, we implemented the system enhancement of
Fundamental Review of Trading Book Standardised
Approach (FRTB-SA) to incorporate local jurisdiction’s
regulatory requirements based on new Capital
Management Rules issued by the NFRA and prepared to
calculate and report the regulatory market risk capital
under standardised approach in local currency effective
from 2024. We also enhanced our Trade Surveillance
monitoring capabilities with increased product scope
coverage for the wash trades monitoring process.

As part of our ongoing efforts to improve the risk culture
within the Bank and raise colleagues’ awareness on
how to balance sustainable growth , UOB China (UOBC)
Risk Management held its first annual Risk Forum on 8
November 2023 with the theme ‘Charting the Way Forward
in Turbulent Times' The focus was on managing risks and
inculcating a resilient risk culture to support sustainable
business growth for China and ASEAN in the years ahead.
The session included an award ceremony held for the first
time for the UOBC Top Risk Culture Stars. A 'Risk Outreach’
Programme was also launched during the year, and Risk
Management team travel to UOBC branches to showcase
best risk practices and to share case studies, as well as
new or updated risk policies, with branches colleagues
across the 4 Regions of China.
J

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS
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Maintaining A Sound Risk Culture

A strong risk culture is vital to the long-term sustainability
of the Bank’s business franchise. Specifically, risk culture
refers to the norms, attitudes and behaviours related to risk
awareness, risk-taking and risk management, and controls
that shape decisions on risks. At UOB, our risk culture is based
on our values. A strong risk culture ensures that our decisions
and actions are considered and focused on our stakeholders,
and that we are not distracted by short-term gains.

UOB'’s Risk Culture Statement

Managing risk is integral to how UOB creates long-term value

for our customers and other stakeholders. Our risk culture is

built on four principles:

» Enforcing robust risk governance;

+ Balancing growth with stability;

* Ensuring accountability for all our risk-based decisions
and actions;

« Encouraging awareness, engagement and consistent
behaviour in every employee.

Each of these principles is based on our distinctive set of
values that guides every action we take. In entrenching
our risk culture further across our franchise, we uphold our
commitment to financial safety and soundness; fair outcomes
and appropriate support for our stakeholders; sustainable
and prudent approach to business and performance based
on integrity, ethics and discipline.
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RIBRITHEE, QIS KHANE
Safeguarding our reputation in creating long-term value for our stakeholders
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Our Values
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Fair outcomes and

appropriate support for @ Sustainable and prudent
all'stakeholders

& R ay
Honourable [N Enterprising ENaEa) United
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RSN B 1ERY
ZKEHIN

LUR S BRI
Pk INIES S

Performance based on
integrity, ethics and

approach to business
iscipline

KLERRIGREMRPESIE
Maintaining a sound risk culture across our franchise

s B & @
RSB s & S
Our Risk
Culture i o
Principles BRI PL/ETE, TR IR, BRTARYERSI 53 T, BB EEHLE,
HRRRIER AR K R SSEa Rk MERSHERESR R EITIRL M —
GOVERNANCE BALANCE | ACCOUNTABILITY CONSISTENCY
Enforce robust Balance growth with Ensure accountability Encourage consistent
~ governance of risk stability in taking risk for risk risk-focused behaviour
- 2EXEERELR. - RIESIIE - IRIE=1EFR L, 1S BRI © ERERE
BEERRAE - EHRERE X ER53H THI LiRmiE C GSEEMRE
- BRI R L (RYF FRERBUH - XU T Y ER B - BAFERIA R M FERLE R
- RARAZHEENE P - BREBRHITOZ
R ER YR B FERREE . BWINERER - s
Our Risk - PAEE
Culture - Comprehensive risk - Open communication and - Clear ownership and - Tone from above
Components management framework, collaboration escalation through the Three - Leadership oversight and
P policies and processes - Regular risk reviews and Lines Model responsibility
- Well-defined risk appetite continual improvements - Balanced risk-reward - Clear articulation of
- Pre-emptive supervision remuneration principles and desired
- Independent control - Established consequences outcomes

- Frequent and regular sharing
- Ongoing training

- Individual’s accountability

TR, BRBIHEHNNER
Demonstrating our unique set of values through consistent behaviour

&
Jyi Committed
S

Our risk culture is embedded in our risk management
strategy across the Bank so as to facilitate ongoing
effective discovery, management and mitigation of risks
arising from our business activities and external factors,
and to use capital efficiently to address these risks.
Risks are managed within levels established by senior
management committees and approved by the Board
and its committees. We have put in place frameworks,
policies, methodologies, tools and processes that help
us to identify, measure, monitor and to manage material
risks faced by the Bank. These enables us to focus on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.
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Risk Governance

Our risk frameworks, policies and appetite provide the
principles and guidance for the Bank's risk management
activities. They guide our key decisions for capital
management, strategic planning and budgeting, and
performance management to ensure that the risk dimension
is appropriately and adequately considered. Risk reports are
submitted regularly to senior management committees and
the Board to keep them apprised of the Bank's risk profile.

UOB China has adopted the Basel Framework and observes
capital management measures on commercial banks
by NFRA. We take a prudent and proactive approach
in navigating the evolving regulatory landscape, with
emphasis on sound risk management principles in delivering
sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount
of capital necessary to support our activities. We review the
ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains well-
capitalised taking into account all material risks. Stress
testing is conducted to determine capital adequacy under
stressed conditions.

Responsibility for risk management starts with Board

oversight of Bank’s governance structure, which ensure that

the Bank's business activities are:

« conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

+ consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

* subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

Our Board is assisted by the Executive Committee (EXCO) and
Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) in the oversight
of risks. The Board also reviews the overall risk appetite and
level of risk capital to maintain for the Bank.

Our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has established senior
management committees to assist him in making business
decisions with due consideration for risks and returns. The
main senior management committees involved in this are the
Management Committee (MC), Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO), In-Country Credit Committee (ICCC), Operational
Risk Management Committee (ORMC), Consumer Rights
Protection Committee (CRPC), Risk and Capital Committee
(RCQ), Anti Money Laundering Committee (AMLC), Connected
Transactions Management Committee (CTMC) and
Information & Technology Committee (ITC). These committees
also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.
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KPE8IE4EH) | Risk Governance Structure

Management and the senior management committees are
authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business lines
and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is the responsibility of every employee in
the Bank. We strive to instill awareness of the risks created
by their actions and be accountable for the consequences
of those actions in our employees. We have an established
framework to ensure appropriate oversight, accountability
and management of all risk types encountered in the course
of our business.

Our organisational control structure is based on the Three
Lines model as follows:
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First line - The Risk Owner: The business and support units
own and have primary responsibility for implementing and
executing effective controls to manage the risks arising from
their business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and to
highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes and
unexpected risk events.

Second line - Risk Oversight: The risk and control oversight
functions (i.e. Risk Management and Compliance), and the
Chief Risk Officer as the Second line, support the Bank's
strategy of balancing growth with stability by establishing
risk frameworks, policies, appetite and limits within which the
business functions must adhere to and comply with in their
operation. They are also responsible for the independent
review and monitoring of the Bank's risk profile and for
highlighting any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to
the respective senior management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions from
business functions ensures that the necessary checks and
balances are in place.

Third line - Independent Audit: Internal auditors conduct
risk-based audits covering all aspects of the First and Second
lines to provide independent assurance to the CEO, the
Audit Committee (AC) and the Board, on the adequacy and
effectiveness of our system of risk management and internal
controls. The internal auditor's overall opinion of the internal
controls and risk management system is provided to the AC
and the Board annually.

RISK APPETITE

UOB China has established a risk appetite framework to
define the amount of risk we are able and willing to take
in pursuit of our business objectives. It ensures that the
Bank's risk profile remains within well-defined and tolerable
boundaries. The framework was formulated based on the
following key criteriar:

» alignment to the Bank’s key business strategy;

* relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

* practical, consistent and easy-to-understand metrics for
communication and implementation; and

+ analytically-substantiated and measurable metrics.
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The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across
key areas of credit risk, country risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, technology risk and conduct risk. Our
risk-taking approach is focused on businesses which we
understand and whose risk we are well-equipped to manage.
This approach helps us to minimise earnings volatility and
concentration risk, and ensures that our high credit ratings,
strong capital and stable funding base remain intact. This
way, we will remain a steadfast partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB China's risk appetite framework and risk appetite are
reviewed and approved annually by the Board. Management
monitors and reports the risk profiles and compliance with
the risk appetite to the Board and BRMC on a regular basis.

MATERIAL RISKS

UOB China's business strategies, products, customer
profiles and operating environment expose us to a number
of financial and non-financial risks. Identifying and
monitoring key risks are integral to the Bank’s approach to
risk management. It enables us to make proper assessment
and to mitigate these risks proactively across the Bank. The
table below summarises the key risks that could impact the
achievement of the Bank's strategic objectives. Details of
these key risks can be found on the following pages.

BAMN

Material Risk

(i

Credit Risk

MmN L
Market Risk

TREh XS
Liquidity Risk

AN
Conduct Risk

BRIERPG
Operational
Risk

EX
Definition

ERNRERTFERANZZNFLEBITIHRNER
B RNEETIEES Gk iab 9o

The risk of loss arising from failure by a borrower or
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when
they are due.

mPREIERFHEXA~NHINEERD (FINFEX,
LR, BENE, BaNBMNEEEENEN) LAR1T
SRR, BEERITICERINAMERNL, X2
BT AR L M SEEBEEAR SRR MR,

The risk of loss from movements in the market rates
or prices (such as changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and
credit spreads) of the underlying asset. It includes
interest rate risk in the banking book which is the
potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due
to changes in the interest rates environment.

MEENERIERIT L AR S RER SN EIUAGIER
FRB TR AT AN =18 KBRS AT BN,

The risk that arises from the Bank’s inability to
meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as
they fall due.

TARKRHRTFRITITATITHASMSBUER =L
ARFHER. WIS £ A E R AN B AR
EEARENRE, XUEENETERGEEERR
TITRIREERRE ERITAKEBRERE R,

The risk of improper employee behaviour or
action that results in unfair stakeholder outcomes,
negative impact on market integrity and other
issues that damage the reputation of the Bank.

RN IR AT E A RANAEERF. RTHIE
BRRERYE, URIMNIEAPMEMIRARNING, XEHR
KAJAVSRHEEHEBRKL, FIi0: FIEEXALT
EEERTERE. ARTRYEITHEOMMEZMmA
ITHRIEERM [ IR B RN, BRARSRENEMNEEN
[ BRGNS HEE S, BRIEREIFRITEENL.
EEEENL., HESMNL, ERXWL, FEXE,
SNELRES, SB=TTIRIME PR AN ERIERPL, EREE
A XU R A b 35 X Po

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Such loss may be in the form of
financial loss or other damage, for example, loss of
reputation and public confidence that will impact
our creditability and/or ability to transact, to
maintain liquidity and/or to obtain new business.
Operational Risk includes banking operations risk,
technology risk, regulatory compliance risk, legal
risk, reputational risk, outsourcing risk, third party
non-outsourcing risk and fraud risk but excludes
strategic and business risk.
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Through the Bank’s credit risk management frame-
work, policies, models and limits.

KTHIE T HINCERER. BER. XN ERIN
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Through the Bank’s market risk management
frame-work, policies, Value-at-Risk (VaR) models
and limits. Interest rate risk in the banking book is
managed through the Bank’s balance sheet risk
management framework and interest rate risk in
the banking book management policies and limits.

FTHIE T AR GNRBRBER#ITNRER, 88
BB ERAN XS PRE.

Through the Bank’s balance sheet risk management
framework, liquidity risk management policies, ratios
and limits.

BRI B ERENPLE IR, AEENFEIER, 254k, R TLRE,
PARZE. TATU, FH#. AFRZMRERTER
HEZR. BERMER SM A AHTER.

Through a multi-faceted approach leveraging
on the frameworks, policies and procedures in
operational risk management, internal fraud
management, whis-tle-blowing, employee
discipline, individual accounta-bility, code of
conduct, remuneration, fair dealing, and anti-
money laundering.

KTHIE T RENLEIRELR, B, EETARTE
ERREE, SEXRNITE BTG, BEREX
st BENPEAIRS. EENNTIR, =753
SVEL R BITE R BB R Do

Through the respective risk management frameworks,
policies, and operational risk management pro-
grammes including Key Risk and Control Self-
Assessments, Key Operational Risk Indicators, Incident
Reporting, Management Risk Awareness , Outsourcing
Risk Assessment, Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk
Assessment and Scenario Analysis.
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Business Risk

HRE XS
Model Risk

iR, sk
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Environmental,
Social and
Governance
Risk

E X
Definition
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Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective
negative impact on earnings, capital or reputation
arising from adverse strategic decisions,
improper implementation of decisions or a lack of
responsiveness to industry, economic or technological
changes. Business risk refers to the adverse impact
on earnings or capital arising from changes in
business parameters such as volumes, margins and
costs.

REX OISR T AT REFAS 2RI XD -

s ERTEERTEHINBIER, HIARERHHER
BOtEE (NEMEE) ;

o TR ARRIRA AT AN (IXLE
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This is the risk arising from:

* the use of inappropriate model which cannot
accurately evaluate market prices, or which is
not a mainstream model in the market (such as
pricing models); or

* inaccurately estimating the probability or
magnitude of future losses (such as risk
measurement models) and the use of those
estimates.

R, HERAEBNXSEHEH ESG R (EIESENE)
SIS, BEEANK, HiXE, RaptEX
%, TEEEVWSXR, HREXR, FERASE,
ESG REEANA B RFNEERRS, LAIHRTH
BRIEETHIEES .

ESG risk refers to financial risks, i.e. credit risk,
market risk, liquid-ity risk, and non-financial
risks, such as operational risk and reputa-tional
damage, arising from ESG issues, including climate
change. While a key component of ESG risk arises
indirectly from the finan-cial services we provide to
our customers, it can also result directly from our
own operations.
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og=g
How risk is managed

RIEE AN EBERHATRE N ERR, HASRE

BRESRNTEEE,

Through overall risk governance framework and
over-sight by senior management committees.

BEERMEBANLLEE THESEMEEERRHAT

g,

Managed under the respective material risk types
for which there is a quantitative model.

FTHIE TAEXEEER, BERMES| (BEERANRT
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The different aspects of ESG risk are managed
through the relevant frameworks, policies and
guidelines, including the Environment Risk
Management Framework and Responsible
Financing Policy.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when they are due. It is the single largest risk that we face
in our core business as a commercial bank, arising primarily
from loans and other lending-related commitments to retail,
corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury and capitall
market operations and investments also expose the Bank to
counterparty and issuer credit risks.

We adopt a holistic approach towards assessing credit risk
and ensure that managing credit risk is part of an integrated
approach to enterprise risk management. Integral to the
management of credit risk is a framework that clearly
defines policies and processes relating to the identification,
measurement and management of credit risk. We continually
monitor the operating environment to identify emerging risks
and formulate appropriate mitigating measures.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC support the CEO and board committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures and
serve as executive forums for discussions on all credit-related
matters. The RCC approves the Bank’s credit risk management
policies, and also reviews and assesses the Bank's credit
portfolios and credit risk profiles. The ICCC is delegated
with credit discretionary limits by the EXCO to approve credit
facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or counterparties.

The Credit Risk Management Division develops bank-
wide credit policies and guidelines and facilitates business
development within a framework that results in prudent,
consistent and efficient credit risk management. It is
responsible for the reporting, analysis and management
of credit risk to the relevant management committees. The
comprehensive credit risk reports cover business segments
at the overall portfolio level by various dimensions including
industry, product and country.

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

We have established credit policies and processes to
manage credit risk in the following key areas:
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Credit Approval Process

Credit origination and approval functions are segregated
to maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process. Credit approval authority is delegated to
officers based on their experience, seniority and track record.
All credit approval officers are guided by credit policies and
credit acceptance guidelines which are reviewed periodically
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank's business
strategy and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review
and monitoring, credit stress-testing, limits setting, pricing
and collections. The credit risk models are independently
validated before they are implemented to ensure they are
fit for purpose. The robustness of these rating models is
monitored on an ongoing basis, and all models are subject to
annual reviews conducted by model owners to ascertain that
the chosen risk factors and assumptions continue to remain
relevant for the respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Unlike normal lending risk where the notional amount at risk
can be determined with a high degree of certainty during
the contractual period, counterparty credit risk exposure
fluctuates with market variables. Counterparty credit risk is
measured as the sum of current mark-to-market value and
an appropriate add-on factor for potential future exposure
(PFE). The PFE factor is an estimate of the maximum credit
exposure over the remaining life of the foreign exchange (FX)
/ derivative transaction and it is used for limit-setting and
internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing
transactions are typically mitigated through agreements
such as the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
(ISDA) Master Agreements, and the National Association
of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII) Master
Agreements or Derivatives Trading of China Securities and
Futures Market(SAC) Master Agreements. Such agreements
help to minimise credit exposure by allowing us to offset
what we owe to counterparty against what is due from
that counterparty in the event of a default. We have also
established policies and processes to manage wrong-way
risk, i.e. where the counterparty credit exposure is positively
correlated with its default risk.
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In addition, derivative transactions are cleared through
Central Counterparties, where possible, to reduce
counterparty credit exposure further through multilateral
netting and the daily margining process.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure
or from multiple exposures that are closely correlated. We
manage such risks by setting exposure limits on borrowers,
obligor groups, portfolios, industries and countries, generally
expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s eligible capital base.
We manage our credit risk exposures through a robust credit
underwriting, structuring and monitoring process.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is a core component of our credit
portfolio management process. We conduct stress tests to
assess if our capital can withstand credit portfolio losses
resulting from stress scenarios, and their impact on our
profitability and balance sheet quality. Stress tests also help
us to identify the vulnerability of various business units and
enable us to formulate appropriate mitigating measures.

Our internal stress test scenarios consider potential and
plausible macroeconomic and geopolitical events in varying
degrees of likelihood and severity. These are developed in
consultation with relevant business units and approved by
senior management committees.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety of
instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. The Bank would generally not grant
credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided.
All requests for credit facilities are assessed based on the
credit standing, source of repayment and debt servicing
ability of the borrower.

The Bank takes collateral whenever possible to mitigate the
credit risk assumed. The value of the collateral is monitored
periodically and the frequency of valuation depends on
the type, liquidity and volatility of the collateral value. The
collaterals are mostly in the form of properties. Cash, marketable
securities, equipment, inventories and receivables may also be
accepted. We have policies and processes to monitor collateral
concentration. Haircuts that reflect the underlying nature,
quality, volatility and liquidity of the collaterals would be applied
to the market value of collaterals as appropriate.

When extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we often take personal guarantees to
secure the moral commitment from the principal shareholders
and directors. Corporate guarantees are often obtained
when the borrower’s creditworthiness is not sufficient to
justify an extension of credit.
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Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management
We regularly monitor credit exposures, portfolio performance
and emerging risks that may impact our credit risk profile. The
Board and senior management are updated on credit trends
through internal risk reports. An early alert process has also
been put in place whereby vulnerable accounts are escalated
by the business units to senior management for discussion on
account strategy and remedial actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We closely monitor the delinquency of borrowing accounts,
a key indicator of credit quality. An account is considered
delinguent when payment has not received by the payment
due date. All delinquent accounts, including revolving
credit facilities with limit excesses, are closely monitored
and managed through a disciplined process by officers
from business units and risk management function. Where
appropriate, such accounts are also subject to more frequent
credit reviews.

Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower's
ability to repay the credit facilities from their normal source
of income. There is an independent credit review process to
ensure the appropriateness of loan grading and provisioning.

All borrowing accounts are categorised as 'Pass’ ‘Special
Mention’ or ‘Non-performing’ ‘Non-performing’ or impaired
accounts are further sub-divided into '‘Substandard’,
‘Doubtful’ or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the guidelines of
regulator. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess of
the approval limit for a revolving credit facility) for more than
90 days will automatically be categorised automatically
as '‘Non-performing’ In addition, any account that exhibits
weaknesses which are likely to adversely affect repayment
on existing terms may be categorised as ‘Non-performing’
The accounting definition of impaired and the regulatory
definition of default are generally aligned.

Upgrading and de-classification of a 'Non-performing’ account
to 'Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be supported by a
credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows and
financial position of the borrower. We must also be satisfied
that once the account is de-classified, the account is unlikely to
be classified again in the near future.

A credit facility is restructured when a bank grants
concessions to a borrower because of a deterioration in
the financial position of the borrower or the inability of the
borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.

A restructured account shall be placed on the appropriate
grade based on our assessment of the financial condition of

WK EEIITHE M BIRR R SIS 5 MR TEERERHEIRE
EEEFTRKFAI MU REMBANEANFRERRFBHL
BEftfE. SEWHFIRBIANRESEHE R RERNERRIRIZR
BRRER, RWKFPAHRETIZHE.

BHREEE

RHAFEE (SAM) HBRAEH IR FRAXIIRITRI A AN A
HARNARAFHEHITEA, BEFER. WARKF#HITE
HEENBEEZETE RECMXLEIK, REM SRR ZOAMN
SEIHITEE, FRERHZUVSKAHEARE/SETR
TRRBIEII,

ERNE D ERFRERER
Loans by Classification

Far o YA
BRI E

Loans by Classification

IE& Pass

*x7F Special Mention
&k Substandard
AJ%E Doubtful

K Loss

&1t Total

(RITU S HMKIE D FHERBFSNHTH I SREMEIREND)

the borrower and the ability of the borrower to repay under
the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with the Bank's impairment
policy and regulatory guidelines after careful consideration
of the future recovery value including liquidation of collateral
of the non-performing account. A non-performing account
is written off when the prospect of a recovery is considered
poor or when all feasible avenues of recovery have been
exhausted.

Special Asset Management

Special Asset Management functions are in place with
independent units that respectively manage the restructuring,
workout and recovery of Bank's corporate and retail
mortgage non-performing portfolios. The primary objectives
are to nurse non-performing accounts back to financial
health whenever possible for transfer back to business unit
for management; and to maximise recovery of such accounts
that the Bank intends to exit.

ARMm (BATT)
Outstanding (RMB'm)

38,081 98.69%

221 0.57%

150 0.74%

84 0.39%

50 0.22%

38,587 100%

(For "Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region', please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report.)

2023 F K, FRERBITARM 2843 BA T, SRREH
EbB1 0.7%, BEBEE N 339.5%, WRKEERN 2.5%,
FERIT2023FE1500% K25 REHEEEKR™
(*2024 F_LAIEWFHIRIT I EBE K 51527 130.0% #11.8%)

BT 2023 S ERASEEMERRS, RITATNLRES]
BRI EHEER,

As at 31 December 2023, total non-performing loans
amounted to RMB 284.3 million, representing 0.7 per cent
of the Bank’s total loans portfolio. Non-performing loan
coverage ratio was 339.5 per cent and provision-to-loan ratio
was 2.5 per cent, meet the regulatory minimum requirement
of 150.0 per cent and 2.5 per cent respectively*. (*In 2024,
above mentioned requirements are adjusted to 130.0 per cent
and 1.8 per cent respectively)

Based on portfolio management and regulatory reporting in

2023, the Bank has no breach on regulatory Large Exposure
Management requirement.
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Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss from movements in the
market rates or prices (such as changes in interest rates, FX
rates, equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads)
of the underlying asset.

Market risk is governed by the ALCO, which meets monthly
to review and provide directions on market risk matters.
The Market Risk Management and Product Control (MRPC)
and Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) divisions
support the BRMC, RCC and ALCO with independent
assessment of the market risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank’'s market risk framework comprises market
risk policies, practices, and governance structure with
appropriate delegation of authority and market risk
limits. We employ valuation methodologies that are in
line with sound market practices and validate valuation
and risk models independently. In addition, the Product/
Service Programme process ensures that different risks,
including market risk issues, are identified and adequately
addressed prior to launch.

One of our main objectives in undertaking trading activities
is to provide customer-centric products and services to
support our customers’ business and hedging needs.
We continually review and enhance our management of
derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
Bank’s business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced with targeted
revenue at the Bank and business unit levels and takes
into account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits are
set based on expected returns that are commensurate with
the risks taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure
within the Bank and the Bank’'s non-trading FX exposures.
The Bank is mainly exposed to market risk in its trading
portfolios that arises from changes in interest rates, FX
rates and commodity prices from the Bank's client-driven
market making and product structuring activities as well as
trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital.

RITERERANEEZTEREERTHH N ELR, AR
REGEITENHERZWET XL, FITERSHHNLEE
KA 97.5% BEKE NNERFEAESIRAL (ES) HIAERIL
Fo BAEINAEMME, CRNEFRNEFRCEFERERN
TR OB MR E SRS R, ES RREMKRD ALY
B, WEBHEERATE-—EEKERITENEERK,

AFRH ES MEZENARRE, RITEBENMHLBERNIE, K
RITEENFELER IR BRI REHIMARK, XENRERDH
DRRERRHT RRATERES, UM AEERRImHR K,

172023 F12 A 31 HW ES AR 2,021 H7To

RN G, RITRARERENE 99% BEXIE TRHEKXK
i@ (VaR) o VoR 5 ES Bk N — B @il B th ik
RZMENRIES VoR NEZRKRIER T AR AEERERT
TR SEEPATETHANER, A RN & BREYE)E K
BRAEHFOREATAGRERR. £2023 FHEFES,
RHWEHI T R BB FISME.

The Internal Models Approach is used to measure and to
control trading market risks. The Bank estimates a daily
Expected Shortfall (ES) within a 97.5 per cent confidence
interval over a one-day holding period, using the historical
VaR simulation method, as a control for market risk. This
method assumes observed historical market movements can
be used to imply possible future changes in market rates.
ES is the average of the worst losses in the distribution,
assuming that the losses exceed the specified percentile.

To complement the ES measure, we perform stress and
scenario tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to
event risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of
plausible extreme losses.

The Bank’s daily ES on 31 December 2023 was RMB 20.21 million.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within
a 99 per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding
period. VaR uses the same loss distribution as ES. The
backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions
are due to model deficiencies or market volatility.
All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with
recommended actions and resolutions. Four backtesting
exceptions were noted for trading book in the year under
review.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

71



72

I Risk Management

X EIE

IRITIHC EF = XS

RITHCER KR PLHEH TR R AF B AT e SBURITEFNE
HEBERDEZRRBINL,

BRINBAHFHREZ PN T AR RERFHAR R E KR
¥Fo AF-AGRNEENRRNEMSENBIEEENNREEE
FRENSRE, MEEMNRKFHRZRHENTD, FISBR
TREFNENTHRE R FIERXEEENTEET
MEBESHFUNEFFRF, BIRRRTERRE. BE. IJ&k
BYEF BN ERIPHEHIRITARFEFNENIE K.

BFENHRERSATRENRNMERERNENE, SENK
R, ORIZMREAIH A, B RGN EERRMBEFRRER
KAOFENRITHCE TR RRPL, WRITUCERFI RN EIE
FTERBIETRBAERTNHRRNEMNHIRENE R, KL
IETRHARYIRITICE R S R EANHARREM, SihN AT HRELY
RIEMEZ VBRI IR WIS EIR, KA TR
MERITHCEN R XL #H1TERSRE AT AHRERRENRED
i, HAMRMAREBI™ @R, UHRRAE B XL & IR XS 1T
NERERSCERAFR. (FAXARITHKENG TRNLTE
FalIFERERENFSTTER. FHBREM ARSI XA
EmIR RN ET N R,

RITEREHEE shSEMR AT 2IRITIKP R R KR, @il

EREMREEXRARITICERN KX L ERN A LR—X LT
BRRMEHRERE, FETE2ENEFARREEE,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Interest Rate Risk In The Banking Book

Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) is defined as
the risk of potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings
due to changes in the interest rates environment.

We strive to meet customers’ demands and preferences for
products with various interest rate structures and maturities.
Mismatches in repricing and other characteristics of
assets and liabilities give rise to sensitivity to interest rate
movements. As interest rates and yield curves change over
time, these mismatches may result in a change in the bank's
economic net worth and/or a decline in earnings. Qur
primary objective of managing IRRBB is to protect and to
enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a
broad range of possible economic conditions.

The ALCO oversees the effectiveness of the interest
rate risk management structure including approval of
policies, controls and limits. The BSRM Division supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book. IRRBB is mainly managed by shaping the
desired risk exposure and tenor profile of the banking
book taking into consideration the overall balance sheet
position and market outlook. Behavioral models used are
independently validated and governed by approved policy.
The management and mitigation of IRRBB through hedging
are managed through ALCO-approved product mandates
with specified currencies, tenors and limits to ensure that
the risk management and hedging activities operate within
an approved delegation of authority structure. Derivatives
used for hedging banking book positions are designated
as hedging instruments where the qualifying criteria for
hedge accounting are met. Derivatives not designated in
an effective hedge accounting relationship are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss.

Our Bank’s banking book interest rate risk exposure is
quantified on a monthly basis using dynamic simulation
techniques. We employs a holistic approach towards
balance sheet risk management, using an in-house
enterprise risk management system to integrate liquidity
risk and IRRBB into a single platform to facilitate the
Bank’s reporting in a timely manner.
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Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods,
currencies and embedded options and interest rate basis.
Embedded options may be in the form of loan prepayment
and time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic Value of
Equity (EVE) sensitivity simulations, we compute the present
value for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in
EVE under different interest rate scenarios. This economic
perspective measures interest rate risks across the full
maturity profile of the balance sheet, including off-balance
sheet items. We estimate the potential effects of interest
rate changes on Net Interest Income (NII) by simulating
the possible future course of interest rates and expected
changes in business activities over time. Mismatches in the
longer tenor will experience greater change in EVE than
similar positions in the shorter tenor while mismatches in
the shorter tenor will have a greater impact on NIlI. Interest
rate scenarios used in simulations include the six standard
scenarios prescribed by Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision as well as internal scenarios covering historical
interest rate movement and hypothetical scenarios. These
scenarios cover changes in the shape of the yield curve,
including Steepener and flattener, parallel shift, as well as
short rate up and down scenarios.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management
of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial
market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest

rates, FX rates and equity prices are managed and
controlled under the market risk framework.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from our inability to
meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as they
fall due. We maintain sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
that addresses known as well as unanticipated cash
funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework
of policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO.
These policies, controls and limits enable us to monitor and
to manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources of
funds are available over a range of market conditions. This
is done by:

e minimising excessive funding concentrations by

diversifying the sources and terms of funding, and

* maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable
debt securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank's liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits,
ensuring that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that
there are adequate liquid assets to meet potential cash
shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is actively managed to
ensure a balance between cost-effectiveness, continued
accessibility to funds and diversification of funding sources.
Important factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive
pricing, proactive management of the Bank’s core deposits
and the maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed
on a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored
under business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash
flow mismatch limits are established to limit the bank'’s
liquidity exposure. We also employ liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency
situations. Our Liquidity Ratio (LR), High Quality Liquid
Asset Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR) and Liquidity Matching
Ratio (LMR) are above the regulatory requirements.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning
indicators. Crisis management processes and various
strategies including funding and communication plans
have been developed to minimise the impact of any
liquidity crunch.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or
from external events. Operational risk includes banking
operations risk, technology risk, regulatory compliance risk,
legal risk, reputational risk, outsourcing risk, third party
non-outsourcing risk and fraud risk but excludes strategic
and business risk.

Our primary objective is to foster a sound reputation
and operating environment. Operational risk is managed
through a framework of policies and procedures to help
business and support units properly identify, assess,
monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The ORMC meets
monthly to provide oversight of operational risk matters in
the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the
Three Lines Model. The Operational Risk Management
Division, as part of the Second line, provides overarching
governance of operational risk through relevant
frameworks, policies, programmes and systems. The
division also monitors operational risk incidents, key risk
and control self-assessment results, outsourcing and
third-party non-outsourcing matters, key operational risk
indicator breaches, product and services programme
matters and operational risks identified by the First Line.
Material risks are then reported to the relevant senior
management committees and the Board to ensure they are
promptly escalated and addressed.

Two key components of the operational risk management
framework are risk identification and control self-
assessments. These are achieved through the Bank-wide
implementation of a set of operational risk programmes.
Several risk mitigation policies and programmes are also in
place to maintain a sound operating environment.

Our business continuity and crisis management
programmes ensure prompt recovery of critical business
services and functions in the event of unforeseen events
or business disruptions. Scenario exercises are conducted
to test the effectiveness of the business continuity plans
and crisis management protocol. An annual attestation
is provided to the Board on the current state of business
continuity readiness of the Bank. In 2023, we have
conducted an integrated crisis management desktop
exercise initiated by Group, focusing on the theme of
liquidity, capital management and business continuity
management, to prepare the Bank for crises of such nature.
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Our insurance programme covers crime and civil liability,
cyber liability, property damage, terrorism, public liability,
as well as directors’ and officers’ liability. The programme
reduces operational losses through adequate insurance
coverage.

We adopt the Basic Indicator Approach for the calculation
of Operational Risk Capital.

The subject-specific key risks that we focus on include but
are not limited to the risks discussed below:

Technology Risk

Technology risk is defined as any potential adverse
outcome, damage, loss, violation, failure or disruption
arising from the use of or reliance on information
and communication technologies. The governance of
technology risk rests with the ORMC, which facilitates
a holistic oversight of operational risk matters across
the Bank. Our Technology Risk Management Framework
ensures that technology and cyber risks are managed in a
systematic and consistent manner. The scope of technology
risk management covers many aspects, including
technology asset management, technology resiliency
and the service continuity aspects of business continuity
management, cybersecurity management and information
security management.

The Technology Risk Management Division, as part of the
Second Line, has governance and oversight of technology
risk management across the Bank. The team works closely
with business and support units, including the technology
and information security teams, to oversee, to review and
to strengthen their current practices in technology risk
management. We adopt a risk-based approach in assessing
and managing technology and cyber risks. The Board,
senior management and the ORMC are briefed regularly on
technology risk appetite and technology risk matters.
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Regulatory Compliance Risk

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or damage to the Bank's
reputation and franchise value that may arise when
the Bank fails to comply with laws, regulations, rules,
standards or industry Codes of Conduct applicable to the
bank’s business activities and operations, or the risk that
a change in laws and regulations can increase the cost
of operation and the cost of capital for the Bank thereby
impacting the Bank’s earnings or returns. To mitigate
such risks, we identify, monitor and manage risk via the
Regulatory Compliance Risk Governance framework,
supported by policies, procedures and guidelines.

Sanctions Risk

Sanction risk refers to the risk of potential threats or
vulnerabilities that, if ignored or not properly handled, can
lead to violations of sanctions regulations and negatively
affect an organisation’s reputation and business. The Bank
is committed to complying with the sanctions laws and
regulations and do not engage in any activity involving
sanctioned individuals, entities, countries or territories,
subject to the extent permissible by sanctions laws or if
these activities fall outside the Bank's risk appetite. There
is no material change in the Bank’s risk of being subject to
any Sanctions Law.

Legal Risk

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable,
defective or unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims,
developments in laws and regulations, or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. Business and
support units work with both internal and external legal
counsel to ensure that legal risks are effectively managed.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank's business practices,
activities and financial condition. We recognise the impact
of reputational risk and manage the risk through the Bank’s
Reputational Risk Management Framework and Policy,
which sets the guiding principles for risk identification,
monitoring, reporting and mitigation of risk exposure,
and communication with our stakeholders. There are also
policies relating to media communication and social media
to protect the Bank’s reputation.
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Outsourcing Risk

Outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational,
reputational, legal, and compliance impacts arising from
the failure of a service provider to provide the outsourced
service or to comply with legal and regulatory requirements,
or a service provider's breaches of security. We manage
this risk through the Bank’s Outsourcing Risk Management
Framework, policy, procedures and guidelines, supported
by the outsourcing module in the Governance, Risk and
Compliance (GRC) system.

Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk

Third party non-outsourcing risk arises from arrangements
where a third party provides a product or service to us or
our customers. This risk could result in adverse financial,
operational, reputational, legal, and compliance impacts
arising from the failure of a third party to provide the
product or service, or the third party’s breaches of security,
including data leakages. We manage this risk through the
Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk Management Policy and
Guidelines, supported by the GRC system.

Conduct Risk

Conduct risk is the risk of improper employee behaviour
or action that results in unfair stakeholder outcomes,
negative impact on market integrity and other issues
that damage the reputation of the bank. We manage
conduct risk through a multi-faceted approach leveraging
the frameworks, policies and procedures on operational
risk management, internal fraud management, whistle-
blowing, employee discipline, individual accountability,
code of conduct, remuneration, fair dealing and anti-
money laundering. The corporate governance oversight of
conduct risk is provided by the BRMC and is supported by
the ORMC.
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Fraud Risk

Fraud is defined as any intentional act or attempt to
misrepresent, deceive, or conceal, by an individual or
by a group for a personal or business gain, or to avoid
a disadvantage. Fraud is not restricted to monetary or
material benefits. UOB China has a zero tolerance approach
to internal fraud, bribery and corruption, and all other illegall
or unethical dealings. We conduct our business activities in
full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The corporate governance oversight of fraud risk is
provided by the BRMC at the Board level and primarily
by the ORMC at the senior management level, supported
by Anti-Fraud Working Group set up in headquarters and
branches to drive and co-ordinate Anti-fraud tasks in
accordance with regulatory requirements.

The Integrated Fraud Management (IFM) Division, as
part of the Second Line, drives strategy and governance
and oversees the framework and policy of fraud risk
management across the country, which covers Anti-Fraud
tasks as well. The UOB China's fraud hotline managed by
IFM provides a safe channel to report suspected fraud. IFM
conducts independent fraud investigations and develops
Anti-fraud training and fraud advisories. The division also
works closely with business and support units to strengthen
its practices across the six pillars of prevention, detection,
response, resolution, remediation and reporting.
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Environmental Social And Governance Risk

ESG risk includes both financial risks, i.e. credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk, and non-financial risks, such as
operational risk and reputation damage, arising from ESG
issues such as climate change. While a key component
of ESG risk arises indirectly from the financial services we
provide to our customers, it can also result directly from
our own operations. ESG governance and control process
are put in place to identify and review ESG factors material
to the Bank, and ensures that sustainability factors are
considered in aspects of our operations (including day-
to-day decision-making processes). The specific risk
associated with each factor is monitored and managed
in accordance with the respective framework, policy or
guidelines.

Specific to our wholesale financing and capital market
activities, the Bank ensure that ESG considerations
are integrated into the credit evaluation and approval
processes. To this end, we have incorporated our
Responsible Financing Policy (approved by the RCC) a part
of the Bank’s Corporate Credit Policy.

Account officers are required to conduct due diligence
on all new and existing customers during the client
onboarding process and annual credit review. Under our
Responsible Financing Policy, customers are assessed
for material ESG risk, including alignment with the Bank’s
responsible financing exclusion list, as well as their
capacity for, commitment to and track record in ESG risk
management. Customers in the ESG-sensitive industries per
responsible financing guidelines are subject to enhanced
due diligence with sector-specific guidelines. All customers
are classified based on the level of ESG risk in their
business and are monitored on an ongoing basis for any
adverse ESG-related news. Those with any known material
ESG-related incidents would trigger an immediate review
to address the ESG risks appropriately.
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Strategic And Business Risk

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative
impact on earnings, capital or reputation arising from
adverse strategic decisions, improper implementation of
decisions or a lack of responsiveness to industry, economic
or technological changes. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank’s strategic goals.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or
capital arising from changes in business parameters such
as volumes, margins and costs. The sources of business
risk include uncompetitive products or pricing, internal
inefficiencies, and changes in general business conditions
such as market contraction or changes in customers'
expectations and demand. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank’s short-term business objectives.

The Board of Directors and senior management
committees are responsible for managing risks associated
with the Bank's business. The Executive Committee assist
the Board in relation to the management of strategic and
business risks. The CEQ, supported by senior management
committees oversee the day-to-day management of the
Bank and make business decisions within the Bank’s risk
appetite. The Bank's strategy is then translated into annual
financial targets, taking into account the macroeconomic
environment, and cascaded to specific business for
development and implementation.
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Ensuring Fair Dealing and promoting financial literacy
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In 2023, UOB China continued to play our part in corporate
social responsibility. With a focus on the vulnerable groups
particularly the elderly and young consumers, we actively
carried out various online and offline activities to promote
financial literacy and consumer rights protection. We took
some of most innovative approaches to raise consumer
awareness relating to fraud and improve their ability to
make informed decision.

In March, we tapped the consumer rights protection
month to launch UOB China Consumer Rights Protection
Metaverse. It is a virtual three-dimension digital platform
where financial consumers can explore advanced financial
knowledge such as the eight rights of financial consumers.
Throughout the year, we produced five micro films and
published 31 articles pertaining to anti-fraud and anti-
illegal fundraising topics on our official website, WeChat
accounts and external social media channels. Furthermore,
we have reached out to residential communities, colleges
and companies to provide financial literacy as well as
fraud prevention and privacy security knowledge to the
elderly, students and financial managers.

Our consumer rights protection activities garnered positive

feedbacks and our microfilms and articles won a number of
awards from local regulators.

uoB

A community outreach session on consumer rights protection conducted by our Customer Advocacy colleagues.
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Customer complaints classified by business segments
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Remittance
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Insurance products

ARMEE

Renminbi savings
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1
Mortgage 3

BIERIkFPEE
Account services

BEIEN
Wealth management products

PMALEEL
Foreign exchange settlement and sale

PAINCHES

Foreign exchange savings

EHith
Others
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We are committed to providing an independent, accountable
and objective process that address customer complaints in
a fair, transparent, comprehensive and efficient manner.

In 2023, we received 66 customer complaints, of which
58 were Retail Banking complaints mainly from Shanghai,
Beijing, Tianjin, Hangzhou and Xiamen branches and
eight were Wholesale Banking complaints from Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Chongging and Hangzhou branches. We
ensured all customer complaints were addressed within
the established processes and timelines and about 95
per cent of complaints were closed within 15 days. We
took an average of five calendar days to resolve each
complaint case.
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1)  Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited.
Shareholdings: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were

no split or merger activities or other

major corporate developments during
the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank's directors, supervisor
or senior executives was penalised by

the regulatory authorities during the
reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

e In January 2023, with the approval of National Financial
Regulatory Administration Shanghai Office, the Shanghai
Branch registered address has been changed to: Unit 102

(Floor 1 and Floor 2) and Room 1602, Floor 16 (Actual Floor

14), No 116 and No 128, Yincheng Road, Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120.

* In March 2023, Hangzhou Branch relocated.
e In May 2023, with the approval of the Board, the Legal
Representative of UOB China was changed from Mr Wee

Ee Cheong to Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan.

* InJuly 2023, Shanghai Jing'’An Sub-branch relocated.
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Head Office

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Areq,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Areq,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing'An Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Room 1POT1, 1P Floor,
United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jing'An District,
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366
Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xujiahui Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Unit 01-03, 30 Floor,
Grand Gateway Tower 1,
1 Honggiao Road,
Xuhui District,

Shanghai 200030

Tel: (86) (21) 6091 5788
Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3015

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade
Zone Sub-branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 408, No. 8, Gangzheng
Building,

No. 849 and No. 855
Huanhuxiyi Road,

Pudong New District
Shanghai, 201306

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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Branch Network I
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Beijing Branch

Unit 2701, 2707, 2708, 2709, 27 Floor
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8, 9, 10, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No 1 Section 3 Hongxing Road,
Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Kunming Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 2105 and 2106, 21 Floor,
East Tower, MASTER,

No 1 Chongren Street,
Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777
Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Guangzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Suite 3801, TaiKoo Hui Tower 1
385 Tianhe Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510620

Tel: (86) (20) 2881 34688

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch

Unit 06/07, 21 Floor,
Fortune Plaza Tower A,
No 61, Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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Shenzhen Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey 100,

No 5016 Shennan Road East,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688
Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiaomen Branch

1-2 Floor,

United Overseas Bank Building,
No 19 North Hubin Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208 and 2209,
RongHui Plaza,

Changjiang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 87017070

Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Unit 601&602, 6 Floor,

Bank Tower, Winland Center,
No. 350 Xiangjisi Road,
Hangzhou 310005

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619
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Chongging Branch

26F Unit 08-09,

Tower T4N, Raffles City
Chongging,

No. 2 Changjiang Binjiang Road,
Yuzhong District, Chongging
400011

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Suzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1801, Tower 1,
Jinghope Square,

No 88 Huachi Street,
Suzhou Industrial Park,
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200
Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Zhongshan Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1,2 and 12, 37 Floor,
Zhisan International Financial
Centre,

No 16 Zhongshan San Road,
Zhongshan 528400

Tel: (86) (760) 8770 7666
Fax: (86) (760) 8989 2900
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Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2024) Shen Zi No 70042513_BO1
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited:

(I) Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2023, the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited's financial position as at 31 December
2023 and United Overseas Bank (China) Limited'’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises ("ASBEs").

(II) Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China
Standards on Auditing ("CSAs"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited in accordance with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

(Ill) Responsibilities of the management and
those charged with governance for the
financial statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and

for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the
management either intends to liquidate United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's
financial reporting process.

(IV) Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with CSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are generally considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch

Shanghai  China

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

)

a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou, Mingjun

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yu, Liangyu

9 April 2024

Balance Sheet I

:NFZ 1EE

i} ﬁ 1

2023 %12 B 31 H 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

fHER 2023%F12H31H 2022 %128 31H
Notes V 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
&= ASSETS:
& R RERITRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1 5,272,223,492 6,466,567,706
nERE Precious metals 2,659,155,486 3,069,452,064
FRENFRI Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 1,582,601,736 2,754,411,843
FRHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 3,847,736,934 4,281,810,991
R ERAE Financial assets held for trading 4 5,044,798,336 1,837,337,491
TTEERAR Derivative financial assets 5 5,403,309,645 4,490,365,337
ENRESRE Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 6,597,500,278 4,096,388,908
RGN Loans and advances to customers 7 37,840,758,528 38,246,872,930
H g R Other debt investments 8 11,413,490,160 8,151,488,340
EEE Fixed assets 9 37,836,562 33,227,568
ERNE™ Right-of-use assets 10 105,610,643 28,709,172
TR HEF= Intangible assets 11 54,507,666 65,388,551
BIEFRISH A Deferred tax assets 12 390,653,834 237,172,755
Hithzz = Other assets 13 2,030,699,894 3,444,161,690
ARt Total assets 82,280,883,194 77,203,355,346
fafi: LIABILITIES:
E R EtERAATZERIN  Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 3,142,041,426 3,511,122,636
RANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 15 10,289,696,362 9,446,283,331
RS MEER AR Financial liabilities held for trading 16 2,827,366,352 3,499,822,350
TEERA G Derivative financial liabilities 5 5,456,157,045 4,547,848,726
U TERR Customer deposits 17 45,374,714,077 40,925,778,377
Rz BR T M Employee benefits payable 18 177,942,245 167,259,630
R 32 %t 2% Tax payables 19 238,438,982 166,327,638
IVARKGE2S Bonds payable 20 3,830,066,856 3,553,115,045
Fitfa Provisions 21 151,892,068 52,766,476
HERAGR Lease liabilities 22 99,734,875 26,276,656
Hithfa i Other liabilities 23 395,682,602 1,387,622,892
AFRAET Total liabilities 71,983,732,890 67,284,223,757
FREEN: EQUITY:
T Paid-up capital 24 7,500,000,000 7,500,000,000
A% VN Capital reserve 25 24,630,034 21,593,798
Htviza s Other comprehensive income 26 34,564,042 23,481,333
BRARR Surplus reserves 27 258,566,764 222,176,787
—REX PR General reserves 28 916,490,307 881,039,371
KO BFE Unappropriated profit 29 1,562,899,157 1,270,840,300
FrEENE AT Total equity 10,297,150,304 9,919,131,589
ARRAEENGRIT Total liabilities and equity 82,280,883,194 77,203,355,346

TGRS IR E 2N 55 1R 2 HIAE A AF 57

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

AN SIRERAUTALEE:
The financial statements have been signed by:

TEREEWNITE. EF . {77
President and CEQ, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan

HEWSEE KR %
CFO: Brian Zhu Xuan

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

93



94

I Income Statement

AIPEIES

2023 & E Year ended 31 December 2023

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

MHER 2023 & 2022 &
Notes V 2023 2022
—. WA 1.0perating income
FIEN Interest income 30 2,457,293,784 2,189,160,581
FEZH Interest expense 30 (1,259,319,588) (1,002,169,920)
FI B AU Net interest income 30 1,197,974,196 1,186,990,661
FEBERATWN Fee and commission income 31 201,233,271 231,938,574
FaBERAEZH Fee and commission expense 31 (43,644,444) (51,203,567)
FEERAEFEN Net fee and commission income 31 157,588,827 180,735,007
w i Investment income 32 652,614,534 386,484,206
NN RIS ES Losses from changes in fair value 33 (435,073,481) (250,334,720)
L5 las Foreign exchange gains 34 299,759,533 272,673,500
AR ERT Gains/(losses) on disposal of assets 97,712 (15,713)
Hitlas Other income 35 14,171,389 2,028,553
BN EIT Total operating income 1,887,132,710 1,778,561,494
—. Bl 2. Operating expenses
T R Mhn Taxes and surcharges (17,113,337) (15,892,617)
W EREEREE General and administrative expenses 36 (1,227,421,212) (1,092,045,518)
ERB{ERR Credit impairment losses 37 (160,610,053) (29,890,702)
ElZHEIT Total Operating expenses (1,405,144,602) (1,137,828,837)
=. EFE 3. Operating profit 481,988,108 640,732,657
e Bl MR Add: Non-operating income 134,836 134,854
B Bl Less: Non-operating expenses (960,492) (466,823)
. AR S 4. Profit before income taxes 481,162,452 640,400,688
R FriSHER A Less: Income tax expenses 38 (117,262,682) (135,390,174)
. OEFE 5. Net profit 363,899,770 505,010,514
7N HtE SR R4S 6. Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(—) THEEDEBAFEAIEML (1) Other comprehensive income that will not be
allE reclassified to profit or loss
TUBESERREARNE  Change in the fair value of the Bank's own credit 26 52,378 (216,484)
ki) risks
(D) BEDEHREMEMES  (2) Other comprehensive income that may be
e reclassified to profit or loss
UAANEITEEETEIT  Change in the fair value of debt investments at 26 7,369,699 (17,894,412)
NEMEEWERHRSTA  fair value through other comprehensive income
BARANELZE
UasEitEBEZET  Credit impairment losses of debt investments at 26 3,660,632 (26,442,880)
NEMEEWERHRS TR  fair value through other comprehensive income
BRERRAES
+. ZEWRESE 7. Total comprehensive income 374,982,479 460,456,738

TR S IR 2279 20 55 IR 2 B2 L B 57

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity I

FrEENmEr&

2023 £ Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

KU R BEAR HittZr e BRAR —RRLES ROBECFE ait
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Unappropriated Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves profit
income
KEFHRE Balance at 7,500,000,000 21,593,798 23,481,333 222,176,787 881,039,371 1,270,840,300 9,919,131,589
beginning of year
RERFETEE  Changes for the year - 3,036,236 11,082,709 36,389,977 35,450,936 292,058,857 378,018,715
(—) ZalkE (i) Total - - 11,082,709 - - 363,899,770 374,982,479
S comprehensive
income
(Z) FREERAN (i) Owner's - 3,036,236 - - - - 3,036,236
VS contributions
and reduction
in capital
1. B2t NFr 1. Share-based - 3,036,236 - - - - 3,036,236
BENGENEE payment
2. PTBEERANEA 2. Capital - - - - - - -
contributions by
owners
(=) #Ente (i) Profit - - - 36,389,977 35,450,936 (71,840,913) -
distribution
1. IREBRATR 1. Appropriation to - - - 36,389,977 - (36,389,977) -
surplus reserves
2. 12E—MER&E 2. Appropriation to - - - - 35,450,936 (35,450,936) -
& general reserves
REFERREN Balance at end of
year 7,500,000,000 24,630,034 34,564,042 258,566,764 916,490,307 1,562,899,157 10,297,150,304
2022 £ Year ended 31 December 2022
AE™ Expressed in RMB Yuan
KU HEA REATR Hittm el BRATM —RERLES KO BECFE &it
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Unappropriated Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves profit
income
KEFEYRT Balance at 5,500,000,000 18,674,334 68,035,109 171,675,736 878,275,849 819,094,359 7,455,755,387
beginning of year
AEHHEEHEHM Changesfortheyear 2,000,000,000 2,919,464  (44,553776) 50,501,051 2,763,522 451,745,941  2,463,376,202
(=) ZEalE () Total - - (44,553,776) - - 505,010,514 460,456,738
BE comprehensive
income
(Z) FREE®’AN (i) Owners' 2,000,000,000 2,919,464 - - - - 2,002,919,464
R DB contributions
and reduction
in capital
1. BRI NP 1. Share-based - 2,919,464 - - - - 2,919,464
BENGENEE payment
2. FiBE|ANEZA 2. Capital 2,000,000,000 - - - - - 2,000,000,000
contributions by
owners
(=) FE9E i) Profit - - - 50,501,051 2,763,522 (53,264,573) -
distribution
1REBRAT 1. Appropriation to - - - 50,501,051 - (50,501,051) -
surplus reserves
2. REL—M M 2. Appropriation to - - - - 2,763,522 (2,763,522) -
& general reserves
BEFRRI Balance at end of
year 7,500,000,000 21,593,798 23,481,333 222,176,787 881,039,371 1,270,840,300 9,919,131,589

JEHHI 55 IR M2 79 K 55 IR 2R HIAH L 55 57
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I Statement of Cash Flows

=

im@ﬂlb%%
2023 £ Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

MiER 2023 & 2022 &
Notes V 2023 2022
Z. BRENSENNERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEE el Cash received from maturity of investments 8,829,292,000 8,578,222,000
EVSIR R R I B I & Cash received from investment income 263,517,769 261,311,354
A BEEAEFMEAMKEIE~UWE  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long 600,620 410,112
K& term assets
SHERIE RN Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 9,093,410,389 8,839,943,466
BEMZIHNIE Cash paid for investment 8,908,000,000 5,680,000,000
WEEER=MEMKIAAS~SZT  Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long 33,627,327 23,570,659
B term assets
KEERIL R Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 8,941,627,327 5,703,570,659
KRR VIR E S Net cash flows from investing activities 151,783,062 3,136,372,807
=. EEFENEE /(FEB)NIEHRE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TR Wie 25 IR R IR & Cash proceeds from investments by others - 2,000,000,000
KITHRERRFBKRRINIE Cash received from debt securities issuance and 2,590,083,642 4,020,577,310
negotiable certificate of deposits
FEREDIERMNNIT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 2,590,083,642 6,020,577,310
RR RSN E Cash repayments for debts 2,360,000,000 2,240,000,000
DERF. FIESREMFESZGH  Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit 76,800,000 48,000,000
M and interest expenses
SHEMESEREEXNNE Cash paid to other financing activities 62,141,713 60,480,227
BEFME TN Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 2,498,941,713 2,348,480,227
EREEENIERE ST Net cash flows from financing activities 91,141,929 3,672,097,083
O, CEETHNUERNESEFNYH 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 115,368,638 396,335,485
=m AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
. NERMESHWREM /(B ) 5. NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 39 1,560,884,654 (446,783,274)
& EQUIVALENTS
m: ENNERNSENYRT  Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 14,241,012,334  14,687,795,608
7~ EXRRERMEFINYRET 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE 40 15,801,896,988  14,241,012,334

YEAR

MR 2023 & 2022 &
Notes V 2023 2022
—. REFEDTE /(FER ) WMERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FERARREBITIRIUR L ER Net decrease in due from the Central Bank - 456,990,512
IRHES RO Net decrease in placements with banks and - 597,541,374
other financial institutions
RGBTSR VA Net decrease in loans and advances to 355,956,748 -
customers
WUz AR R E b2 RM7E  Net increase in customer deposits and due to 2,764,221,842 3,117,275,075
TRFRITU SIS INER banks and other financial institutions
IRANEREFIEINE Net increase in placements from banks and other 1,055,944,358 -
financial institutions
IR B, FEBERMAENIME  Cash received from interest, service fee and 2,360,736,890 2,197,331,176
commission
N5 BENmFEH Net decrease in financial assets at fair value - 519,893,495
ERAF SRR through profit or loss
WH M 5EEEE XN E Cash received from other operating activities 2,539,018,354 1,109,388,644
FEFEDIMER/NIIT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 9,075,878,192 7,998,420,276
TERP SRR TR IE h0En Net increase in due from the Central Bank 643,360,937 -
FERR B L FRITUA S AN AR Net increase in due from banks and other 140,205,634 140,292,481
financial institutions
fiide ek s e Sy Net increase in placements with banks and other 312,142,500 -
financial institutions
VNG R Net decrease in placements from banks and - 9,629,771,201
other financial institutions
RIETRRABIRIE INET Net increase in loans and advances to customers - 522,960,845
SAFIE. FABERAEMIME  Payments made for interest, service fee and 1,013,445,190 803,590,093
commission
SZHARIRARTZANNE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 786,519,076 722,082,930
TR IR 2R Cash paid for all types of taxes 204,462,350 220,653,501
HRZEMMSFEMSRES#E  Net increase in financial assets at fair value 3,326,979,813 -
fn&n through profit or loss
T HEMSEEEEXNNE Cash paid for other operating activities 1,446,171,667 3,610,657,874
ZFEFENME R/ NI Sub-total of cash outflows from operating 7,873,287,167 15,650,008,925
activities
FEFENTE /(ER) BEEFR  Net cash flows from operating activities 39 1,202,591,025 (7,651,588,649)

BHE

JEMII S IR E 2N 55 1R 2 BIAH L A 77

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2023 £ [E Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

— RENEFRFER
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E) 7 ) BREAERITERAR (LUTEF “KERIT ) EF
e N\RHME LB RERITo

ZRPERTREEEEEZRZ UTHF “REERESR" ,
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2007 & 4 B 5 B#tAE, KERITIR (FERARHEMESNERTT
BIEEAFD) (CUTER “ (BEEKGD 7 ) « (FEARHXNE
SNERITEEEAILEAND (UTEMR “ (EEAN) ") 8
BXME, ELETEFRRERIRHAENIINERERIT —AE
®17 (PE) BRARE, HEEPERANAERIT LEDT.
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RERTT (FE) B2,

FTRERRRYESMANESRIFOIE, YHREEA:
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KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

I. General Information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as "The Bank" or "UOB (China)") is a wholly foreign-owned
bank established in Shanghai, People's Republic of China
(PRC), by United Overseas Bank (hereinafter referred to as

"UoB").

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation),
and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of
Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-
funded Banks (the Implementation), China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Committee ("former CBIRC" now
National Financial Regulatory Administration or "NFRA")
granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up a wholly-
owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai by
converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Xiamen Branch, Chengdu
Branch, Shenyang Branch and Jing'an sub-branch
(collectively known as "the Former PRC Branches").

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial
transaction from the former CBIRC (Institution Code:
BO308H231000001) and obtained its business licence
(Uniform Social Credit Code: 913100006694147236) from
Shanghai Administration for Industry and Commerce. The
registered address is Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual
Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor
13), Room 1601 of Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17
(Actual Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual
Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No.1146 and 128
Yincheng Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone.
The registered capital of the Bank is RMB7.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the
Bank are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as
approved by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of
business conversion from former PRC branches to UOB
(China) was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2023, besides the Head Office
incorporated in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 13 branches
and three sub-branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging, Suzhou, Kunming and
Zhongshan.

. Yml B

AN SIRFGBMEE (UTEF “WEE” ) fmn (bilks
HEN—2AEN) UNREEMERMETHEEFZITEN. M
FterE. MRUNREMBXME (GF Bl itEN” ) 4l
KM SIRERUSFSEE ENEMT IR,

BRI AITENBIESE

AMSH/EGERUZTENNER, AR, TEMRIRT &7

F 2023 12 B 31 BNMSRKRUK 2023 FEMEZERRMN
WEmE,

= EEHERM T

717 2023 FEM SIREPAHM SEBRBETIKEBREWZIHE
NPRHIEREE S ERMSIHE TR

1. 2itHAE

AN EEXBRHEE, ISFE1R1BEERA
31 Hik

PR N il

AATHNICK AL AR B AN SR AP R BRI AART,.
BRERRINERSN, BUARMITABMIERT.

3. MERIMEENY)
NE, BERATHEENSURATUMENBTFXONER; 0N

TENY), BREAITHENHARE. RoMR. ZTERAE
MEFWAE. METEHRELRNDEIRE,

Il.Preparation Basis of the Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises-Basic Standard and specific accounting
standards, implementation guidance, interpretations and
other relevant provisions issued and revised subsequently
by the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") (collectively referred
to as "ASBEs").

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

The financial statements present truly and completely the
financial positions of the Bank at 31 December 2023, and
the financial performance and the cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

lll. Material Accounting Policies and Significant
Estimates

The financial information presented in the 2023 annual
financial statements was prepared based on the following
material accounting policies and significant estimates
under ASBEs.

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is a calendar year, i.e.,
from 1 January to 31 December of each year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank's functional and presentation currency is
Renminbi (RMB). The currency unit is RMB Yuan, unless
otherwise stated.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Bank's cash on hand and deposits
that can be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

WS iRzRMEE
2023 £ Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

4. Sk SIS R

(4) Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency

FIELTEBEEELKT, WEERFHNEAEH. itak

FTWFRERIINNR S, FINH BT B IC KA T £ 5o

SR BIENEHIAN, RARZ X EBNBECERZIIME
P ERRKAUTEH FE~AHEERE, W FHHEDHE
HBEXAASAGRER B CRITE A= ENEENEH
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translation

The Bank translates foreign currency transactions into its
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in
the functional currency using the spot exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions. Monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
spot exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of
those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for the construction and acquisition of qualifying assets,
which are capitalised in accordance with the guidance for
capitalisation of borrowing costs. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using exchange rate on initial transactions,
and the amount denominated in the functional currency is
not changed. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is measured. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income depending on the nature of

the non-monetary items.

(5) Fixed assets

A fixed asset is recognised only when the economic
benefits associated with the asset will probably flow into
the Bank and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed
asset that meets the recognition criteria shall be
included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying
amount of the component of the fixed asset that is
replaced shall be derecognised. Otherwise, such
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost
of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase
price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition
for its intended use. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method. The useful lives, estimated residual
value rates and annual depreciation rates of each
category of the fixed assets are as follows:
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Useful lives Estimated residual value rate Annual depreciation rate

BRIRE Motor vehicles 54 - 20%
DRIEE Office equipment 3-10 & - 10%-33%
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The Bank reviews the useful life and estimated residual
value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method
applied at least at each year end, and make adjustments
if necessary.

(6) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined
according to the actual expenditure incurred for the
construction, including all necessary construction
expenditures incurred during the construction period
and other relevant expenditures.

An item of construction in progress is transferred to fixed
assets, intangible assets or other long-term assets when
the asset is ready for its intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

The Bank's intangible assets are software which are
amortised using the straight-line method over their eight
years' useful lives.

(8) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised using the
straight-line method.

(9) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition

The Bank recognises a financial asset or a financial liability
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
a financial instrument.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Bank's balance sheet) when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired.

(ii) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through" arrangement; and either (i) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised using trade date
accounting. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts
whose terms require delivery within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned. The trade date is the date that
the Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.

Claossification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Bank's business model
for managing them: financial assets at amortised
cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. All related affected financial assets
will be reclassified only if the Bank changes its business
model for managing financial assets.
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Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial
recognition, but accounts receivable or notes receivable
arising from the sale of goods or rendering of services
that do not contain significant financing components or
for which the Bank has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component due within one year, are initially measured
at the transaction price.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in profit
or loss, and transaction costs relating to other financial
assets are included in the initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Debt investments measured at amortised cost

The Bank measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met: the financial
asset is held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Bank measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met: the financial asset is
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income is recognised
using the effective interest method. The interest income,
impairment losses and foreign exchange revaluation
are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to profit or loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets other than the above financial
assets measured at amortised cost and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss except for the derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Except for financial guarantee contracts, commitments
to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate and
financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, the Bank's
financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, or financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in profit
or loss, and transaction costs relating to financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost are included in the initial
recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative
instruments attributable to financial liabilities) and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities held
for trading (including derivative instruments attributable
to financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair
value. All changes in fair value of such financial liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except for the derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge.
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at fair value and gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Bank's own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income. If gains
or losses arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income will lead to or
expand accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank
will include all the changes in fair value (including the
amount affected by changes in the Bank's own credit risk)
of such financial liabilities in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Based on the expected credit losses ("ECLs"), the Bank
recognises an allowance for ECLs for the financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component, the
Bank applies the simplified approach to recognise a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs.

Except for financial assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which apply the simplified
approach as mentioned above, the Bank assesses
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition at each balance sheet date. If
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition (stage 1), the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs by the Bank and the
interest income is calculated according to the carrying
amount and the effective interest rate; if the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but are not
credit-impaired (stage 2), the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs by the Bank and the
interest income is calculated according to the carrying
amount and the effective interest rate; if such financial
assets are credit-impaired after initial recognition (stage
3), the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs by the Bank and the interest income is
calculated according to the amortised cost and the
effective interest rate.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether
the credit risk on the relevant financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition. The
Bank compares the risk of a default occurring as at the
balance sheet date with the risk of a default as at the
date of initial recognition, to determine changes in the
risk of a default occurring of the financial instrument in the
expected lifetime. If the credit risk of financial instruments
is low at the balance sheet date, the Bank assumes that
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

105



106

I Notes to Financial Statements

Wt 55 R 2R Bt E
2023 & E Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

I ETRITATBMERRANS ERMRPIRZEE: @&
N —RFIDJEENERMMBENLTMARMNTIET. 55H
BHEMNE, ARFERSAGRER BTN H T UERNTIM LK
EHEMARENEXRIEFIL TR URRREFFRRT
M EEBEBKRIENER.

YW ERMAFTHRKRERERE NN —TH ST E
HRER, ZERABFHRNEREERRENERE .

YERTABEEMAER NI O WEERAE~SRMER
B, NMITERRICZEREHIKERT.

ERA T B

ERSHE TR, SRMB-MNERAGLUAAEIREENS
FERFAGRRAYIR. EEREEHASTREENT, B
BAEENF B EF A RITHY, HRILUSGER, HREEHR
ZERAFNBEZERL G

WHEEERERE, BERERSAZBRERRBRGSIAFRE
IR, KITARRZREANGEFEARMREZTNG
ﬂowﬁﬁﬁAHTW%ﬁMﬁ&F“ﬁﬁﬁﬁz,ﬁ? ERN
AnMETTEBRT ST A SRS SR A G SER
Aﬂ%,ﬁ%M“ﬁﬁAHTWW%mF&%mFﬁEEEﬁ
TEBOFER{E AR EE S A B IN S TN TR NTIA
RN ENRIHEHETENRIMENS EHTESTE,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

The Bank measures expected credit losses on a financial
instrument in a way that reflects: (a) an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes; (b) the time
value of money; and (c) reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the balance sheet date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

When there are one or more events that have adverse
effects on the expected future cash flows of a financial
asset, the financial asset is credit impaired.

The Bank directly reduces the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset when the Bank has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts; and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts
that require a payment to be made by the issuer to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial
recognition, at fair value. For financial guarantee
contracts that are not designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after initial
recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: (i)
the amount of provisions for ECLs at the balance sheet
date, and (ii) the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the guidance for revenue recognition.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly in profit or loss, except for

those related to the hedge accounting.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Bank retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, it either (i) derecognises the financial asset and
recognises the assets and liabilities created in the transfer
when it has not retained control of the asset; or (ii)
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Bank's continuing involvement, in which case, the
Bank also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the financial asset and the guarantee amount.
The guarantee amount is the maximum amount of
consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

(10) Repurchase and reverse repurchase financial assets

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
("Repos") continue to be recognised, and are recorded
as financial investments. The corresponding obligation is
included in "Repurchase agreements" Securities and bills
purchased under agreements to re-sell ("Reverse repos")
are not recognised. The receivables are recorded as
"Reverse repurchase financial assets', as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is
recognised as interest expense or interest income in the
profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method.
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(11) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals
acquired by the Bank for trading purposes are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair
value are recorded in the profit or loss.

(12) Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets other than the impairment of
financial assets and deferred tax assets is determined
in the following way: The Bank assesses at the balance
sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired; if any indication exists that an asset
may be impaired, the Bank estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs impairment testing;
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least at each year end, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that the asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and the present value of the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. The
Bank estimates the recoverable amount on an individual
basis unless it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the asset group to
which the asset belongs. Identification of an asset group
is based on whether major cash inflows generated by the
asset group are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset
group is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount by the
Bank. The reduction in the carrying amount is treated
as an impairment loss and recognised in profit or loss. A
provision for impairment loss of the asset is recognised
accordingly.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it cannot be
reversed in the subsequent accounting period.
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(13) Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency shall be
recognised by the Bank as a provision when the
obligation is a present obligation of the Bank and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the
Bank will be required to settle the obligation, together
with a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation, except for contingent considerations and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
not involving entities under common control.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation, taking into account factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money as a whole. Provisions are reviewed and
adjusted appropriately at each balance sheet date to
reflect the current best estimate.
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(14) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

"Interest income" and "interest expense" item in the
income statement of the Bank are the interest income
and expense calculated by using the effective interest
method on financial assets at amortised cost, financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation
of the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and in the allocation and recognition of the
interest income or interest expense in profit or loss over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through
the expected life of a financial asset or financial liability
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
expected credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts paid or received by the Bank that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, the Bank calculates the interest income
by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The credit-adjusted effective interest rate
is that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial asset to the
amortised cost of a financial asset that is a purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial asset.

For those financial assets that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets but
subsequently have become credit-impaired financial
assets, the Bank calculates the interest income by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a
diverse range of services it provides to its customers. For
those services that are provided over a period of time, fee
and commission income is accrued in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the service agreement. For
other services, fee and commission income is recognised
when the transactions are completed.
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(15) Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified assets for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Bank recognises lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

For a contract that contains a lease component and non-
lease component(s), the Bank allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank
recognises a right-of-use asset. Right-of-use assets are
initially measured at cost. The cost of the right-of-use
asset comprises: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability; (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date of the lease less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct cost
incurred; and (iv) an estimate of costs incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease. The Bank remeasures the
lease liability for the revision to the lease payments and
adjusts the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
accordingly. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis subsequently by the Bank. If the Bank is
reasonably certain that the ownership of the underlying
asset will be transferred to the Bank at the end of the
lease term, the Bank depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the
asset. Otherwise, the Bank depreciates the assets from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the asset or the end of the lease term.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank
measures the lease liabilities at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank
exercising the option to terminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of the lease payments,
the Bank uses the lessee's incremental borrowing rate.
The Bank calculates the interest expenses of the lease
liability in each period during the lease term using the
constant periodic rate of interest, and recognises such
interest expenses in profit or loss, except those in the costs
of the related asset as required. Variable lease payments
that are not included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, except
those in the costs of the related asset as required.

After the commencement date of the lease, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the Bank remeasures the lease liability at the present
value of revised lease payments upon a change in any of
the following: in-substance fixed payments, the amounts
expected to be payable under residual value guarantees,
the index or rate used to determine lease payments, or the
assessment or exercise of the purchase option, the renewal
option or the option to terminate the lease.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank considers a lease that, at the commencement
date of the lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less,
and does not contains any purchase option as a short-
term lease; and a lease of the individual underlying asset
with low value, when new, as a lease of low-value assets.
The Bank does not recognise the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for buildings and vehicles related short-
term leases and low-value assets. The Bank recognises
lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets in the costs of the related asset or profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(16) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can
receive government subsidies and meet the conditions
attached to government subsidies. If government
subsidies are monetary assets, they shall be measured
in the light of the amount received or receivable. If a
government subsidy is a non-monetary asset, it shall be
measured at its fair value; and if its fair value cannot
be obtained in a reliable way, it shall be measured at
a nominal amount. Government subsidies associated
with income which are used as compensation for future
costs, expenses or losses are recognised as deferred
expenditures and shall be recorded in future profits and
losses to reverse the related costs where the relevant
costs, expenses or losses are recognised. Government
subsidies associated with income which are used to
compensate the related costs, expenses or losses incurred
by the Bank are directly included in current profit and loss
or used to reverse the related costs. Government subsidies
associated with assets shall set off the book value of
related assets or be recognised as deferred expenditures.
Government subsidies related to assets are recognised
as deferred expenditures to be distributed over the useful
lives of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the
profit or loss by stages in a reasonable and systematic
manner. Government subsidies measured in nominal
amounts, shall be directly recognised in current profits
and losses. Where relevant assets are sold, transferred,
scraped or damaged before the end of their lives,
balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures shall
be recognised in current profit and loss on asset disposal.
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(17) Share-based payment

The Bank's share-based compensation programme is
measured as an equity-settled share-based payment. An
equity-settled share-based payment is a transaction in
which the Bank receives services and uses shares or other
equity instruments in exchange for settlement.

An equity-settled share-based payment in exchange
for services received from employees is measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted to the
employees. If such equity-settled share-based payment
could vest immediately, related expenses at an amount
equal to the fair value on the grant date are recognised,
with a corresponding increase in capital reserves; if
such equity-settled share-based payment could not
vest until the completion of services for a vesting period,
or until the achievement of a specified performance
condition, the Bank at each balance sheet date during
the vesting period recognises the services received for
the current period as related costs and expenses, with a
corresponding increase in capital reserves, at an amount
equal to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date, based on the best estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. The fair values of
the equity instruments are estimated using the Trinomial
valuation methodology.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based award
are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled share-based award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Bank or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award.
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(18) Employee benefits

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or
compensation given by the Bank in exchange for service
rendered by employees or for termination of employment.
Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits,
post-employment benefits, termination benefits and other
long-term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and
other short-term employee benefits are accrued in the
period in which services have been rendered by the
employees of the Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Bank participate in a pension
scheme and unemployment insurance managed by the
local government, the corresponding expenses shall be
included in the cost of related assets or profit or loss.

The employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity
plan established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The
Bank contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage
of employees' salary, and recognises the cost in the profit
or loss accordingly.

Termination benefits

The Bank provides termination benefits to employees and
recognises an employee benefits liability for termination
benefits, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss,
at the earlier of when the Bank can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits resulting from an employment
termination plan or a curtailment proposal and when
the Bank recognise costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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(19) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts, and temporary differences
between the tax bases and the carrying amounts of the
items, which have a tax base according to related tax
laws but are not recognised as assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax losses and any unused tax credits. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, in accordance with the requirements
of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Bank expects,
at the balance sheet date, to recover the assets or settle
the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available in future periods to allow the deferred tax
assets to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Bank has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities, and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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(20) Fair value measurement

The Bank measures its derivative financial instruments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, other
debt investments and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation at
each balance sheet date.

(21) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships
do not constitute related parties.

(22) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon
together with related undertakings to return such assets to
customers are excluded from the financial statements.
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(23) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provisions will be made.

(24) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities
at the balance sheet date. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements which
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Bank's business model for managing
financial assets. When determining the business model,
the Bank's considerations include the methods to
evaluate and report financial asset performance to key
management, the risks affecting the performance of
financial assets and the risk management measures, and
the manner in which the relevant management receives
remuneration. When assessing whether the objective is to
collect contractual cash flows, the Bank needs to analyse
and judge the reason, timing, frequency and value of the
sale before the maturity date of the financial assets.
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Characteristics of the contractual cash flows

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics, and the judgements on whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
including when assessing the modification of the time
value of money, the judgement on whether there is any
significant difference from the benchmark cash flow
and whether the fair value of the prepayment features is
insignificant for financial assets with prepayment features,
etc.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the future accounting periods, are described
below.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to assess
the impairment of financial instruments. The Bank is
required to perform significant judgement and estimation
and take into account all reasonable and supportable
information, including forward-looking information. When
making such judgements and estimates, the Bank infers
the expected changes in the debtor's credit risk based
on historical repayment data combined with economic
policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and
other factors. The different estimates may impact the
impairment assessment, and the provision for impairment
may also not be representative of the actual impairment
loss in the future.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

19



120

I Notes to Financial Statements

Wt 55 R 2R Bt E
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B Z SN A el

K TFHEFARRANGRERES ZINNIERDEFIEEE
FHEARRERENTR, MEAFMTHENLTIAS, &
SEHITHRENRIN, SEETRESRE, B TRENR,
HMPRERE~ 2R ES, SEFEERERAEIKEN
BEFRFTWER, #TRENR. SEFHNEFHNKENES
FAHREEH, BARNERELESREEFMITRFE
NERENNEPHREE, RARETHE. 2ANERES
AEZREEH, ZEQATRZPEMEFHEEHNNE
HAMBRBNHHNE, BRETERPBTZA~LENEE
BARE, FitRRNERENEN, BEBRHMEITIZINR
FHREFANTUTRRAERE, HERBLANITARHRER
FMERENIE,

BT IF T~

TEIRPIRER R BRI AT FRISEA LURAD A0 SRR E A,
RZEiFRA AR F B R A 0 SHBIAR R SR A~ XFH
EIRRIE AR EH k1 R RIS AT PR 1S ERAY RS [B) 7
T, BEWHELRE, LURENRIARBIEFSHRESR
T

THITREILAHE

NFFEERHINERIE, FIUERABRBTZHHRMN
WBERERAANE. NTFAFEERTINERIR, FITXA
HMERABERAANE HERARBESERAEELFER
RENEFRIEHAITOHIRZREANE. SREHR LA
ENHBERTAENYFAANMENRSRERTNES. 77
TRERT, MERRRIEEATHESH, AM, HRZH
HZHE, EEEFME SN ZNFIEE XL, BRI,
BXMEFFEELHGT. REAXREHNEUIWERTERN
DARMEFEFM,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets

The Bank assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for all non-current assets other than financial
assets at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indication exists.
Other non-current assets other than financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indications
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
the present value of the future cash flows expected to
be derived from it. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the assets. When the calculations of the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from an asset or asset group are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or asset group and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments
with reference to a quoted market price in an active
market or, if there is no active market, using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques include the use
of recent arm's length transactions, observable prices
for similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis
using risk-adjusted interest rates, and commonly used
market pricing models. Whenever possible these models
use observable market inputs and data including, for
example, interest rate yield curves, foreign currency
rates and option volatilities. The results of using valuation
techniques are calibrated against the industry practice
and observable current market transactions in the same
or similar instruments.

THTRAIHIA

TEMIEEBRZH, SMTEEERENSMESERMITARMN
BNE XN RIRM#HIT O SHIET, HIRED RIS R
ITHENBIMKSS A IE,

AN EEFHFIE

FITRAABAEEERFREAFTNERTERE A RENAIN
B, MEEEEMMEE, RTREMLZFINE, LUAIE
PMRENHEEEERMRNSETEM, AL, RIE
BEIER. FHEFERL. AEHNAEARETSEARLS
BFERNESEFNRHITIEE LS HE AL EEHRFIE,

25 U HEMIHEITEE

FIESHEELRITBERNSIHEITEE,

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
instruments for the transferred transactions entered into,
and make relevant accounting treatments accordingly.

Lessee's incremental borrowing rate

The Bank measures the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate. According to the economic
environment, the Bank takes the observable interest rate
as the reference basis for determining the incremental
borrowing rate, then adjusts the observable interest rate
based on its own circumstances, underlying assets, lease
terms and amounts of lease liabilities to determine the
applicable incremental borrowing rate.

(25) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

There is no change in accounting policies in the
accounting year of the Bank.
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.,

K IAFETERINEREIIRNT:

IER
Value-added tax (VAT)

WA RIS
Urban maintenance and
construction tax

BB M
Educational surcharge

BALPRIGHE
Corporate income tax

RGN ANFRISH

Withholding Individual Income
tax

IV. Taxation

The Bank is mainly subject to the following taxes and the
respective tax rates of the Bank for the current year are as
follows:

RZRIUINIZ 13% B 6% IR ZIT B IR, HARINR S A VHEINNH IR SN E T Sug EH.
VAT payable is the difference between VAT output and deductible VAT input for the current period. VAT
output has been calculated by applying a rate of 13 per cent or six per cent to the taxable value.

REFRBMBOREETRBT 7% 5o

It is levied at seven per cent on the turnover taxes paid.

R PREENBYREE TR 3% 1T
It is levied at three per cent on the turnover taxes paid.

FNAATHFRISEREY 25% 1150

Itis levied at 25 per cent on the taxable profit.

FITE MR ERNEE, BATRBARINEN AFREH,
In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on
salaries paid to its employees.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

B, WSHREZHMBKE

1. MERIFHRPRIBITRI

V. Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Cash and deposits with the Central Bank

2023 2022

EEE Cash on hand

FRARBITEEEESE - AR

Statutory deposits reserve with the Central Bank -

1,650,244 1,008,691

2,586,936,192 2,506,775,632

RMB
ERARITEE EEE - MM Statutory deposits reserve with the Central Bank - 535,965,845 488,694,872
foreign currency
FRPREBTINCXESS Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 564,652,742 48,723,337
FR AR REBEITHE MR Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,582,146,963 3,420,630,756
MitF 8 Interest receivable 1,345,445 1,406,092
BT RIBITRIURE & Less: allowance for impairment losses (473,939) (671,674)

&ait Total

5,272,223,492 6,466,567,706

RIEFEARBITNEXRME, FTLTR—ELLRGNERE
FEETHPEARRIT. F2023F 128310, &TARBRI
MFEEREHEFELLEI DRI 7% K& 4% (2022 F12 A 318: 7.5%
& 6%) o

MK 2015 10 A, REFEARRBTHEXNE, FITRAH
MINCRREES, SRR EAEME CENTHN—ELLHIEF
SNCRBEEE S, 2022 F 9 B 28 BiEg, INCRIGEE ST
EEBIER 0% JEEEZE 20%.

F2023F12 A31 HX2022F 12 A 31 H, ®ITHEBRFR
RITRIANNE—, RERK 12 NBRMAERRKITER
BEE. R (FLRTERAFRNEDEDE) (FEBRITRE
BEEEEZERS. PEARRTS 2023) £135) ERARSD
L2EHEFE,

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People's
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant
regulations issued by it. As at 31 December 2023, statutory
deposit reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at
seven per cent and four per cent (31 December 2022: 7.5
per cent and six per cent) of qualified RMB deposits and
foreign currency deposits from customers respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the
PBOC monthly in accordance with relevant regulations
since October 2015. The foreign exchange risk reserve is
calculated at a certain percentage of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding
month. The foreign exchange risk reserve ratio increased
from zero per cent to 20 per cent since 28 September 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Bank
included all deposits with the Central Bank in Stage |, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL). According
to the Rules on the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of
Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission and People's Bank
of China), all related exposures were classified as Pass.
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2. FRENL R

(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions
2023 2022

FRIERRITEN A E SR Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions

1

FERURIMRITREIL Due from overseas banks

jvangil)Sy Interest receivable

it Sub-total

B ERENREES Less: allowance for impairment losses
At Total

1,223,406,136 1,488,021,028

364,125,676 1,274,590,295

104,231 110,194

1,587,636,043 2,762,721,517

(5,034,307) (8,309,674)

1,582,601,736 2,754,411,843

FREREEENSTIEREMEEERZ/XTHLR (R
Tl ERAEER XN ERE) B9ER (EM (2023) 125)
EHAIHENEFEEN N REES, UKIRR 12 MAAE
FRRERIHRRR E TS,

F2023%12831B% 2022412 A31H, &TRE&HEK
B FRITA NN EE—, RERE 12 DA R ERRKITEER
BES. &R (BURTERAFNEDENE) (FERITRE
BEEEERZ. PEARRITS (2023) $15) EBXESES
KEEREFS,

3R AEE

Impairment provisions for due from banks and other
financial institutions represented the country risk provision
made by the Bank prior to the issuance of the Rules for
Country Risk Management of Banking Institutions (Jin Gui
[2023] No. 12) issued by the NFRA, and the provision for
impairment measured according to 12-month expected
credit loss.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Bank
included all due from banks and other financial institutions
in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on
expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month
ECL). According to the Rules on the Risk Classification of
Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1
of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
and People's Bank of China), all related exposures were
classified as Pass.

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions
2023 2022

IR EHIERETEL REME  Placements with domestic banks and other financial

Dk institutions
R & IR IMRITRIL Placements with overseas banks
RzitFIE Interest receivable

/Nt Sub-total

R IRRENRE &S

ait Total

Less: allowance for impairment losses

3,172,780,500 1,975,465,141

663,996,810 2,306,686,600

19,154,767 17,118,645

3,855,932,077 4,299,270,386

(8,195,143) (17,459,395)

3,847,736,934 4,281,810,991

FERENREEENATEIEREMEEERE/XTHLR (R
T ERAMER R ERNE) BNER (& (2023) 125)
EHAIHENEFEEN N EES, UKIZR 12 MAMEAE
RRRIHRRRE RS,

F2023F12 831 B&2022%F12 A 31 H, &I FEH
REMNNER—, ZHEKRE 12 NARTABERARKITEREE
o & (BIRITERAEFNROEDNE) (FERTRMREE
EEZERE. FEARRITS (2023) £15) ERALHES
BHEBH,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Impairment provisions for placements represented the
country risk provision made by the Bank prior to the issuance
of the Rules for Country Risk Management of Banking
Institutions (Jin Gui [2023] No. 12) issued by the NFRA, and
the provision for impairment measured according to
12-month expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Bank
included all placements with banks and other financial
institutions in Stage |, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12
months (12-month ECL). According to the Rules on the
Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks
(Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of China), all
related exposures were classified as Pass.

4. RZMERAET

(4) Financial assets held for trading
2023 2022

Uanmait@ BETRITA

LR R Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

A ERIT R Commercial bank bonds 1,970,846,350 471,392,980
BUERMRITR Policy bank bonds 1,280,977,590 280,748,530
FRRERIT SRR R E 5 Central Bank bills and government bonds 919,707,080 854,373,700
B 53 Government agency bonds 502,206,070 -
el f5 Corporate bonds 302,589,400 190,240,560
75 BUT 5 Municipal bonds - 10,048,770
RZi+FI & Interest receivable 68,471,846 30,532,951
ait Total 5,044,798,336 1,837,337,491

5 71EEmIA

TEERMIBEE MR~ m, ENEIRRTHEAKKBS
RN SR RISHEEMT 2NN E, BEXE Bt
FaEERE. AREm. fGEBN. BERHNIICRRMERSE,
FMTEANITEERTASETNAL. =8, B,

TEERMIENR X ETEEEAKH "Bt ZFHNER
e, FIMAEFRRREREFNED. ZEENMERKRT 21t
BEIRFTHITEESRTAENXEHOMIEARNE,

FITHERREENMBIEEAERTANTTESR T,

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another "underlying" financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
"underlying" financial instrument is a share, commodity
or bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest
rate. The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
swaps, options and futures.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at
the end of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging
instruments.
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FIFTEFAGRRBAFENTTESRIANT: 6. ENRES

Aol

\/
s
H

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank's derivative (6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

instruments are as follows:

2023

2022

BRZWNFHE: Clossified by counter-party:
2023 2022
. [k Financial institutions 6,593,098,000 4,097,430,000
KRN E Fair Value ARME Fair Value
R 2 Interest receivable 5,512,755 609,889
BXET #Hi= fafk BYUET - R
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities  Notional Amount Assets Liabilities R EEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,110,477) (1,650,981)
INCATETR: Foreign exchange ait Total 6,597,500,278 4,096,388,908
contracts:
— BEmOE: Classified by type of pledged assets:
IHAGYY Forward 8,127,915,989 124,853,777 63,973,079 11,960,636,230 139,073,831 183,620,933
=5 Bonds 6,593,098,000 4,097,430,000
=AY Swaps 186,921,533,538 1,566,046,976 1,572,744,639  195,883,926,169 1,916,354,954 2,070,114,617
RZHF S Interest receivable 5,512,755 609,889
BB AL Options 16,751,919,830 111,900,492 99,487,208  31,178008869  288,035992 211483135 ! recen
B REY : i i 1,110,477 1,650,981
it Sub-total 211,801,369,357  1,802,810,245 1,736,205,016 239,022,571268 2343464777  2,465218,685 Rl PR Less: allowance for impairment losses ¢ ) ( )
s
FIEGTETA: Interest rate contracts: At Total 6,597,500,278 4,096,388,908
HHAEY Swaps 231,425,964,451 1,050,283,398 1,057,313,452  205,223,694,107 865,770,067 867,001,612 L -
= P F2023F 128 31TH&2022F 12 B31H, XTEEEXEN  As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
N Sub-total 231,425,964,451 1,050,283,398 1,057,313,452  205,223,694,107 865,770,067 867,001,612 ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁlﬁ'ém)\ﬁﬁfﬁ_, EE;E;E 12 /I\H me«ﬁﬁﬁg}%?ﬁg&ﬁ' Bank included all reverse repurchose financial assets in

o Tg.  CO MmO dity EREES, & (FUETEHEERMHYENE) (hEET Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on
' contracts: FRISBESEERS. TEAREFTS (2023) &12) ExEF  expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month

=AY Swaps 2,490,756,996 33,203,262 32,841,333 3,505,836,561 96,445,053 95,739,664 KRS, ECL). According to the Rules on the Risk Classification of
HIALY Options 19,123,290 191,955 191,962 61,288,480 2,408,588 2,408,572 Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1
. of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
Nt Sub-total 2,509,880,286 33,395,217 33,033,295 3,567,125,041 98,853,641 98,148,236 , ;
and People's Bank of China), all related exposures were
BRENKEHTH:  Equity contracts: classified as Pass.
IR EL Options 428,395,070 489 232,788 485,125,475 127,428 148,756
S A4 o T b
it Sub-total 428,395,070 489 232,788 485,125,475 127,428 148,756 7. RISETRAERR (7) Loans and advances to customers
P Precious metal 71 BN AFeA DT (7.1) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and
RERITETR derivatives:
: corporate
THAELY Forwards 26,854,113,075  2,2221,919,956  2,389,300,873  22,864,249257  1,043,472,626 927,693,238 2023 202
ALY Swaps 13,196,123,558 274,814,967 229,516,417 7,932,222,061 129,821,593 151,898,075 — -
- P DUt A AT R AR Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
AL Futures 1,939,002,276 18,585,336 9,248,654 1,851,631,714 8,099,222 37,166,605
Nt Sub-total 41,089,238,909  2,515320,250  2,628,065,944  32,648,103,032  1,181,393441  1,116,757,918 DASGRAERRR: Retail loans and advances:
ERFTETA: Credit derivatives: B %15 Mortgages 3,304,531,853 4,226,952,758
H
AL Swaps 56,708,346 1,500,037 1,306,550 55,762,766 756,983 573,519 Hith Others 326,007 534,164
it Sub-total 56,708,346 1,500,037 1,306,550 55,762,766 755,983 573,519 At Sub-totall 3,304,857,860 4,227,486,922
VSR AR .
&it Total 488,211,556,419  5,403,309,645 5,456,157,045 481,002,381,689  4,490,365,337  4,547,848,726 Al BTN Corporate loans and advances:
BT Loans 20,348,804,529 19,372,438,648
BARR Trade finance 14,434,902,227 14,755,048,609
Nt Sub-total 34,783,706,756 34,127,487,257
A ETERET I NEM Loans and advances to customers at fair value through
REWNE ARG AR other comprehensive income 498,016,028 696,434,857

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

&if

Rzit#8

RIMERMBR DI
B RRUREEE
RIBERMERKENME

Total

Interest receivable

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

38,586,580,644

39,051,409,036

219,065,746 225,248,787
38,805,646,390 39,276,657,823
(964,887,862) (1,029,784,893)

37,840,758,528

38,246,872,930
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72 ¥l (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
industry
2023

TRERER 4]

Amount Percentage
Byl Real estates 8,118,216,166 21%
#EMSE Wholesale and retail 7,895,703,361 20%
S Manufacturing 7,428,544,904 19%
RIBIEH. CEFMEBELL Transportation, storage and post 2,692,435,975 7%
EEER.RHMESHEARIRS Telecommunication, software and information manage- 2,062,331,048 5%
N4 ment services
SRt Finance 1,527,581,312 4%
RMECE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 1,364,692,500 4%
EBEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,362,592,762 4%
FAEMESIRS W Leasing and commercial services 1,290,069,214 3%
PEHRRERE @R Health, social security and social welfare 713,797,689 2%
BAORDBERKESTME  Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 438,731,708 1%
Rzl
eSin4 Construction 343,216,136 1%
REARAFEARS W Scientific research and technical services 40,556,009 -
BRRS. BEMEAMARS Residents services, repair and other services 3,000,000 -
Es§=P4 Education 254,000 -
NG Retail loan 3,304,857,860 9%
&1t Total 38,586,580,644 100%
RZHFI2 Interest receivable 219,065,746

R AER S
B ERREES
RBETRMBRIKE HME

Total amount of loans and advances

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

38,805,646,390

(964,887,862)

37,840,758,528

2022
TRERE 14|
Amount Percentage
FEitE= Real estates 8,594,829,608 22%
HEMEE Wholesale and retail 6,053,170,947 16%
b Manufacturing 8,584,216,017 22%
BT B iEFIRRELL Transportation, storage and post 2,662,316,600 7%
EEEH. WG RREARRS L Telecommunication, software and information 2,250,934,397 6%
management services
ERtlk Finance 1,016,644,622 3%
RMBOE A Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 930,466,901 2%
FEEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,148,436,984 3%
AEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 2,338,700,051 6%
B4, HRREMT @RI Health, social security and social welfare 289,979,367 1%
B B S RoKEFIREN Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 528,541,197 1%
2R Construction 279,721,106 1%
BERRAZARS A Scientific research and technical services 98,310,000 -
BRRS. BEMEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 46,670,000 -
HaEW Education 984,317 -
N Retail loan 4,227,486,922 10%
ait Total 39,051,409,036 100%
AR g1} Interest receivable 225,248,787
RIETRRANBREER Total amount of loans and advances 39,276,657,823

e BIERRE S
RBERMERKENME

Less: allowance for impairment losses

(1,029,784,893)

Net value of loans and advances to customers

38,246,872,930

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

RBERMERKENME

7.3 IBtX 9% (7.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region

2023 2022
it North-east 746,880,410 743,909,523
LS East 17,377,636,785 17,140,263,060
et North 7,520,234,677 7,963,219,174
fern Central 1,329,940,276 1,750,995,723
=) South 7,298,190,784 7,241,295,369
il South-west 2,160,770,145 2,528,261,065
Bl North-west 582,885,032 532,885,807
RIMIX Overseas 1,570,042,535 1,150,579,315
At Total 38,586,580,644 39,051,409,036
RitF 8 Interest receivable 219,065,746 225,248,787
KIEIRABRZE Total amount of loans and advances 38,805,646,390 39,276,657,823
B RRUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (964,887,862) (1,029,784,893)

Net value of loans and advances to customers

37,840,758,528

38,246,872,930
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74 #BBRERAXDH (7.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral 7.6 BERIRLES (7.6) Loan impairment provision
orguarantee 2023 2022 R A E T EN AR RRUREESIRBARIT 12 M AM The allowances for loans and advances measured at amortised
=i PEANTZ4H = iR 2 EE) Spy i - [
RN Unsecured loans 8,623,923,156 8.778.356.548 %mnﬁ?m%&m NMESERTURERBRA D IR, REEENE cost are measured according to the 12-month expected credit oss
. Ul and lifetime expected credit loss respectively. The movement of
RIESTRR Guaranteed loans 7,434,791,211 6,680,893,819 ) . o )
impairment provisions is as follows:
RELERES /N Loans with collaterals 22,527,866,277 23,592,158,669
A Of which: 2023
izt Secured by mortgages 18,605,959,030 18,840, 151,008 E—ER EMER B=MER
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
Vigiir:td Secured by pledges 3,921,907,247 4,752,007,661
KK 12418 B4 BAGFLEH &it
ait Total 38,586,580,644 39,051,409,036 FRHRIZ iRk FHAE PRk FRHRIZ iRk
. . 12-month (REREERRE) EREF Total
Rzit#8 Interest receivable 219,065,746 225,248,787 expected  Lifotime expected  (BEERFRE)
R ETRAER SR Total amount of loans and advances 38,805,646,390 39,276,657,823 credit loss credit losses Lifetime
N (not yet credit- expected credit
. BRREEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (964,887,862) (1,029,784,893) impaired) losses
RIS BRI E ¢ E Net value of loans and advances to customers 37,840,758,528 38,246,872,930 (credit-impaired)
2023%F1H81H At 1January 2023 798,009,868 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,029,784,893
- BANBEZME Transfer to Stage |l (5,069,443) 5,069,443 - -
‘AH J%Iﬂ_ih
75 WA (7.5) Overdue Loan 2023 - BANEZME Transfer to Stage Il (15,141,621) - 15,141,621 -
-- B —MER Transfer to Stage | 40,500,470 (40,499,305) (1,165) -
BEATXE BT XE1H B EE3F WA 3 & . )
90 % &1 &3%) BLE &t AEHES (D Charge/(reverse) during the year (36,519,056) 6,553,054 74,010,452 44,044,450
Overdue 1day Over 91days to1 Overdue1 Overdue 3 years RERZEY Write-off - - (115,191,207) (115,191,207)
to 90 days  year (inclusive) year to 3 years above Total .
(inclusive) W B R EEIZ Recovery of loans and advances - - 6,090,028 6,090,028
previously written off
IRIEER Guaranteed loans ) . . - - S| Exchange rate difference - - 159,698 159,698
MIBIRYIETRR Loans with collaterals 58,708,180 131,778,492 50,954,925 67,741,599 309,183,196 20234128 31H Closing balance 781,780,218 28,675,846 154,431,798 964,887,862
B Of which:
Fiiziidprd Secured by mortgages 338,244 122,081,001 10,378,000 57,832,804 190,630,049 022
Vgt Secured by pledges 58,369,936 9,697,491 40,576,925 9,908,795 118,553,147 =L == S
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
&1 58,708,180 131,778,492 50,954,925 67,741,599 309,183,196 .
=i Total HK 1248 AL BT it
FRER(= FAIRR FLE RS FRERA= IR
12-month (REEERRE) EREE Total
2022 expected Lifetime expected (BX4EZRHRE)
credit loss credit losses Lifetime
BH1XRE  BEONXE1E GMIEE3F @ 3 & (notyet credit-  expected credit
90 X (B145) (&3%) Ut &it impaired) _ losses
Overdue 1day Over 91days to 1 Overdue1 Overdue 3 years (credit-impaired)
to90days  year (inclusive) Ve‘”(t.‘:l 3 Yo above Total 2022 €1 51 A& At1January 2022 801,848,305 75,054,473 88,325,299 965,228,077
inclusivi
-BANEZMER Transfer to Stage |l (1,097,507) 1,097,507 - -
N ; _ .
PRERR Guaranteed oans 17,147,694 117,147,694 -BEAEZME Transfer to Stage Il (13,987,923) - 13,987,923 -
MHE R BT Loans with collaterals 38,191,501 10,378,000 64,243,816 8,197,920 121,011,237 - BEEE—N R Transfer to Stage | 7,316,165 (7,316,165) - R
Hep: OFf which: AETHESH( Charge/(reverse) during the year 3,930,828 (11,283,161) 67,210,471 59,858,138
Recovery of loans and advances
HEPELTR Secured by mortgages 514,606 10,378,000 54,477,571 8,197,920 73,668,097 W B LA B4 EEAZ S previously written off - - 320,349 320,349
Vigii:tr4 Secured by pledges 37,676,895 - 9,766,245 i} 47,443,140 P S| Exchange rate difference - - 4,378,329 4,378,329
2022 %128 31H Closing balance 798,009,868 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,029,784,893
ait Total 38,191,501 127,525,694 64,243,816 8,197,920 238,158,931

BRI AT B 1 R EBIER.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related

interests are overdue for one day or above.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2023 £ [E Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

UARMETTEATT ANEMEERENRRETIRFIRELE  The allowance for loans and advances at fair value through 9. EE A (9) Fixed assets
ZARBBARIT 12 D B IHA S AR M BN E A EATEAS IR 95  other comprehensive income are measured according to 2023
HE R R SR . the 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected s . N
cred¢ 0ss respectively. The movement of impairment Motor vehicles  Office equipment Total
provisions is as follows:
Ein: Cost:
FENRE Opening balance 2,527,221 118,354,884 120,882,105
E—ER BEMER BEZMEE W& Additions 511,310 16,790,157 17,301,467
Stage | Stage ll Stage Il
WA EIRE Disposal or retirements 388,625 11,587,763 11,976,388
XE121MH BANFESA BAES it P ( ) ( ) ( )
TRERIE R TS Rk FRHRTE ARk ERRT Closing balance 2,649,906 123,557,278 126,207,184
12-month (REEERRE) (BREERRIE) Total . o
expected Lifetime expected Lifetime expected KitrIA: Accumulated depreciation:
credit loss credit losses credit losses - )
(not yet credit-  (credit-impaired) FHRE Opening balance 1,592,450 86,062,087 87,654,537
impaired) it Depreciation provided during the year 256,211 12,068,878 12,325,089
2023 %12 B 31 At31D ber 2023 280,322 \ - 286,282 " . !
023% 125318 ecember 80,3 5,960 86,28 =T Disposal o retirements (388,625) (11,220,379) (11,609,004)
2022%12 B 31H At 31 December 2022 711,725 204,933 - 916,658 R Closing balance 1,460,036 86,910,586 88,370,622
TREMNE: Carrying amount
8. HfhiEre R (8) Other debt investments FR At end of year 1,189,870 36,646,692 37,836,562
=) At beginning of year 934,771 32,292,797 33,227,568
2023 2022
Bonds issued by policy banks and commercial
BURMRITRERTTES  banks 3,605,000,128 2,178,516,610
PRIFITRERER Central Bank bills and government bonds 1,539,679,570 3,234,988,930 2022
kR Corporate bonds 1,460,098,216 250,204,560 BRI E hRIgE &it
Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
BN 5SS Government agency bonds 520,942,360 -
R Cost:
¥ FE ici 1226, ) N )
AR Municipal bonds 353,226,100 FYRE Opening balance 2,482,091 110,607,223 113,089,314
CNIZe) Negotiable certificate of deposits 3,653,348,550 2,407,915,513 WE Additions 413,343 11,452,783 11,866,126
Hith Others 180,258,990 - Transfer from construction in progress (Notes
FRIEEN (KBEHA. 13.3) V13.3) - 229,442 229,442
HM GRS R S8 Total amount of other debt investments 11,312,553,914 8,071,625,613 ) )
WEIRE Disposal or retirements (368,213) (3,934,564) (4,302,777)
RtRle Accrued interest 100,936,246 79,862,727 ERRH Closing balance 2,527,221 118,354,884 120,882,105
&1t Total 11,413,490,160 8,151,488,340 ZitirIR: Accumulated depreciation:
FENRE Opening balance 1,750,480 78,476,058 80,226,538
F 2023412831 BR 2022412 B 31 B, A{THLWEM  As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Bank iR Depreciation provided during the year S 11,210,134 1,420,277
R ERNNER—, BEKRF 12 MEATEIEAIRKLITER  included all other debt investments in Stage |, and measured g Disposal or retirements (368,173) (3,624,105) (3,992,278)
BEHEE. & (BURITESHAEFNKESEE) (FERITHEKR  the impairment losses based on expected credit losses in - i Closing balance 1,592,450 86,062,087 87,654,537
BEEEBEEZRR. FEARETS (2023) £15) BXALKS  the next 12 months (12-month ECL). According to the Rules
N N N . . . . . . WmEME: i
LLEAEEL, on the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial EHHE: Carrying amount
Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking and Insurance R At end of year 934,771 32,292,797 33,227,568
AEFEHMEEREPRIANFESETMAART 47361707 7t Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of China), all E3) At beginning of year 731,611 32,131,165 32,862,776

(2022 F: AR™ 6,451,237 75) , AELIEHIATMEMES  related exposures were classified as Pass.
WA NS IR ENFEEAART 32,023,622 75 (2022 £
AE™ 30,081,585 78) © The amount of gains recognised in other comprehensive
income in 2023 was RMB47,361,107 (2022: RMB6,451,237), and
the amount transferred from other comprehensive income to

the current profit was RMB32,023,622 (2022: RMB30,081,585).
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%S5 MTE

2023 £ [E Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

10. EAAEF

(10) Right-of-use assets

M. TR AR

(11) Intangible assets

2023 2022
RFGE Software
R Cost:
FHREN Opening balance 263,694,863 249,036,644
=y Additions 5,165,267 2,444,601
HEERIEEAN Transfer from construction in progress (Notes
(MPER. 13.3) V13.3) 4,680,297 12,213,618
LB Disposal (4,184,706) -
FERREN Closing balance 269,355,721 263,694,863
RithiH: Accumulated amortisation:
FRREN Opening balance 198,306,312 175,990,038
it Amortisation provided during the year 20,726,449 22,316,274
&E Disposals (4,184,706) -
FERREN Closing balance 214,848,055 198,306,312
TKEMME: Carrying amount
FR At end of year 54,507,666 65,388,551
F9) At beginning of year 65,388,551 73,046,606

2023
EERERY) TRIA &it
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
% Cost:
FHIREN Opening balance 55,263,323 3,999,488 59,262,811
AN Additions 128,824,584 3,163,580 131,988,164
FE[HL Disposals (8,626,229) (2,816,620) (11,442,849)
FERREN Closing balance 175,461,678 4,346,448 179,808,126
KitiI8: Accumulated depreciation:
FHREN Opening balance 27,932,114 2,621,525 30,553,639
REIHE Depreciation provided
during the year 53,518,733 1,567,960 55,086,693
AEFHD Disposals (8,626,229) (2,816,620) (11,442,849)
FERRE Closing balance 72,824,618 1,372,865 74,197,483
TEMME: Carrying amount
FR At end of year 102,637,060 2,973,583 105,610,643
f==)) At beginning of year 27,331,209 1,377,963 28,709,172
2022
EERERY EEIA At
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
RS Cost:
FRREN Opening balance 185,987,885 3,912,206 189,900,091
AN Additions 9,100,757 768,308 9,869,065
ARE R Disposals (139,825,319) (681,026) (140,506,345)
FRREN Closing balance 55,263,323 3,999,488 59,262,811
K418 Accumulated depreciation:
FEHREN Opening balance 113,079,236 1,942,219 115,021,455
AEHE Depreciation provided
during the year 54,678,197 1,360,332 56,038,529
FE[HL Disposals (139,825,319) (681,026) (140,506,345)
FERREN Closing balance 27,932,114 2,621,525 30,553,639
TREME : Carrying amount
FR At end of year 27,331,209 1,377,963 28,709,172
FH At beginning of year 72,908,649 1,969,987 74,878,636

134 RE&ERT (PE)BRAE 2023FERS
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%S5 MTE

2023 £ Year ended 31 December 2023

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

12. BIEFFIS A

FIERFAGRRPEERIAREEFMGHR A M EFIAREE
FRSHR A R LU S E B S 8 Rl T

(12) Deferred tax assets

The net amount after the offsetting of the Bank’s deferred tax
assets and liabilities is as below:

2023
BIEFRSHRF Deferred tax assets FUREM FEFNRE ~ FFEITNAEENGE FRRE
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses
SRR R IR on loan and placement 209,551,203 23,370,145 - 232,921,348
Allowance for impairment losses
Hith&rE T REES on other financial assets 15,422,355 (6,207,007) - 9,215,348
Pt ta i Provisions 13,191,619 24,781,398 - 37,973,017
UARMEHERETEITAE  Unrealised profit or loss of financial
i EWENEREFHARTI  assets at fair value through other
ik comprehensive income (7,190,061) - (2,456,566) (9,646,627)
Changes in the fair value of the
A B SERARKRER Bank's own credit risks 72,161 - (17,459) 54,702
Changes in fair value of
TEEMITAAANED SR derivatives (15,574,762) 45,140,371 - 29,565,609
H A aNEITEEETET  Changes in fair value of other
ANLEREMNESRTENARMN  financial instruments ot fair value
[ER) through profit or loss 17,961,276 63,866,219 - 81,827,495
Accrued employee salary and
FRER T T A MK & bonus 6,524,462 1,863,477 - 8,387,939
itttz Accrued liabilities 1,905,703 5,084,442 - 6,990,145
Hth Others (4,691,201) (1,943,941) - (6,635,142)
ait Total 237,172,755 155,955,104 (2,474,025) 390,653,834
2022
BIEFRISTRA Deferred tax assets FURE FEFANRE A FETANREENG FRRE
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses on
BIR AR RN & loan and placement 177,930,069 31,621,134 - 209,551,203
Allowance for impairment losses on
HivSmATREES other financial assets 22,723,914 (7,301,559) - 15,422,355
Fit e Provisions 11,527,754 1,663,865 - 13,191,619
DARNHETEREZEHITAE  Unrealised profit or loss of financial
AU ERIATHIRSEL  assets at fair value through other
Eizb comprehensive income (13,154,865) - 5,964,804 (7,190,061)
Changes in the fair value of the
BB {EANKREE Bank's own credit risks - - 72,161 72,161
FTESRMTEAANEZENRE  Changes in fair value of derivatives (58,742,734) 43,167,972 - (15,574,762)
HAsMEITEREZRIT Changes in fair value of other
ANZLEBRENESRTANARN  financial instruments at fair value
BT through profit or loss (1,515,980) 19,477,256 - 17,961,276
Accrued employee salary and
FRER T TR E bonus 4,861,257 1,663,205 - 6,524,462
it Accrued liabilities 5,991,797 (4,086,094) - 1,905,703
Hith Others (3,634,511) (1,056,690) - (4,691,201)
&it Total 145,986,701 85,149,089 6,036,965 237,172,755

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

13. Hth ==

(13) Other assets

B3 E
Notes 2023 2022
BREBIFH Precious metal lending 13.1 1,722,880,360 2.105,378,784
KERfE R Long-term deferred expenses 13.2 35,492,057 47,460,179
EEITR Construction in process 13.3 3,353,402 390,063
HABRIIKER Other receivables 13.4 252,733,378 1,272,960,442

FEAEH A G (B B AR
Hit

Input VAT to be verified and VAT retained

Total

16,240,697

17,972,222

2,030,699,894

3,444,161,690

131 R EFEH

RERIFEEAER D UL REBHITREL, F2023F12 8
31 H& 2022 %12 A 31 H, H®ITEREFAGRARESENEXT
H

LERARNMEHITIZE,

(13.1) Precious metal lending

The principal of the precious metal lending is settled in
physical precious metals. As at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, it was measured at fair value based on

precious metal prices at the balance sheet date.

13.2 KERFFHEZR B (13.2) Long-term deferred expenses

2023

HAEEARFHRZH Hith Ait

Leasehold improvement Others Total

FEYRT Opening balance 43,555,450 3,904,729 47,460,179

&0 Additions 2,210,309 - 2,210,309
Transfer from construction in progress

ERIREEN (HER. 13.3) (Notes V.13.3) 1,306,648 - 1,306,648

QKB Disposals (398,944) - (398,944)

P Amortisation (13,210,252) (1,875,883) (15,086,135)

FRREN Closing balance 33,463,211 2,028,846 35,492,057

2022

HNBEEZRFHRZH Hith Hit

Leasehold improvement Others Total

FERE Opening balance 52,381,224 3,667,656 56,048,880

g0 Additions 3,104,365 2,398,404 5,502,769
Transfer from construction in progress

ERIFEEN (HHER. 13.3) (Notes V.13.3) 2,582,509 - 2,582,509

HE Disposal (157,823) - (157,823)

P Amortisation (14,354,825) (2,161,331) (16,516,156)

FRREN Closing balance 43,555,450 3,904,729 47,460,179
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133 2T E

(13.3) Construction in progress

2023 2022

FHIREN Opening balance 390,063 11,760,356

Em Additions 8,950,284 3,757,163

BAEER™ MBER. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Notes V.9) - (229,442)

BANLRERE (HER. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Notes V.11) (4,680,297) (12,213,618)
BANKESEHER (MEER. 13.2) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Notes

V.13.2) (1,306,648) (2,582,509)

BANEEER Transfer to administrative expenses - (101,887)

FRREN Closing balance 3,353,402 390,063

13.4 AR WGER (13.4) Other receivables

2023 2022

RO B (7RI Other receivable and prepayments 282,976,047 1,277,366,086

REES Allowance for impairment losses (30,242,669) (4,405,644)

FERREN Closing balance 252,733,378 1,272,960,442

NBERENRNERCRENRHFEEREERI. NIRRT %
TREIMKES D AT F R4 T -

Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in the process of
clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is as follows:

T8 - Aging 2023 2022
1EA Within 1 year 254,275,723 1,247,319,424
1HEE2E 1-2 years 1,210,354 1,727,845
2EE3F 2-3 years 1,723,427 3,836,291
3FEMUE More than 3 years 25,766,543 24,482,526
/Nt Sub-total 282,976,047 1,277,366,086
B OREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (30,242,669) (4,405,644)
‘it Total 252,733,378 1,272,960,442

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

HA MW WRIRERARSR 12 D AT E BIRAA R BN FEITHER
KD FIHRR R EEER I T

The impairment provisions are measured according to the
12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss.
The movement of allowance for impairment losses is as follows:

2023

E—E EME E=ME

Stage | Stage Il Stage lll
BANEEHR BANESEA ait

KK 12 BIHAERGL FHMERIRK CRREGARE FHiERRk (BREEHRE
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected creditlosses  Lifetime expected credit losses Total

(not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)

FERE Opening Balance 4,405,644 - - 4,405,644
REHR Provision during the year 4,567,302 - 21,269,723 25,837,025
FRREN Closing Balance 8,972,946 - 21,269,723 30,242,669

F 2023 %12 B 31 B, xEEBE=MERIVBEBREEIERRT
B (BURTERASREDENZE) (PERTHRIOEEERE
ZRA. PEARRITS (2023) £15) EXEAZDLAR
AR,

As at 31 December 2023, the current year's Stage Il expected
credit losses arose primarily from debt classified as Sub Standard,
according to the Rules on the Risk Classification of Financial Assets
of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of China).

2022

HE—MER BIMER B=MER

Stage | Stage ll Stage 1l
BAEEH BAFSH ait

F3K 12 NATHBE IR TRk GREAEGRRE) FTHiEARK (BREEHRE)

12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected creditlosses  Lifetime expected credit losses Total

(not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
FXRE Opening Balance 1,638,030 - - 1,638,030
REIHR Provision during the 2,767,614 - - 2,767,614

year
FRREN Closing Balance 4,405,644 - - 4,405,644
14. Bk K E fth < B T REIN (14) Due to banks and other financial institutions

2023 2022

IBRRTE R A M ERAEER

RIMRITRL R Due to overseas banks
RZitFI S Interest payable
ait Total

Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions

2,921,313,429 3,256,042,641

217,212,698 252,253,487

3,515,299 2,826,508

3,142,041,426 3,511,122,636
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15. IFNE=E (15) Placements from banks and other financial institutions 161 IBERURANEITEEET T A ARG R 6 (16.1) Financial liabilities designated as at fair value
2023 2022 through profit or loss
AR AS T R RIIR N S Placements from banks and other financial 2023 2023
institutions at amortised cost.
BXEE a5 MnE
BRETEN Placements from domestic banks and other 1,267,067,500 1,597,670,749 Notional amount Fair value
financial institutions
LEMEFR Structured deposits 1,288,675,613 1,294,897,302
RIMRITENL Placements from overseas banks and other 1,224,174,550 1,689,211,480
financial institutions
Nt Sub-total 2,491,242,050 3,286,882,229
2022 2022
UARNEITEBETEHIT NLHAHRE  Placements from banks and other financial
L NG institutions at fair value through profit or loss BNEE N ME
Notional amount Fair value
BIMRITREIL Placements from overseas banks and other 7,783,532,139 6,151,309,352
financial institutions LETER Structured deposits 2,448,930,000 2,457,069,665
Nt Sub-total 7,783,532,139 6,151,309,352
RZHFI R Interest payable 14,922,173 8,091,750
0 = i
ait Total 10,289,696,362 9,446,283,331 7. &”yﬁﬂ\ (7 Customer depOS|tS
2023 2022
JEERTERR Current deposits:
16. RS MR R (16) Financial liabilities held for trading UNSIESS Corporate customers 20,410,081,449 17,750,864,364
iEp=S PAER Individual customers 949,911,830 960,008,942
Note 2023 2022
/Nt Sub-total 21,359,993,279 18,710,873,306
UAsMETEEETITANLER  Financial liabilities at fair value through
N AR G profit or loss: FHATEER Time deposits:
S BRI Repurchase agreements 1,532,469,050 1,042,752,685 REER Corporate customers 21,982,941,474 22,647,550,072
Nt Sub-total 1,532,469,050 1,042,752,685 N Individual customers 2,866,916,982 1,717,436,514
EERUAANET BB E T Nt Sub-total 24,849,858,456 24,364,986,586
ANZHIRHE N SR AR (HE R, Financial liabilities designated at fair value . . . ) : ) )
16.1) through profit or loss (Notes V.16.1) 161 1,294,897,302 2,457,069,665 Hep: EENUAAMENTBEHEHH  Including: Deposits recognised at fair value
NSERERIER (MEER. 1671) through profit or loss (Notes V.16.1) (1,294,897,302) (2,457,069,665)
it Sub-total 1,294,897,302 2,457,069,665 .
it Sub-total (1,294,897,302) (2,457,069,665)
ait Total 2,827,366,352 3,499,822,350 RZHHFIE Interest payable 459,759,644 306,988,150
ait Total 45,374,714,077 40,925,778,377

HZE2023F12A3THIEFEER2022F12831HIEEE, 41738 For the year ended 31 December 2023 and the year ended
R LA ANMET B EETH A LR S B A A 31 December 2022, there were no significant changes in

. N ) the fair value of financial liabilities designated as at fair
EAREAEHESERANNENSBERER, value through profit or loss that were arising from the Bank's

own credit risk change.
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2023 £ [E Year ended 31 December 2023
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18. RZ{FHR THrE

(18) Employee benefits payable

20. NfHREF

(20) Bonds payable

2023 2022

SRR Financial bond

ZREARER Tier-two capital bond

[EINIZE:] Negotiable certificates of deposit
ait Total

1,008,881,147 1,008,207,443

1,004,884,918 1,004,325,682

1,816,300,791 1,540,581,920

3,830,066,856 3,553,115,045

F 2023512 B 31 B, MAERSFRETIRNT:

As at 31 December 2023, the amount of bonds payable is
listed below:

RiTHHA fEISFHAMR RITEH ERTT AEHRAE  AERE /ZEFS FERRE

Issue date Tenor Issue amount Issue amount Accrued Repayment Closing balance
during the year interest

2019/11/15 10 £ (10 years) 1,000,000,000 - 47,984,550 (48,000,000) 1,004,884,918

2022/08/24 3 £ (Three years) 1,000,000,000 - 28,772,405 (28,800,000) 1,008,881,147

2023

FNRG AEIEM AREF R FERRT

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

TH. B ZILMNE Salary, bonus, allowance and subsidy 143,870,769 625,665,161 618,725,027 150,810,903

R Social insurance 2,431,173 30,676,145 30,338,964 2,768,354

FEARE Housing fund 11,338 33,070,133 33,081,471 -

ITKBENMIMNTIHEELE Labour union expenditure and staff - 3,813,434 3,813,434 -
education fee

Hahig HFrN Other short-term benefits - 16,395,703 16,395,703 -

/Nt Sub-total 146,313,280 709,620,576 702,354,599 153,579,257

BRI Defined contribution plan 20,946,350 76,898,415 73,481,777 24,362,988

Hrp: BEAFERKNLE Including: Pension fund 4,547,686 45,938,763 45,424,507 5,061,942

il FEE5ZE Annuity 16,398,664 30,959,652 28,057,270 19,301,046

ait Total 167,259,630 786,518,991 775,836,376 177,942,245

2022

FYRG AEEIEN AERHLD FERRT

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

T&. BH. 2L Salary, bonus, allowance and subsidy 131,192,966 578,020,480 565,342,677 143,870,769

HEREE Social insurance 2,457,510 28,846,047 28,872,384 2,431,173

FEEARE Housing fund - 30,182,542 30,171,204 11,338

TITREFMRITHELEY Labour union expenditure and staff - 3,164,389 3,164,389 -
education fee

E i HREEN Other short-term benefits - 18,585,880 18,585,880 -

/Nt Sub-total 133,650,476 658,799,338 646,136,534 146,313,280

EERFIT Defined contribution plan 21,986,159 64,535,627 65,575,436 20,946,350

Hrep: EAFERIGZE Including: Pension fund 4,256,560 42,149,240 41,858,114 4,547,686

DA EE e Annuity 17,729,599 22,386,387 23,717,322 16,398,664

&it Total 155,636,635 723,334,965 711,711,970 167,259,630

19. R Hi 2k (19) Tax payables

2023 2022

ILER Value added tax 26,814,985 35,270,509

NGz Tax surcharges 3,272,155 3,099,704

AVFRISHE Corporate income tax 167,804,476 97,828,829

RAD BB Withholding tax 40,088,752 29,259,489

Hith Others 458,614 869,107

‘it Total 238,438,982 166,327,638

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

2019 FE 11 B 15 HEITHWE—BZREXRETFT 10 FHEE
FRfGEE, EEAART 100 T, EE@HERN 4.8%, SEMLE
—Ro BITEHEBEXRFZFHTENERES 5 FREEERA
— MBS B2 BRIl A HA R 35

2022 £ 8 A 24 BARTTHNE—HEMERET 3 FHEEHEME
7%, HEANARM 100 7T, BEEMEN 2.88%, BEME—Ro.
TPGFFHEAETHESF RN @ LT AEZREF R
RS

KTTF 2023 FEE2ERITETHRTISPARTRLEE,
EEHNART 100 7T, WHEKIT.

KT HRFREHIMEREE. FIE, HEERIMBELIE .

The tier-two capital bond issued on 15 November 2019 is
a 10-year bond with RMB100 par value and interest is paid
annually at a fixed rate of 4.8 per cent per annum. The bond
is redeemable at par at the option of the Bank, in part or
in whole, at the end of the 5th year subject to the relevant
conditions.

The financial bond issued on 24 August 2022 is a 3-year bond
with RMB100 par value and interest is paid annually at a
fixed rate of 2.88 per cent per annum. The bond holder does
not have the right to redeem the bond before maturity.

15 negotiable certificates of deposit were issued in 2023. The
par value was RMB100 and the interest rate was zero.

The Bank did not default on any principal, interest or
redemption amounts with respect to its bonds payable.
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21. it fafk

(21) Provisions

22. B AR

(22) Lease liability

2023 2022 2023 2022
ERARERSIBERRERES: Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and ERKERY Properties and buildings 96,665,619 24,823,558
financial guarantee contracts:
TRIA Motor vehicles 3,069,256 1,453,098
FHREN Opening balance 52,766,476 46,111,016
ait Total 99,734,875 26,276,656
ZREEIE N Increase during the year 99,125,592 6,655,460
FERREN Closing balance 151,892,068 52,766,476
. N o . 23. Hfthtafix (23) Other liabilities
ERAE RV SEERRE 12 MNETEAERRARENELEEM  The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments
HERARKITRBEES, BREESHNEHNT: and financial guarantee contracts are measured according 2023 2022
to the 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected
credit loss. The movement of allowance for impairment losses el Settlement and clearing 207,266,961 1,279,377,011
are as follows: RS I T RARS 2 IT system service fee 110,296,653 60,104,899
2023 hiitrazdze] Accrued expense 34,144,858 28,915,723
HE—ME BEZMER BEMER HIEEM Renovation payable 696,072 1,541,457
Stage | Stage Il Stage lll
*k1248 BANFSHRTER S IR BAFSEITER E AR &it Hith Others 43,278,058 17,683,802
FREA(S ARk CREREERRE) (BRERERRIE)
12-month Lifetime expected  Lifetime expected credit losses Total ait Totall 395,682,602 1,387,622,892
expected credit loss (credit-impaired)
credit loss (not yet credit-impaired)
FORT Opening balance 42,890,068 8,237 9,868,171 52,766,476 24. SEWERZAR (24) Paid-up capital
EEITE Accrue during the year 78,496,334 14,044,160 6,585,098 99,125,592 SR SR Paid-up capital 2023 2022
FRREN Closing balance 121,386,402 14,052,397 16,453,269 151,892,068 =EARE =EARE
RMB equivalent % RMB equivalent %
2022 KERTEMRAT  United Overseas Bank Limited 7,500,000,000 100 7,500,000,000 100
— RN —_— —
%gmli;f% ftgg’fﬁ sﬁfo_ﬁfﬁ ERRBAACHLKERSITMES EHEBEK) LB  The above paid-up capital has been verified by Ernst & Young
kK 1248 AR E ARk BANFERTERE iRk &3t DETELR, FF2022F 18 24 HHAT RK4EH (2022) Lnis2 Hua /\/\ing LLP Shonghci Branch with Ernst & Young Hua I\/\ing
FREB(S ARk (RREERRIE) (BREZERME) % 60658622 _B01 SR AR, (2022) Yan Zi No. 60658622_BO1 capital verification report
12-month Lifetime expected  Lifetime expected credit losses Total issued on 24 January 2022
expected credit loss (credit-impaired) Y :
credit loss (not yet credit-impaired)
FXRE Opening balance 41,895,339 735,506 3,480,171 46,111,016 R '
25. BAATR (25) Capital reserves
Accrue
12 ing th 994,729 727,269 6,388,000 6,655,460 N PN o e . .
HFIHIR/ORED) - [reverse) during the year ' (r27,269) BRNTRRARBITHRENR LIRSS, LHEAIRMGZGTRIT, B In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-
FERRT Closing balance 42,890,068 8,237 9,868,171 52,766,476 mEEBNRD SZ I AR R ATRHRE, based compensation program which is equity settled with

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

a corresponding charge to the capital reserve.

2023 2022
FEYRT Opening balance 21,593,798 18,674,334
KELE) Change in current year 3,036,236 2,919,464
FRFEN Closing balance 24,630,034 21,593,798
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At R RS WS R

(26) Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the

balance sheet:

T ETEIT AR MRS
Wik L ERTE N $REE

HiBIEH Less: Transfer to profit B FRSH BEEH
2022 Before tax orloss Less: Income Tax After tax
TEREEDLEHMEMEM  Other comprehensive income that
ZEE will not be reclassified to profit or loss
I EEERARNKA RN Change in the fair value of the
EZE Bank's own credit risks (288,645) - 72,161 (216,484)
BEHEMRFENEME  Other comprehensive income that
Al may be reclassified to profit or loss
UARNMEITEBEZE Change in the fair value of debt
HTAEMSEEWENGES  investments at fair value through
TERANANELZE  other comprehensive income 6,222,369 (30,081,585) 5,964,804 (17,894,412)
URAANMEITERHETE Credit impairment losses of debt
TAEMSZEEWEMNGRS  investments at fair value through
TARRERARKES other comprehensive income (35,257,174) - 8,814,294 (26,442,880)
ait Total (29,323,450) (30,081,585) 14,851,259 (44,553,776)
27. BRAR (27) Surplus reserves
2023 2022
FEYRT Opening balance 222,176,787 171,675,736
AREIEIN Increase 36,389,977 50,501,051
FRREN Closing balance 258,566,764 222,176,787

ERHTR

1-1-2023 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2023
UARNEITEBEETENT  Change in the fair value of debt
NEMGEWEMHRSTE  investments at fair value through other
RANANELT comprehensive income 21,570,182 7,369,699 28,939,881
UARMEITERETEIT  Credit impairment losses of debt
NEMSZEEWRENHRSTA  investments at fair value through other
KAEBRKES comprehensive income 2,127,635 3,660,632 5,788,267
I ESERRKRARNE Change in the fair value of the Bank's
Toh own credit risks (216,484) 52,378 (164,106)
‘it Total 23,481,333 11,082,709 34,564,042

ERERD

1-1-2022 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2022
UARMEITEBETEIT  Change in the fair value of debt
ANEMEERENESIA  instruments at fair value through other
SRR ANMELE comprehensive income 39,464,594 (17,894,412) 21,570,182
UARMEITERHETEIT  Credit impairment losses of debt
NEMGEWRENHRSTA  investments at fair value through other
KRABRIRKES comprehensive income 28,570,515 (26,442,880) 2,127,635
B ERARKRARMNE Change in the fair value of the Bank's
Trf own credit risks - (216,484) (216,484)
ait Total 68,035,109 (44,553,776) 23,481,333

FERPREEEMES VRTINS TNA R HRLET:

Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

B ETRTT ANE AR S

Yzt HERRE N Bz
WEEH  Less: Transfer to profit RS R HEEE
2023 Before tax orloss Less: Income Tax After tax
TEEE D IHIREMEM  Other comprehensive income that
FERE will not be reclassified to profit or loss
I BEERARRARN Change in the fair value of the
Tf Bank's own credit risks 69,837 - (17,459) 52,378
BESLFRBHIEMEL  Other comprehensive income that
Bl may be reclassified to profit or loss
UAANMEITEEETE Change in the fair value of debt
ITAEMEEWENHRS  investments at fair value through
TABRRANEZE other comprehensive income 41,849,887 (32,023,622) (2,456,566) 7,369,699
UAnEITEBEEZE)  Credit impairment losses of debt
ITANEMEEWRENES  investments at fair value through
TERRGEHERKIES other comprehensive income 4,880,844 - (1,220,212) 3,660,632
ait Total 46,800,568 (32,023,622) (3,694,237) 11,082,709

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

IRIERBEMATEIZRANE, HE 2024 F4 B9 HEF R,
KTREFIEN 10% REVEEBRARE, EEBRARRITE
AFATEMZEZ 50% ML LB, AT RBIRE.

FIERIEZERRARERE, JRESRERARE. S,
ERBRANEAB TN U EESRIE MR L, RIEXTT
EEZWRY, FFEETMERERERARE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank's
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution
passed by the Board of Directors on 9 April 2024, the
Bank has appropriated 10 per cent of its net profit to the
statutory surplus reserves. Where the accumulated amount
of the surplus reserves reaches 50 per cent or more of
the Bank's registered capital, further appropriation is not
required.

After the appropriation to the statutory surplus reserves, the
Bank may appropriate the discretionary surplus reserves.
When approved, the discretionary surplus reserves can be
used to make up for accumulated losses or converted to
the paid-in capital. It has been determined by the Board of
Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves
are to be appropriated this year.
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28. — RN EE

(28) General reserves

2023 2022
FHRE Opening balance 881,039,371 878,275,849
AEEIRIN Increase 35,450,936 2,763,522
FERREN Closing balance 916,490,307 881,039,371

FATHERIEME [2012]20 SX (EREWESEIHREENE) B
ME, MBREFMBERZRN EFET RIS~ HRRE1.5% B
EEBHR—RRRB S, (FAFBD R, A1T1RIE 2024 £ 4
A9 BMESRZ R, IR—RXEETT AR 35450,936 7T,
—ARRIEERENE AR KB F = BARARE 1.5%.

29. Ry EeHiE

According to the regulation CaiJin [2012] No. 20 "Financial
Institution Provision Measurement Guideline", the Bank
is required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5
per cent of its total risk assets at year end from net profit.
The Bank appropriated general reserve amounting to
RMB35,450,936 according to the resolution passed by the
Board of Directors on 9 April 2024 and the amount has
been up to 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets.

(29) Unappropriated profit

2023 2022
EEFEERKDEFE Balance at end of the prior year 1,270,840,300 819,094,359
EFE Net profit for the year 363,899,770 505,010,514
B RBUVEERKRAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (36,389,977) (50,501,051)

FREN—AE X P Less: Appropriation to general reserves

FRFRDEFE

Balance at end of the current year

(35,450,936) (2,763,522)

1,562,899,157 1,270,840,300

RIE(REARKMEQRE) REITHARER, &THETE (1)
BEFEMSHRE; (2) MHUAEESHR;, Q) REUVEAERE
RARE; (4) BRE—RADES; 6) RERERBRAREE,
AIUFED R RS ELR KR, —RRNES N STEEZ IR
EEOIEREEXEZMNERT, AXTESFIRE. 2EFE
AREHBITERZRE, ASEECER. USKAKHEMEX
HRETMEE.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the
Articles of Association of the Bank, the profit of the
Bank can only be distributed to shareholders after (1)
fulfilling all tax responsibilities; (2) compensating any
accumulated losses; (3) making appropriation to statutory
surplus reserves; (4) making appropriation to the general
reserves; (5) making appropriation to discretionary surplus
reserves. The appropriation ratios of the general reserves
and surplus reserves are decided by the Bank's Board of
Directors in compliance with relevant regulations. The
profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors of
the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.

30. F 2N

(30) Net interest income

2023 2022
FISN: Interest income:
(5319589 (G4 Due from and placement with banks and other financial institutions 339,947,786 176,394,094
FHRPRERIT Deposits with the Central Bank 43,552,161 45,066,778
KRG Loans and advances to customers 1,735,906,385 1,663,644,499
ENRERS Reverse repurchase financial assets - bonds 99,799,038 57,033,351
mERENFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 238,088,414 247,021,859
it Sub-total 2,457,293,784 2,189,160,581
FEZH: Interest expense:
Bl R EAthEREMAMER  Due to and placement from banks and other financial institutions 231,186,963 172,549,437
STy EEE Customer deposits 900,852,690 725,834,114
s KRELFR Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 123,668,169 102,106,305
HERAG Lease liabilities 3,611,766 1,680,064
Nt Sub-total 1,259,319,588 1,002,169,920
FERUN Net interest income 1,197,974,196 1,186,990,661

31 FEBERAEFUN

(31) Net fees and commission income

2023 2022
FHRBERBEWN: Fees and commission income:
ZFEHE5EREFHEE Settlement and clearing fees 23,460,467 25,877,068
N SF42% Agency brokerage fees 21,791,828 15,651,281
ERAEFERE Credit commitment fees 51,128,359 55,819,389
5REEXREN Credit related income 62,923,763 99,616,318
REREMZSAE Commissions of trusteeship and others 37,810,919 32,834,836
Hith Others 4,117,935 2,139,682
/Nt Sub-total 201,233,271 231,938,574
FHERAERMH: Fees and commission expense:
FoBTH Fee expenses 43,644,444 51,203,567
/it Sub-total 43,644,444 51,203,567
FHBERASEBRAN Net fees and commission income 157,588,827 180,735,007
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32. &AW

(32) Investment income

37 ERRERSK

(37) Credit impairment losses

2023 2022
TESMTAEBLIEUWE  Netrealised gain on derivatives 617,469,091 299,815,102
RERRAEFRELERSKE  Netrealised gain on bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 149,654,034 79,476,268
Hith Others (114,508,591) 7,192,836
&it Total 652,614,534 386,484,206
33. AANMBETTIREK (33) Losses from changes in fair values
2023 2022
RERBIFME Precious metal borrowing and lending (268,501,120) (59,660,286)
TEFERUSBN - 2ANETEIRE  Changes of fair value of derivatives (179,754,906) (172,118,541)
R MEERA Financial assets held for trading 12,480,935 (9,912,045)
RZMERA G Financial liabilities held for trading 701,610 (8,643,848)
a3t Total (435,073,481) (250,334,720)
34, Ll e (34) Foreign exchange gain

LSt et BLE S 32 5 BRC R BB = A A9 i A K SNE

R TR ERHRE,

35. Hfthi iz

Foreign exchange gain includes gain/(loss) of foreign
business related to the changes of exchange rate and gain

/(loss) arising from derivative financial instruments.

(35) Other income

2023 2022
BUF B Government grants 14,171,389 2,028,553
ait Total 14,171,389 2,028,553

36. B R EIEEE (36) General and administrative expenses

2023 2022
RI#HA Staff costs 801,905,091 736,837,907
Hep: B2 EA Of which: share-based payment 15,386,100 13,502,942
Einl|=E Depreciation 67,411,782 67,458,806
TR R =P sHER Amortisation of intangible assets 20,726,449 22,316,274
KEBFF MR AR Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 15,086,135 16,516,156
V528 A Other operating expenses 322,291,755 248,916,375
‘it Total 1,227,421,212 1,092,045,518

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

2023 2022

FRHRRIBITRBUR B K Impairment losses for deposits with the Central Bank (197,735) 26,760
Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial
ERENREIRK institutions (3,275,367) (4,546,296)
FAEN R Bk Impairment losses for placements with banks (9,264,252) (1,194,804)
BIFUR{ERR Impairment losses for loans 43,414,074 24,372,096
{5 AAE BB Impairment losses for credit commitment 99,125,592 6,655,460
HEMESUE R RERK Impairment losses for other debt investments 5,511,220 228,868
INBREESRMAFTRERK Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial assets (540,504) 1,581,004
HthZEFRERK Impairment losses for other assets 25,837,025 2,767,614
&it Total 160,610,053 29,890,702
38. FRfSHiEE (38) Income tax expenses

2023 2022
LHAPRIS AL Current tax 274,437,998 211,724,969
SBIEFRISHE Deferred tax (157,175,316) (76,334,795)
&it Total 117,262,682 135,390,174

PSR A S AR EX AT IR T:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before

income tax is as follows:

2023 2022
FUE S5 Profit before income tax 481,162,453 640,400,688
FRERE 25% I BRIFREH Tax at 25 per cent tax rate 120,290,613 160,100,172

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous

X LARTHRIE] 2 HAFR1S AR A0 E8 periods (197,208) (49,490)
FHHIEFF SUIN Tax-free interest income of government bonds (18,474,058) (35,810,426)
AN ER A Expenses not deductible for tax 15,643,335 11,149,918
Frigfize A Income tax expenses 117,262,682 135,390,174
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39 MEMERMTTHRR (39) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows 40. MEKRMEENY)

(40) Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
2023 2022
TSR 2 4 e S =. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating
1. BANBETHEEEINASTE: 1. A
w & = activities: g Cash 1,650,244 1,008,691
M Nn ; .
R Net profit 363,899,770 505,010,514 NEFN: Cash equivalents:
[RERPRTE=F LAWK With original maturity less than three months
o ERRERK Add:Credit impairment loss 160,610,053 29,890,702
FREN R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,120,819,651 2,436,104,796
BRI Fixed assets depreciation 12,325,089 11.420.277 RHAS Placements with banks and other financial 2,538,882,810 3,296,399,741
institutions
fERNEFTIH Right-of-use assets depreciation 55,086,693 56,038,529
ENREERAF Reverse repurchase financial assets 6,593,098,000 4,097,430,000
IR PR Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 20,726,449 22,316,274 EERELESRE (MEZBR=/8A Bond and negotiable certificate of deposit 3,965,299,320 989,438,350
EIHA) investments (tenor within three months from
KHBR PR P Y Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 15,086,135 16,516,156 purchase date)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long- FRAPRIRITE AR Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,582,146,963 3,420,630,756
WBETER | B KEIRFRA term assets 165,708 160,097
/it Sub-total 15,800,246,744 14,240,003,643
5. BELFREREEAGRHE Interest expenses of bond, negotiable certificates .
i of deposit and lease liabilities 127,279,935 103,786,369 it Total 15,801,896,988 14,241,012,334
NANMET K Losses from changes in fair value 435,073,481 250,334,720
- )
HAESIE R R BURN R E UK Interest income and investment income from other 41. A3z (S (41) Share-based compensation plans

i debt investments

B

(270,112,036) (277,103,446)

FITHIRRAN AT R ELHEFRBINERR R
L5

Foreign exchange gains (299,759,533) (272,673,500)

BEIEFTS T ARAYIG N Increase in deferred tax assets/liabilities (157,175,316) (76,334,795)

REEENT 0 o

22754 MUK B #9180 Increase in operating receivables (2,334,962,216) (2,402,848,421)

LEMERATIE R /O ) Increase/(decrease) in operating payables 3,074,346,813 (5,618,102,125)

SEERSE /(ER) NRER

255 Net cash flows from operating activities 1,202,591,025 (7,651,588,649)
2, RERMEENATHER: 2. Netchange in cash and cash equivalents:
MERFERRE Cash on hand at end of year 1,650,244 1,008,691
B MEEYRE Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 1,008,691 2,039,982
n: MEFNYHERRT Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 15,800,246,744 14,240,003,643

B MEFNYIRERIT Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,240,003,643 14,685,755,626

MERMEENYNEIEM /CRL ) B Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,560,884,654 (446,783,274)

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

AN KA R R LS (E AN
e XIS REIRIDIRKRERITHRM. F 2023 F12
A 31 BRITEINIRRBIERZ A I R8I 250 314,498 143,

HMRERMREEN1E3F; T 2023 F12 A 31 BAITTRE

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise
the Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation
Rights Plan. All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at
31 December 2023, the number of outstanding grants of
Restricted Shares was 314,498, the remaining contractual
period of 1~3 years. As at 31 December 2023, the number of

outstanding grants of Share Appreciation Rights was zero.
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42 FHE
1. YEREMEA
FITAENERZ=SRLEIRRERNEERERYMIEE

TH, FERERYNEARREN 2-5F, cHIANHEER
BEN 3-4 F, MEERERBSSAAERN. RIEEEN

(42) Leases
(1) As lessee

The Bank has lease contracts for various items of houses
and buildings and vehicles used in its operations. Leases of
houses and buildings generally have lease terms of two to
five years, while those of vehicles generally have lease terms
of three to four years. A few lease contracts have an option
to extend the lease or an option to terminate the lease.

2023 2022
HEAGH SR Interest expense on lease liabilities 3,611,766 1,680,064
T\ HHRIR B R A E IR Expenses relating to short-term leases accounted for 4,399,318 7,154,520
FREATA R ZE A applying practical expedients
SHEEEXNMER Cash outflow related to lease 62,141,713 58,480,228

RPNEE R G BRIARRBENER

FITRPNEE AT ENRREERASRHEERRTAIEHA
BRE, BESRTFHSEERNSRIEEFEN, BEERR
B, BEREEHRFIRIERSXMHO,
LLTHASEI SR LT FEIR

2023 F, A{TEESAEEFNEE I EFAEIT (445 R KPR
TERRAEZUMSBAERE L,

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Potential future cash outflows not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities

The potential future cash outflows that the Bank does not
include in the measurement of lease liabilities mainly arise
from variable lease payments, extension and termination
options in lease contracts, residual value guarantees, and
risk exposures such as leases that have been promised but
not yet commenced.

Extension options and termination options
There is no change on lease terms arose from the change

on the assessment of option to extend the lease, option to
terminate the lease or actual option exercise situation in 2023.

BAEEEAIFIGEIE R

;M—';ZKEE%%@ﬁiiﬁﬁ&éﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁk%ﬁfﬁiﬂ%ﬁtﬂE’J'I%)
0F:

Leases that have been promised but not yet commenced

The leases that the Bank has promised but have not yet
commenced are expected to have future cash outflows as
follows:

2023 2022

TEHAR (B149F) Within one year (including one year) - 40,989,712
1TEE2F (B2 One to two years (including two years) - 40,989,712
2FEE3IF (B3F) Two to three years (including three years) - 40,989,712
- 122,969,136

HRER

FERRGEF, ZIMEE= 15 MHEE 10, HEARNFISER,
SOMEER. 30; MEHBEFNENER-AENRELLE, &
WHE=. 15; EERARK, SRMPE=. 15 MHHE=. 22

Other information relating to leases

For right-of-use assets, refer to Notes I11.15 and Notes V.10;
for interest expense of lease liabilities, refer to Notes V.30;
for practical expedients of short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, refer to Notes [11.15; and for lease liabilities,
refer to Notes 11115 and Notes [11.22.
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75 DEbR S

FTREABAREN. EREBRLAEREHERE THEER
TUSHE. SERTIWSHE. FIKESR S D ERE M55
RARDEMBEH 4 MREDE. SN RED B NRIMEL S,
RERENSRNFES. FMMTEERBRERHRNTRED B
SEBLURAERHEERR. WMhlk5.

KTIREDEHIER W ST

MR IRITISS 7755
BEEXLIRHEERR. RERA. FRARS. ZEEE. 5
CEERSFERRS-

SEFTUSHY
BABRREEE AR, FRRS. BTRES. AR
AR S5 A KRR S5

BT S5 575
BEFRITEINZHITESZR I SHEXNRWIFERZ. BB
SRS TERE, UNRINCRFEEZRBS M. FIRTEF RN Z.

Hithlh 55 Rk 7 805 5 7785
EAREERAB LRRN DB RESEDENE™. Afi. I
N3z o

ATIFNE N BENL S RAERERR, NMTEERIEHH
FIBFEDEAS. A, WA BAREERR, XEER
BYLRHIERENT -

DERFEREFEABTENMUBNERME™. BRES. T

AFMEMKRAES. 28AGEEABTEIBHSIER
A, BESIER. FARE. BTNARF.
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VI. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating
segments, namely wholesale banking, retail banking,
global markets, and others and unallocated based on
internal organisational structure, management requirement
and internal reporting system. Every reporting segment,
which is individual business segment, provides different
products and services. Management periodically reviews
the financial information of the segments to determine
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and
services such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-
taking activities, fund management, foreign exchange
services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-
bank placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase
transactions and bond investments in the inter-bank
market, and dealing foreign exchanges, precious metals
and interest rate related derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot be
allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review
the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and financial
performance of the segments, and such information is
prepared on the following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which
are attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities
mainly include deposits, borrowings and other payables
which are attributable to the segments.

DEBEERRBEE MO WEENRN (BENIZZBANRSD
BBV ZUN) , HFEIOERENERER (B8FEABT
BNEASRERINIAMME)  REZ DRI BEEIRE
BEAURAFREREK. DEZEWMANRNEEENRRSHEM
XA BRI R RRIT

Segment financial performance refers to income
generated by each segment (including external and inter-
segment income), deducted by direct cost (including
depreciation and amortisation pertaining to the assets
allocated to the segments), indirect cost allocated based
on occupation of resources and asset impairment losses.
Transactions between segments are priced at similar terms
as external transactions.
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%S5 MTE

2023 £ Year ended 31 December 2023

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

1. D8RS, FEF Kb R

=

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2023
HERTIS SEERTIVS  HRESRWS Hithlh 5% ait
ROERHE
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated
—. BN 1. Operating income 1,173,022,471 127,405,938 427,370,686 159,333,615  1,887,132,710
SV ST ON Net interest income 918,029,439 67,471,696 117,476,306 94,996,755  1,197,974,196
Hep: SHHMFIESEBN Of which: External interest income 610,351,322 102,040,659 508,504,114 (22,921,899)  1,197,974,196
bar=EIEXIESNEZ N Internal interest income 307,678,117  (34,568,963)  (391,027,808) 117,918,654 -
FEBRAE RN Net fee and commission income 136,366,547 48,300,220 (31,565,761) 4,487,821 157,588,827
HARUN Other net income 118,626,485 11,634,022 341,460,141 59,849,039 531,569,687
—. Bl 2. Operating expenses (744,835,794) (144,875,058)  (178,197,207)  (337,236,543) (1,405,144,602)
Of which: Credit impairment
Heh: ERRERRE losses (145,572,644) 12,028,720 - (27,066,129)  (160,610,053)
=, AElMNkE 3. Net non-operating income/
(expenses) 104,859 (255,531) 7 (674,991) (825,656)
M. FEiFE 4. Profit before tax 428,291,536  (17,724,651) 249,173,486  (178,577,919) 481,162,452
E. IASHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 17,175,939 9,657,499 2,484,908 73,906,020 103,224,366
N ARAELH 6. Capital expenditure 1,314,377 3,051,082 669,451 28,221,698 33,256,608
t. BFERE 7. Total assets 38,117,106,652 3,297,401,260 42,044,451,676 (1,178,076,394) 82,280,883,194
. ARBE 8. Total liabilities 45,956,747,790 3,900,309,637 18,954,731,646  3,171,943,817  71,983,732,890
2022
HERBITILS FERTIVS  FRERWS Hithlh 5% &it
Ky EBE
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 1,158,603,713 127,282,092 321,871,217 170,804,472  1,778,561,494
FIRZRBN Net interest income 866,344,681 86,968,880 72,872,245 160,804,855  1,186,990,661
Hrep: 3356208 Of which: External interest income 752,195,748 176,431,887 401,707,626 (143,344,600)  1,186,990,661
SIEBIEIFI SR UIN Internal interest income 114,148,933  (89,463,007)  (328,835,381) 304,149,455 -
FEERFAE RN Net fee and commission income 170,864,340 35,308,548 (40,051,526) 14,613,645 180,735,007
E At Other net income 121,394,692 5,004,664 289,050,498 (4,614,028) 410,835,826
—. Bl 2. Operating expenses (636,695,805) (149,555,822)  (156,891,996)  (194,685,214) (1,137,828,837)
Of which: Credit impairment
Hep: ERRERSE losses (107,574,675) 6,878,217 - 70,805,756 (29,890,702)
=, AElINRE 3. Net non-operating income/
(expenses) 125,903 (14,351) (4) (443,517) (331,969)
PO, FEiFlE 4. Profit before tax 522,033,811  (22,288,081) 164,979,217  (24,324,259) 640,400,688
A, BSHEZER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 17,405,798 9,921,286 3,187,930 75,776,222 106,291,236
ANV N 6. Capital expenditure 1,401,747 853,562 3,064,898 17,934,169 23,254,376
t. BERH 7. Total assets 36,631,243,633 4,207,134,656 38,796,850,887 (2,431,873,830) 77,203,355,346
I\ RREE 8. Total liabilities 44,142,437,796 2,713,760,663 18,182,884,748  2,245140,550 67,284,223,757

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

2. HIBER
() HERES
WINE WM\ BIZIRE P PRTE A AR D ECE RN I E R

X, FTRABMXTIREEXEBISHINIMEL BN /()
BERWT:

SHSMELN / (i)

External operation income/(expense)

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography
External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The

external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

2023 2022

| Domestic
H4h Overseas
ait Totall

1,533,951,491 2,344,491,818

353,181,219 (565,930,324)

1,887,132,710 1,778,561,494

FTHREERERA, NMTRETERIMNMIIEREES,
Q) EBZFER
KTRBRTERTAREWEREZFRFNEBBANART 14112

7t QO FE: ARM1291270) , &HATERFIBEURANR 6%
(2022 EE: 8%) o

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers' information

Among loans and advances to customers, interest income
amounting to RMB141 million comes from top 10 largest
corporate loan customers (2022: RMB129 million), which
contributed six per cent of the total loan interest income
for the year (2022: eight per cent).
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. RERHE RS VIl. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
1. M558 (1) Commitments
RS HAE Capital commitments 2023 2022
ERUEERELN Approved but not contracted 138,375 3,205,568
BEELNEXRILT Contracted but not provided for 5,447,160 7,151,768
ait Total 5,585,535 10,357,336
2 {E5R7EE (2) Credit commitments
2023 2022
MEEERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
SRITARGICE Banker's acceptance 1,722,902,962 2,267,648,800
{RERFRIN Letter of guarantee 2,724,260,856 2,477,174,047
ERERIE Standby letter of credit 5,234,371,274 5,353,062,730
FFHENEA{S FIE Letter of credit, at sight 1,463,595,058 1,572,724,552
FHZEAEFAIE Letter of credit, usance 20,178,935 134,228,503
/Nt Sub-total 11,165,309,085 11,804,838,632
ARG Lrir::evocoble loan commitments with original maturity
FREEAE 1 FEU L More than one year 1,955,555,360 2,214,564,357
/Nt Sub-total 1,955,555,360 2,214,564,357
&1t Total 13,120,864,445 14,019,402,989

{FEIAFBIVE BRI EEN Weighted credit risk of credit commitments

7,083,377,434

7,154,644,893

STEIEEREIRAHELENFIATNIT 1R, TSEHESERE  The Bank regularly assesses contingent losses and recognises

BEIBFRMER, —BEFPARESSEAZITNEGRIELRHRSH
BITAENSEE, RITEBITIEERT.

RAERIEAITIRHRITERR N T P IR M EBE SRR A &,
IRRIE— AR BB AR LR/, FJREERI AR TR ET,
BREYENERERSEIH F—EARRTKTBIR S R L.

\:?g /\Jz?

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

estimated liabilities where necessary. Financial guarantee
contracts, with the nature of guarantee, require the Bank to
be obliged to fulfil the customers' responsibility as guarantor in
case that the customers fail to repay the contracted amount
or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that the
Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the maturity
date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments does not
necessarily represent the future expected cash outflow.

F2023F 128318, & (AIRITERMBESNLDLNE) (F
ERTREEEEEZERS. PEARRITS 2023 %15) X,
AR 67407998 7tB9{E AAEE KM SIERE LRI EIT RS
%, AR 329,622,360 st)3ixiEs FTERRILZIMYERE
ERVSIEREANIEEE,

As at 31 December 2023, according to the Rules on the Risk
Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order
[2023] No. 1 of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission and People's Bank of China), among all the
credit commitments and financial guarantees, RMB67,407,998
was classified as Sub Standard, RMB329,622,360 was classified
as Special Mention and the rest was classified as Pass.

3. 2SS (3) Entrusted business
2023 2022
A Entrusted deposits 12,411,469,897 10,439,999,910
EHRR Entrusted loans 12,411,469,897 10,439,999,910
2023 2022
EREMRS Entrusted fund 2,044,411,222 1,910,277,314
EREM AR Entrusted asset 2,044,411,222 1,910,277,314

ERREREFEREFTATHRI, NBTREREEENE
=R EBERZ . L‘STJME?EE’JT:. ;\ﬂBﬁEElﬁﬁé%Aﬁqﬂo

EREV I SRERTRRESEAEANENRETIIMG,

UEASZNNAEHTRANAZTEE, RAWT EEIZMﬂthHSZ
B, 1RIBAEFAMEIMR B W B P i

4. BRI

F 2023 FIR, AITERMEER. 21 ERAERV SERRERN
Bafs, HEEMIE R,

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, there was no other contingent
liabilities except for items that have been disclosed in Notes
V.21.
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I\, BREER

FIRARBEBIERTEEWSHEEKNEHNEREED
%, FENTELANERNEHELRNER, FATREEEN
BirfR T HERELRNERZIN, TBFRFEBRIEZEN
RATRERRNERANGERA K. RFEFHRNERNEIRE
RPEHHE, AITRRIAREARLEM,

FTRE (BURTAAERDE (217) ) BRE, #1TEX
AREXEERBELFAFSLTEGERERNS. RERESENR
BWIRITZO—RBERERRERT 5%, —REBLREERS
BIRT 6%, BETRERFRT 8%, HBEHLIEE 2.5%.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

VIIl. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management
method to mitigate the inherent risk in the business
operation and complied with the requirements of regulatory
authorities on capital management. The Bank also targets
to maintain sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations
and optimising shareholders' value. The Bank may adjust
its capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy
ratio according to "Regulations Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (Provisional)". Former CBIRC requires that
a commercial bank's core tier-one capital adequacy ratio,
tier-one capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy
ratio should not be lower than five per cent, six per cent,
and eight per cent respectively, and capital conservation
ratio should reach 2.5 per cent.

KITMSWARNERMBEHITER, RO—RBLBELRWEAE
« BEARATANE D BMESWERITTASD . BRAT.

—RNEEEMARDECHE; ATEREM—REL; —RELE

BERE_RALTAREEN T ASEFBI SRR EES.

FTHRE (BURITRERAEERNE (17 ) BOAE, HEHNA
FTRERBERMT:

The Finance Department is responsible for managing
the capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes
paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve, qualified other
comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves
and unappropriated profit. The Bank has no other tier-one
capital. Tier-two capital mainly includes surplus provision for
loan impairment, qualified Tier-two capital instruments and
their premium.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank
in accordance with "Regulations Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (Provisional)" are as follows:

2023

2022

Core tier-one capital
Paid-up capital
Qualified capital reserve

HitnZm e m e it NS5 Qualified other comprehensive income
BRAR Surplus reserves

—RRXE S General reserves

RO BCFE Unappropriated profit

BO— R A ANRIE

HEFER R

B ERANRENSEEAS
LA HRAIAR LIRS

B — R R A

Core tier-one capital deductions
Other intangible assets

Unrealized fair value change of the Bank's liabilities
due to its own credit risk

Net core tier-one capital

—REAET Net tier-one capital
ZHRER Tier-two capital

ZRAATAREGNAIT AT

Qualified tier-two capital instruments and their
premium

B FUREES Surplus provision for loan impairment
REXEE Net capital
RS NAR 2% Risk-weighted assets

Her: SRR

Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets

10,297,150,304
7,500,000,000
24,630,034
34,564,042
258,566,764
916,490,307
1,562,899,157
54,288,858
54,507,666

(218,808)
10,242,861,446

9,919,131,589
7,500,000,000
21,593,798
23,481,333
222,176,787
881,039,371
1,270,840,300
65,099,906
65,388,551

(288,645)
9,854,031,683

10,242,861,446

9,854,031,683

1,659,889,734

999,245,574
660,644,160
11,902,751,180

1,641,072,786

998,670,888
642,401,898
11,495,104,469

62,920,551,689
53,512,176,999

58,530,607,615
52,034,553,750

ARSI Market risk-weighted assets 6,169,299,190 3,526,419,865
RIEX PR INAGE = Operational risk-weighted assets 3,239,075,500 2,969,634,000
ZOD—RAEBTTRE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 16.3% 16.8%
—RARFTEE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 16.3% 16.8%
REFTEEX Capital adequacy ratio 18.9% 19.6%
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TR ARTE R ERBXIIRR LURFRE R ITENRSINEE M
SIHEANBMBFITHEN. £FE, ATETT HER INEDN
BERER,

tsh, ATRIBFRREREZNEN (B RITIIFREENE)

(REZL 20N EFE 3 5) HEHREMTRER. &k 2023
F12 A 318, FTRLFER 9.5%, FERM 4.0% BENE
X, BXEBLT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed
by the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage
ratio according to "Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio
of Commercial Banks" (CBIRC Ordinance [2011] No.3). As
at 31 December 2023, the Bank's leverage ratio was 9.5
per cent which was higher than the minimum regulatory
requirement of four per cent. The relevant information is as
follows:

2023 2022

L —RE A Core tier-one capital

R RO —REAIBRIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions

D — R B2 R EN Net core tier-one capital

REERAATRE

Adjusted on balance sheet items
AR FRIMNIE R Adjusted off balance sheet items

TP mEFRE Balance of derivatives

10,297,150,304 9,919,131,589

(54,288,858) (65,099,906)

10,242,861,446 9,854,031,683

70,230,186,691 68,550,460,103

20,335,577,939 19,5615,948,798

10,006,051,700 9,304,420,400

IESRMAR S AR Balance of assets in securities financing transactions 6,733,284,477 4,184,887,280
&1t Total 107,305,100,807 101,555,716,581
AP Leverage ratio 9.5% 9.7%

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

N =R EE

TR TANE

FIEABEEDTHRSMERTANNG, TEBEREAN
b, AR R RS (B CER, MR, HmRE) o
S5EMTAEMBXBNKE, LUIRATT R X PRI X
EIRERBRII TR,

FINERMTASENIZRNREEANK. REpERLR T
M. AFTXHIERIR L EIEBERBLARL T,

1. ERARE
11 ERNKRER

EARNRERS AR SN FELIMNGE, TEHEBITHMER
ARR G FREREFERRB I EITHEIHANN 5 X 580
BEDRM. AMTHEARREIERE FRMERNER, &
SNIERERNRERRE FALGERIE. STUERRIAMG
E/VZ SN

ERNRNEPREE. S—ERENFTAEHITHEHENEERE
Ay, HAFAEFERMIEMCE AT AEFEMRE T
FHETEUINENSZ IR —SFTUNEH, SRR
EREERRT IRITWES R4 EIT L SR (1 B RSURE
o

FITEREOREHMEDSE. RNEHENRERREM
ERMNBBROUFFEME T ERNK. AITERNEFB
SEWRRHITRE, NRREEBHTHTHIENFTRHER
RREEE,.

IX. Financial Risk Management

Risk of financial instruments

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most
significant types of risk related to financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and commodity risk). The risks
with financial instruments and the Bank's strategy to minimise
the negative impacts of the underlying financial risks are
described below.

The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. The Bank's risk management
strategy is outlined below.

(1) Credit risk
(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower's or
counterparty's inability to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. The Bank's credit risk
exposure mainly arises from loans and advances to
customers. Credit risk of off-balance sheet items mainly
arises from the letters of credit/guarantees issued as well
as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same
business activities, geographical location, or industry
sector with similar economic characteristics such that
their repayment ability would be affected by the
same economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration
reflects the sensitivity of the Bank's performance to such
customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies
and procedures which effectively mitigate and control
credit risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation,
credit approval, credit monitoring as well as reporting.
The Bank reviews the borrowers' business operations
periodically, analyses the quality of credit portfolio and
ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.
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M SRR R BT TRRIE = £ I KPLTE LB £ 5 ST mRAI R B XS
B B, ZEXZHNFEIE. REEEUSMRFBRER
EFESERANERSHERE,

KTENERAFNRAERNLHOEFEKENME 1T
EE—HFARKAERNRAERNMEONRE P WEE
EEFRESREEERNEH. ATERREHERMSERME I
ERANE, FRHEEEPIRE,

FRERGRRE, T35 EEMERYIAEMERBEREENR
RIEARPEMOFEDT:

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to
customers. Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies
and procedures for managing credit contingencies
which cover application, follow-up monitoring and
collateral requirements, etc.

The maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's financial
assets is equal to the carrying amount. The Ban's
maximum credit exposure at each balance sheet
date is the total amount charged to customers less
impairment. The Bank is also exposed to credit risk as a
result of providing financial guarantees, as disclosed in
Notes VII.

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk
exposure of the Bank without taking into consideration
of collateral and other risk mitigation are set out below:

2023 2022
FERARRERITRIN Deposits with the Central Bank 5,270,573,248 6,465,559,015
nEE Precious metals 2,659,155,486 3,069,452,064
ERREL IR Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,582,601,736 2,754,411,843
FREREE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3,847,736,934 4,281,810,991
A BRE Financial assets held for trading 5,044,798,336 1,837,337,491
TTEERE Derivative financial assets 5,403,309,645 4,490,365,337
ENRESRE Reverse repurchase financial assets 6,597,500,278 4,096,388,908
R EIFRANERR Loans and advances to customers 37,840,758,528 38,246,872,930
EHin g E Other debt investments 11,413,490,160 8,151,488,340
HERs Other financial assets 1,972,503,183 3,373,393,264
&it Total 81,632,427,534 76,767,080,183

ErAEERANRHO (HEt. 2) Credit commitments(Notes VII.2)

RAEAXREO Maximum credit risk exposure

13,120,864,445

14,019,402,989

94,753,291,979

90,786,483,172
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1.2 RpesEHhE

MR BN FERFE—ITU XK, SIHFRAEFLEFREY,
HiERARRBESENRES. i, FRITLMMKNEFE
BREHBHIBEBIR R, BIEFRTLAMXEERXRLTRR
GEIE

FTEENRAEF RERREEMRS. SITRBERMNE
METIERERE, FSEWER. 7.2

1.3 ERAF NI

FIIXRABTHENSINEGERITRRS, RIEEFISH
FEWZARETELNENR, UEEBEEGRTHRKME.
HERREN. AMTEIGEENMERASTUEIRLOTGER
Mo AATEEERERANTHHE. =R USKR. E65H
BB EFEmohlt. BREERN. RNEHUIKRYEIH
KREZMNES. FTHUEENEERERNERE, HTR
SEFERTNERDLER, WREWVSH™IERITERS
Eo. SN EERER IR AR S 6T IR A T & B
FERNE P HITIRILERER, ZHHRRMARD LR
BRI SR

FATIRIE 2023 5 2 B & B9 L IRIT R E = M2 2E700K)
(PERTREEEEEZRS. PFEARRTS (2023) %
18) , WARTERMESNLDLERANEIES 3T TEIT,
HIEEERIZIES T ERTERME~N X LEENERRE,
2H. HSREFTEFRE,

(1.2) Risk concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the
same industry sector, geographical location or having
similar economic characteristics would tend to pose
higher credit risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the
level of credit risk may be varied from each industry or
geographical location in view of their unique economic
development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank's loans and advances
can be found at Notes V. 7.2.

(1.3) Risk classification of credit assets

The Bank adopts the Global Standardised Credit Rating
System (GSCRS) developed by the parent company,
which has been appropriately modified to suit the Bank's
actual situation and to be more operational considering
its own business needs. The Bank assesses credit risk by
comprehensively analysing various indicators of the
borrower. The Bank also considers the borrower's market
share, products, financial position, solvency, asset
liquidity, ability to continue operations, equity structure,
and the type of collateral and its realisation value. The
Bank establishes internal processes for credit monitoring
and carries out quarterly risk classification review of the
existing loan portfolios, and conducts annual review
process for credit facilities granted. The independent
team within the credit risk management department
conducts independent credit review of customers
who meet certain criteria, ensuring the timeliness and
reasonableness of the risk classification results.

In accordance with the Rules on the Risk Classification of
Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1
of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
and People's Bank of China) issued in February 2023, the
Bank revised the internal guidelines for risk classification
management of financial assets and assessed the
related risk and credit impairment, in order to ensure the
risk classification results reflect the quality of the Bank's
financial assets comprehensively and dynamically.
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(1.4) Country Risk

Country risk is the risk of the inability or refusal of a debtor
in a particular country or region to pay the Bank's debts,
or the loss of the Bank's commercial presence in that
country or region, or the risk of the Bank suffering other
losses as a result of economic or political events in that
country or region, social unrest, the nationalisation and
expropriation of assets, the refusal of a government to
pay its foreign debts, or the depreciation of its currency.

The NFRA issued the the Rules for Country Risk Management
of Banking Institutions (Jin Gui [2023] No. 12) in November
2023, and the Bank has appropriated country risk provision
in accordance with Article 31 of the rule. Since the
Bank's country risk exposure at the end of the period was
mainly concentrated in countries and regions with low
and relatively low country risk, no additional provision for
country risk was required.

(1.5) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required
would depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/
counterparties as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has
established a guideline on taking collateral including the
frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

* For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals
taken include cash deposits, bank guarantee and
properties;

* For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly
residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to
monitor the market value of the collaterals and follow up
with the borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the loan
agreement. The change in market value of the collateral
would also be taken into consideration when reviewing
the adequacy of loan loss provisions.
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(1.6) Expected credit loss management

Depending on whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition and whether
the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the Bank
recognises loss allowance for financial assets, financial
guarantee contracts and loan commitments based
on the 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime
expected credit losses accordingly, as disclosed in Notes
I1.9.

The criteria of significant increase in credit risk:

Credit risk is deemed to be significantly increased when
any of the following occurs:

* The principal or interest is overdue for more than 30
days;

* When the borrower's internal credit risk rating is
downgraded with its probability of default change
exceeds the pre-specified threshold;

* Internal watchlist accounts or special mention accounts.

The criteria of credit-impaired financial assets:

The Bank evaluates the following factors for credit-
impaired financial assets:

» The principal or interest is overdue for more than 90
days;

* There are weaknesses exhibited which jeopardise
repayments significantly on existing terms;

» The exposure is considered to be in default.
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(1.6.1) Expected credit loss measurement

For credit-impaired financial instruments, the credit
impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the balance sheet date
and the present value of the expected recoverable
cash flow discounted at the effective interest rate (or
other applicable discount rate which is available).

For financial instruments with significant increase in credit
risk, the Ban's ECL model is based on the Basel Internal
Ratings-Based Approach, with appropriate adjustments
on key parameters to meet the requirements of
relevant accounting standards. Key parameters include
Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD),
and Exposure At Default (EAD). The Bank considers
quantitative analysis of historical data (such as
counterparty rating, type of guarantee and collaterals,
repayment method, etc.) and forward-looking
information to build PD, LGD, and EAD models.

The definitions are as follows:

* PD is the likelihood that the borrower will default on
its obligation within the next 12 months or throughout
the remaining tenor. PD is derived based on the credit
cycle index Z value, cyclical ratio and correlation,
and the forward-looking adjustment is incorporated
into the credit cycle index Z to reflect the PD of the
borrower in the current macroeconomic environment;

* LGD is the estimation of the extent of the loss if there
is a default. LGD varies depending on the type of
counterparty, the method and priority of recourse,
and the type of collateral. LGD is expressed as a
percentage of EAD;

* EAD is the total amount of exposures in the event of
default within the next 12 months or throughout the
remaining tenor.

In addition to the above model results, the Bank will
adjust the ECL results through management overlay
for identified model or data deficiencies, along with
the impact of regulatory policies. The Bank applies
management overlay prudently, and the use of
management overlay for certain risk factor should be
fully discussed by internal experts and subject to the
approval by senior management and the Board of
Directors.
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The criterion of portfolio segmentation and stage
determination, Macro Economic Variables (MEVs),
scenario weightage, ECL model and its key
parameters, forward-looking model and its key
parameters, management overlay model and its key
parameters should be subject to the approval by senior
management and the Board of Directors.

(1.6.2) Forward-looking information

The assessment of the significant increase in credit risk
and the measurement of ECL involve forward-looking
information. The Bank has performed historical data
analysis and identified key MEVs that impact credit risk
and ECL of various industries and businesses, including
Gross Domestic Product (GDP), property price indices,
etc. The Bank uses regression analysis to determine the
MEVs impact on PD and LGD.

When calculating the weighted average ECL, the Bank
regularly obtains UOB Group economists' forecasts on
MEVs, combined with macro-statistical analysis and
expert judgment to determine the scenario weightage.
As at 31 December 2023, the Bank selected mild
stagflation of the global economy and China hard
landing as the stress scenario and made forward-
looking forecasts of MEVs. Of which, the year-on-year
GDP growth rates over the next five years were among
4.5 per cent to 5.0 per cent under the Business-As-Usual
(BAU) scenario and among 2.2 per cent to 4.5 per cent
under the stress scenario. At the same time, based on
the analysis of economic conditions, the weightages of
the BAU and stress scenarios were set at 60 per cent and
40 per cent respectively.

The Bank conducted sensitivity analysis of the scenario
weightage in forward-looking measurement. As of 31
December 2023, when the BAU scenario weightage
increased or decreased by 10 per cent, the ECL would
not change by more than five per cent.
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(1.7) Credit quality distribution of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2023, the three-staging distribution of

BENITRE) financial instruments of the Bank is as follows (excluding
accrued interest):
2023
WERE
Principal Amount Credit impairment losses
F—E EMER HB=ME &it F—FE B E=ME ait
FEK121MA BAOEFEE BAF4H FEK121MA BAFEH BANFEE
FRER{E AR FRER{E FRIRK FRER{S ARk FEAE AL FUAERARK CRREEARE) FERE AL (BEXEERRE)
Stage | CRREGEARE) (EBRECHRE Stage | Stage Il Stage I Total
12-month Stage Il Stage lll Total 12-month expected Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses
expected credit Lifetime Lifetime credit loss (not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
loss expected credit expected credit
losses losses
(not yet credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
Financial assets
IR AT 2 SRR measured at amortised cost
M RAFH AP REBITIRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 5,271,351,986 - - 5,271,351,986 473,939 - - 473,939
Due from banks and other financial
FRELFRIN institutions 1,587,531,812 - - 1,587,531,812 5,034,307 - - 5,034,307
Placements with banks and other financial
FHEE institutions 3,836,777,310 - - 3,836,777,310 8,195,143 - - 8,195,143
ENRE SR Reverse repurchase financial assets 6,593,098,000 - - 6,593,098,000 1,110,477 - - 1,110,477
B EIFAER Loans and advances to customers 36,962,914,945 841,374,815 284,274,856 38,088,564,616 781,780,218 28,675,846 154,431,798 964,887,862
HitheRbEr= Other financial assets 235,824,842 - 44,040,650 279,865,492 8,972,946 - 21,269,723 30,242,669
it Sub Total 54,487,498,895 841,374,815 328,315,506 55,657,189,216 805,567,030 28,675,846 175,701,521 1,009,944,397
UARNETEERTEIT AN Financial assets at fair value through other
Him SRS ERE~ comprehensive income
BB ERAEE Loans and advances to customers 497,778,294 237,734 - 498,016,028 280,322 5,960 - 286,282
Hb g E Other debt investments 11,312,553,914 - - 11,312,553,914 7,431,408 - - 7,431,408
ERAE Credit commitments 70,831,460,401 476,311,175 67,407,998 71,375,179,574 121,386,402 14,052,397 16,453,269 151,892,068
ait Total 82,641,792,609 476,548,909 67,407,998 83,185,749,516 129,098,132 14,058,357 16,453,269 159,609,758
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(1.7) Credit quality distribution of financial instruments
(continued)

2022
WERE ERRKES
Principal Amount Credit impairment losses
F—ME HEMNER HE=ME F—FE BEZMER HE=ME
KK 12 1MNH BAONFEE BAGFSH FEK121MA BANFEHE BAOFEE
FRERME FRIRK FREAfS IR SiGIREEE TS UL EIE)EEAES MRk REEERRE) MHEERk (BREERRE)
Stage | (CREEEARE (BREGARE Stage | Stage Il Stage I
12-month Stage Il Stage lll &it 12-month expected Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses ait
expected credit Lifetime Lifetime Total credit loss (not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
loss expected credit expected credit
losses losses
(not yet credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
Financial assets
IR AN T B RLA measured at amortised cost
& R F R RIBITIRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 6,465,833,288 - - 6,465,833,288 671,674 - - 671,674
Due from banks and other financial
FERENLFRIN institutions 2,762,611,323 - - 2,762,611,323 8,309,674 - - 8,309,674
Placements with banks and other financial
FERE institutions 4,282,151,741 - - 4,282,151,741 17,459,395 - - 17,459,395
ENBRESRE Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,097,430,000 - - 4,097,430,000 1,650,981 - - 1,650,981
KRBT Loans and advances to customers 37,675,256,586 437,138,387 242,579,206 38,354,974,179 798,009,868 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,029,784,893
HithErhR Other financial assets 1,272,420,124 - - 1,272,420,124 4,405,644 - - 4,405,644
Mt Sub Total 56,55 5,703,062 437,138,387 242,579,206 57,235,420,655 830,507,236 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,062,282,261
UARMNETEEEZT TN Financial assets at fair value through other
Hitnm W mER A= comprehensive income
RIETRFIER Loans and advances to customers 687,630,808 8,804,049 - 696,434,857 711,725 204,933 - 916,658
Hh R Other debt investments 8,071,625,613 - - 8,071,625,613 1,920,188 - - 1,920,188
SHRIE Credit commitments 64,982,189,497 46,339,598 41,322,900 65,069,851,995 42,890,068 8,237 9,868,171 52,766,476
&it Total 73,741,445,918 55,143,647 41,322,900 73,837,912,465 45,521,981 213,170 9,868,171 55,603,322
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(1.8) Loans and advances by 5-tier grading classification

According to the Rules on the Risk Classification of
Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1
of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
and Peoples Bank of China), the 5-tier classification of
loans and advances to customers (excluding accrued
interest) are listed as follows:

2023 2022

TRERE &t IKERE (=14

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

E= Pass 38,080,859,314 99% 38,672,453,055 99%
xFE Special Mention 221,446,474 - 136,376,775 -
RER Sub standard 149,515,751 - 65,665,267 -
AT&E Doubtful 84,273,384 - 50,000,000 -
EES Loss 50,485,721 - 126,913,939 -
Ait Total 38,586,580,644 100% 39,051,409,036 100%

* ERRI AT 1%

19 BFERFERE

AFEnHBRE, GERENERARE (FESEIHHE) R\
SMNERME TR DA -

* Less than 1 per cent of the above

(1.9) Investments in bonds and certificates of deposit

As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of bond
investments (excluding accrued interest) analysed by
external credit ratings is as follows:

2023 2022
AAA 7,813,640,056 2,692,750,160
A+ 4,821,891,798 4,777,764,480
Ait Total 12,635,531,854 7,470,514,640

THEFRGRERE, AAARILERRANERREBREINGE
RFER AT

As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of the
negotiable certificate of deposit investment analysed by
external credit ratings is as follows:

2023 2022
AAA 3,653,348,550 2,270,758,700
A+ - 137,156,813
Ait Total 3,653,348,550 2,407,915,513

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS
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(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-
day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash
funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete
framework of risk management, including the balance
sheet risk management framework and liquidity
risk appetites approved by the Board / Board Risk
Management Committee, as well as policies, controls
and limits approved by the Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO). These policies, controls and limits are established
to ensure that the Bank has sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These
include minimising excessive funding concentrations by
diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of debt securities with high quality
and good liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, strictly
complying with liquidity limits and retaining adequate liquid
assets to prevent any possible cash shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits
to maintain a balance of cost efficiency, continued
availability of funds and diversification of funding sources.
Important factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive
pricing, proactive management of the Bank's core
deposits and the maintenance of customer confidence.
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Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected
cash flow basis. Cash flow projection is monitored under
both "business-as-usual" and "stress scenarios". Cash flow
mismatch limits are established to limit the Bank's liquidity
exposure. The Bank has also employed liquidity early
warning indicators and trigger points to signal possible
contingency situations. Contingency funding plans
have been set up to identify potential liquidity crises by
using a series of warning indicators. Crisis management
processes and various strategies including funding and
communication have been developed to minimise the
negative impact of any liquidity crunch.

Liability Quality Management

The Bank has established a Liability Quality Management
Framework compatible with the size and complexity of
its liabilities for effective management and monitoring.
The purpose of the framework is to ensure that the Bank
achieves profitability, sufficient liquidity and safe operating
of business. Based on our business strategy, risk appetite
and business' characteristics, the Bank manages its
liabilities with consideration of multiple factors including
the source, structure and cost of the liabilities.

The Board undertakes the ultimate responsibility of liability
quality management and the senior management
carry out the liability management activities. The Bank
manages the stability and diversity of its liabilities as well
as compatibility with assets by monitoring and managing
a series of ratios, including but not limited to Core Liability
Ratio, Deposit Deviation, Inter-bank Funding Ratio, Top 10
Depositors Ratio, High Quality Liquid Asset Adequacy Ratio
(HQLAAR), Liquidity Matching Ratio (LMR), Liquidity Gap,
Liquidity Ratio for major currencies, Net Interest Margin
(NIM), and Economic Value of Equity (EVE) of the Banking
Book. Several ratios are imposed with internal limits for
management purpose.

FTHRAGIENESY, FEIFENRIEN. REREEH
ﬂ&ﬂm&?%ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁhmﬂmmoHﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ
MESRELVSLZEMNEETE, RMRAREMARE, KNEH
RISFRRAEREN, kmxﬁ?mmzﬂﬁo

KT REN DI PEDER TOHIREEI#T
WE, BMRYTHEREFH @SN, BEUSENEHITR
BNV EZHEBIEE

The Bank ensures that its liabilities are legitimate and
authentic. The Bank has a fair and comprehensive FTP
mechanism, internal controls and procedures to ensure
proper pricing of its liabilities. Furthermore, business units will
proactively improve funding capability and capacity so as
to meet the Bank's business and management needs.

The Bank will execute assessment on market funding
capacity under stressed scenarios of the liquidity
contingent plan to make sure it still has the capacity to
fund or dispose assets at a fair level when encountering
unfavourable market situation.
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The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the
Bank's financial assets and liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 December 2023:

2023
JaHA / BNEHEIE
Overdue / On 11™BH 1E31A 3TMEEE 1E5F S5EMUE TCHARR ait
demand Within 1 month 1to 3 months 3 months to 1year 1to 5years 5 years above undated Total
AR Financial assets:

M R FRRREITRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1,585,000,255 - - - - - 3,687,223,237 5,272,223,492
nEB Precious metals - - - - - - 2,659,155,486 2,659,155,486
AL R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,532,760,294 50,012,026 - - - - - 1,582,772,320
FHAES Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 1,996,948,753 1,070,905,892 522,661,665 319,492,883 - - 3,910,009,193
R MEMR Financial assets held for trading - 2,831,900 50,828,937 1,232,542,638 3,895,258,849 122,470,273 - 5,303,932,597
SRR Derivative financial assets - 2,855,539,063 704,866,370 919,473,011 903,868,576 19,562,625 - 5,403,309,645
ENREEZRAF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 6,600,683,524 - - - - - 6,600,683,524
RIETFRAERR Loans and advances to customers 135,136,527 3,597,773,433 7,710,215,352 11,334,788,270 14,616,987,049 4,107,562,745 - 41,502,463,376
HA A& Other debt investments - 3,615,316,175 505,409,363 594,888,402 5,942,966,836 1,403,368,627 - 12,061,949,403
Hith A Other financial assets 6,250,578 1,946,336,258 19,916,347 - - - - 1,972,503,183
EMEEIT Total financial assets 3,259,147,654 20,665,441,132 10,062,142,261 14,604,353,986 25,678,574,193 5,652,964,270 6,346,378,723 86,269,002,219

Rt 5 Financial liabilities:
BNl R EMERAEERFIN  Due to banks and other financial institutions 2,989,079,924 - - 148,455,994 6,682,108 - - 3,144,218,026
wANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions - 2,329,966,211 7,965,998,457 - - - - 10,295,964,668
TR R Derivative financial liabilities - 2,992,316,509 663,083,963 881,078,874 896,942,823 22,734,876 - 5,456,157,045
sdiveczN Customer deposits 21,600,228,539 12,802,898,615 4,956,314,738 4,709,524,058 1,569,564,683 - - 45,638,530,633
RAMERMAER Financial liabilities held for trading - 2,129,373,530 375,877,056 324,118,616 - - - 2,829,369,202
S H Bl SR EE =R Repurchase agreements - - - - - - - .
R 35 Bonds payable - - 975,867,468 1,917,234,401 1,027,581,636 - - 3,920,683,505
Hithe Rtk Other financial liabilities - 1,809,183 393,873,419 - - - - 395,682,602
ERAGREIT Total financial liabilities 24,589,308,463 20,256,364,048 15,331,015,101 7,980,411,943 3,500,771,250 22,734,876 - 71,680,605,681
TRENME SRR Net liquidity (21,330,160,809) 409,077,084 (5,268,872,840) 6,623,942,043 22,177,802,943 5,630,229,394 6,346,378,723 14,588,396,538
RINEEEIM Commitments 1,584,728,475 893,996,062 2,668,776,378 5,503,943,169 2,312,529,658 156,890,703 - 13,120,864,445
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The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets

FIHAR DU and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 is as follows:
2022
BHA / ENBEIE 11™BR 1E31A 3PMAETE 1E5% 5% E TCHAMR ait
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1to 3 months 3 months to 1year 1to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
AR Financial assets:

MERIF P RBITRI
RERE

FEL R

HFrHHE

R SR
TEERIAR

ENERETRA

H
2

s

BRI
HAb AR
HithSRE =
Eaiy

&it

S

ot

0l
)=y
w

Bl Ko E & B UGRRIT
FANEE

TEERA G

TRHETFR

R EERA R

SEH B SR E 50
RzfiE3ss

Hith&R %

ERARSIT

BN FET

Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 3,422,690,096
Precious metals -
Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,405,464,611
Placements with banks and other financial institutions -
Financial assets held-for-trading -
Derivative financial assets -
Reverse repurchase financial assets -
Loans and advances to customers 64,788,885

Other debt investments -

Other financial assets 3,711,595

349,776,400

2,948,738,975

1,895,316,992

4,097,583,506

2,971,781,832

821,118,553

1,784,208,725

634,020,468

177,839,800

1,036,414,256

7,472,068,100

330,934,220

584,054,515

724,455,972

602,895,605

823,670,339

11,076,229,048

3,140,409,160

1,001,418,428

1,084,260,914

710,568,626

15,770,397,329

2,520,869,101

24,395,124

5,291,379,023

1,584,606,052

3,043,877,610

3,069,452,064

6,466,567,706

3,069,452,064

2,755,241,011

4,307,215,415

1,864,996,319

4,490,365,337

4,097,583,506

42,646,644,217

8,397,937,086

3,373,393,263

Total financial assets 5,896,655,187

14,868,524,983

10,235,331,359

17,369,078,552

20,086,095,970

6,900,380,199

6,113,329,674

81,469,395,924

Financial liabilities:

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and other financial institutions -
Derivative financial liabilities -
Customer deposits
Financial liabilities held-for-trading -
Repurchase agreements -
Bonds payable -

Other financial liabilities -

Total financial liabilities

3,360,404,264 - - 145,257,005 6,682,108 - - 3,512,343,377
116,293,545 8,463,870,207 892,869,614 - - - 9,473,033,366

1,881,367,488 1,186,230,466 733,849,056 722,300,488 24,101,228 - 4,547,848,726

18,878,417,912 14,580,361,502 3,379,748,931 3,307,311,973 926,451,884 - - 41,072,292,202
2,256,888,061 1,133,134,740 114,262,916 - - - 3,504,285,717

- 1,045,183,027 572,119,988 2,102,220,796 - - 3,719,5623,811

819,819 1,386,803,073 - - - - 1,387,622,892

22,238,822,176 18,835,730,415 16,594,970,444 5,765,670,552 3,757,655,276 24,101,228 - 67,216,950,091

Net liquidity (16,342,166,989)

(3,967,205,432)

(6,359,639,085)

11,603,408,000

16,328,440,694

6,876,278,971

6,113,329,674

14,252,445,833

RINVEBRI

Commitments 1,196,457,077

1,157,452,871

2,395,646,167

5,953,944,106

3,239,919,578

75,983,190

14,019,402,989

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



184

I Notes to Financial Statements

Wt 55 R 2R Bt E
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FTEIENHZXEEEREFE, CER~miREEF mpg
H3k~o TR Z M S RIS AT = E 7 R,
KT H N EERN B WA G R F i KR~ Er
WEHK, ENEERTRERTARNTTREDIEXLIRIE.
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from open
positions in interest rate, foreign exchange rate products
and precious metal products. Market risk arises from both
trading and non-trading business. The objective of market
risk management is to avoid excessive losses in earnings
and shareholder's fund due to market risk, and to minimise
the negative impact from inherent volatility risks of financial
instruments.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank's market
risk exposure and is responsible for setting up market risk
policies with approval by the Asset & Liability Committee.
Market Risk exposures are reported to the Asset & Liability
Committee and Board Risk Management Committee on a
regular basis.

The Bank monitors and manages market risk in
accordance with established framework and policies. The
monitoring and measurement methods mainly include
sensitivity analysis, Expected Shortfall (ES), Value-at-Risk
(VaR) and stress testing. Prior to launch of new product or
new business, market risk will be properly identified and
addressed.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities
into the trading book or banking book according to
the characteristics of different accounts. Trading book
mainly includes freely tradable financial instruments and
commodity positions held for trading purpose or to avoid
risks in other items of the trading account. The market risk
in trading book depends on the tools of the transactions,
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, stock
prices, commodity prices and credit spreads. Banking
book includes financial instruments other than trading
book. The main risks in banking book are interest rate and
credit spread risks.

31EERN

FERHTAITAEFMAGRENBEUNINCRZ S T ERE
AR O A E T R EE T i 7K i 5 | 2R XL,

F2023%12 A 318, ATNEXRES KA GIRHHTIRIOT

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank's currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions
are subject to exchange rate fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's assets and liabilities
by currency are as follows:

2023
S AR™® Hit &it
usb RMB Others Totall
(RMB (RMB (RMB
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
T Assets:

& R AF PR ISR TARIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1,091,811,991 4,170,304,224 10,107,277 5,272,223,492
BER Precious metals - 2,659,155,486 - 2,659,155,486
FEL I Due from banks and other financial institutions 273,994,811 1,183,129,119 125,477,806 1,582,601,736
Kz mgg&rgf)ﬂt: with banks and ather financial 1,797,577,180  1,649,975,357 400,184,397  3,847,736,934
RBMEERAT Financial assets held for trading - 5,044,798,336 - 5,044,798,336
T EREF Derivative financial assets 242,040,568 5,161,269,077 - 5,403,309,645
ENRE SRIEF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 6,597,500,278 - 6,597,500,278
BRI Loans and advances to customers 3,576,821,925  33,806,960,855 456,975,748  37,840,758,528
HEAUEE Other debt investments - 11,413,490,160 - 11,413,490,160
HitheRhaar= Other financial assets 40,192,114 1,929,543,586 2,767,483 1,972,503,183
ERETEIT Total financial assets 7,022,438,589  73,616,126,478 995,512,711  81,634,077,778

ffi: Liabilities:
R Lt & RMMTEREUR  Due to banks and other financial institutions 43,973,202 3,098,068,224 - 3,142,041,426
WANES mggggg:és from banks and other financiol 1,399,649,656  8,873,446,492 16,600,214  10,289,696,362
RB SRS Financial liabilities held for trading 12,116,236 2,815,250,116 - 2,827,366,352
TSR R Derivative financial liabilities 259,419,800 5,196,737,245 - 5,456,157,045
RUTFTR Customer deposits 10,429,753,849  34,222,529,073 722,431,155  45,374,714,077
IVARNGE=S Bonds payable - 3,830,066,856 - 3,830,066,856
HirSmh Other financial liabilities 26,310,481 300,049,338 69,322,783 395,682,602
SRR RS Total financial liabilities 12,171,223,224  58,336,147,344 808,354,152  71,315,724,720
B ekt Net position (5,148,784,635)  15,279,979,134 187,158,559  10,318,353,058
FTESMTES NS i’;‘é’gﬁ?ﬂ‘gﬂ‘g”"“”“ of derivative financial 135,096,776,521 343,364,396,322  9,750,383,576  488,211,556,419
E5TEE Commitments 1,574,661,131 9,904,685191  1,641,518,123  13,120,864,445
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As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's assets and liabilities

by currency are as follows:

UTEEEMEERTMERT, IIMAUTCRTERE
B AIEL I TR R

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a
change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of
the Bank is as follows:

2022
ESan ARM Hith &ait 2023 2022
usbD RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) ~ (RMB (RMB equivalent) PSE TR RE A PO EnEPEA]
equivalent) Impact on profit Impact on profit
ESa Assets: TETE) Change in Foreign Exchange Rate
0 R L
& RAF R TR Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 526,188,754  5928,332,868 12,046,084 6,466,567,706 S I 1% 1% change against RMB 49,616,261 13.192,565
- .
BeR Precious metals 3,069,452,064 3,069,452,064 KA HFHE 1% +1% change against RMB (49,616,261) (13,192,565)
TR R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,124,832,169 1,389,415,971 240,163,703 2,754,411,843
Placements with banks and other financial 1 REEFLN MR =rIn 47 (% KU RSN, & . ; ;
NN ettt 2567850386 1434733044 250227561 4.281810.991 \/(J:ﬁ&,\.h;gﬁjffﬁgﬂ:;;#ﬁJJ\Eﬁ%u?’]/E—.—EL-ni} H The. sensitivity onoly5|§ obgye is performed on the
HET7HHEMERRZHN, SIMmARTCENSIEREER basis that assets and liabilities have static currency
RPEBMA Financial assets held-for-trading - 1837337491 - 1.837,337.491 MOETEIEINESEAL risk structure. It shows the impact of a change in other
TTESRAR Derivative financial assets 200,388,559  4,289,297,066 679,712 4,490,365,337 currency rates against RMB on the Bank's profit before
. BRODTEFUTRIE: tax, given other variables remain constant.
ENRE ERIEF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 4,096,388,908 - 4,096,388,908
BRI Loans and advances to customers 3,583,019,224  33,993,138,296 670,715410  38,246,872,930 () CEHBREREEMHNARTFIREAEXIE (FiE The analysis is based on below assumptions:
N SR HE TSN 1% Y5 RS oot
HitEIE R Other debt investments 137,156,813 8,014,331,527 - 8151488,340 ) SCEAEIERED 1% EMRAYL S5 o _
(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and
L Other financiol assets 357,356,985 3,013,210,116 2826163 3,373,393,264 (2) EMMCEREHBIEE DY ARTCERNERIKE; losses caused by one per cent change of the closing
SRAT ST Total financial assets 8516792890  67,065637,351 1185658633  76,768,088,874 rate (mid-rate) of the different foreign currencies
o Liabilt (3) BWLENHOREEE-RHRRKRINEB, against RMB as at the balance sheet date.
AN labilities:
B R E S BITEREIRN  Due to banks and other financial institutions 3455176  3,507,667,460 - 3511,122,636 BFEFERRE, CETHSHATLRERE LML RE (2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation
=y= ’E\E \ HyE = . . . . . .
Placements from banks and other finandial WATRES LEBURE D ITHER R E, against RMB in the same direction simultaneously;
RANE institutions 1,928,591,232 7,472,103,210 45,588,889 9,446,283,331
N 7 3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.
R &R R Financial liabilities held-for-trading - 3,499,822,350 - 3,499,822,350 3)
TR Derivative financial liabilities 192,999,975 4,354,153,926 694,825 4,547,848,726 Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
RIS ER Customer deposits 7.066,218,165  32,431,200478  528260,734 40925778377 egchonge rate fluctuation on the Bank's earnings may
differ from above sensitivity analysis.
AT Bonds payable - 3,553,115,045 - 3,553,115,045
HithER 115 Other financial liabilities 354,832,811 1,031,723,886 1,066,195 1,387,622,892
EmHEET Total financial liabilities 10,446,097,359 55,849,885,355 575,610,643 66,871,593,357
R ARk Net position (1,929,304,469)  11,215,751,996 610,047,990 9,896,495,517
Notional amounts of derivative financial
FTESMTAZ NS instruments 149,631,018,864 326,550,018,693  4,821,344,132  481,002,381,689
S EEE Commitments 1973721928  10,781,338936  1,264,342,125  14,019,402,989
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3.2 F=ER L
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(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading book

Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading
purpose or to avoid risks of other items in the trading
account. The market risk in trading book depends on the
tools of the transaction, including interest rates, exchange
rates, stock prices, commodity prices, and credit spreads,
etc.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach
for the calculation of regulatory market risk capital and
uses the Internal Models Approach to measure and to
control trading market risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within
a 97.5 per cent confidence interval over a one-day
holding period, using the historical simulation method,
as a control for market risk. This method assumes
observed historical market movements can be used to
imply possible future changes in market rates. ES is the
average of the worst losses in the distribution, assuming
that the losses exceed the specified percentile.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR
within a 99 per cent confidence interval over a one-
day holding period. VaR uses the same loss distribution
as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether the
exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market
volatility. All backtesting exceptions are tabled to
ALCO with recommended actions and resolutions.

Although VaR and ES are important tools to measure
market risk, there are certain limitations on the
assumptions of the model, such as:

* In most cases, the assumption that a position can be
hedged or sold within the observation period of one
trading day is reasonable, but in the case of severe
liquidity shortage in the market over a long period
of time, the assumption of the observation period of
one trading day may not be in line with the actual
situation;

* VaR and ES are calculated based on the day's
closing benchmark and do not reflect the risks that
may be faced by positions held on the trade day;

» Historical data is used as a basis for determining
the possible range of future results, and may not
be applicable to all possible situations, especially
exceptions.

AR AR IR (ES) MEEMARRE, AITEBENR
KBS, #HIRITE BRI IE R AT AT H IR K.
XEMHAEHH XL ERRH T RRATEES, NXYH
RERIIR IR Ko

172023 %12 B 31 R H AR AR (ES) WA RT 2,021
A (202212831 8: ARM 1,047 A7)

RITIKE
AFRHRERZAR A RN OERERNENE. Bh
XL ERIMBIE = A HRER S A SENIRITIKE T BRI
R,

HERRERNEE BFRRESHUNEFFESD, B
EIIRITH)SF BRARRIPFHRRITASHZF B8
i,

FIERDIT IR, SEEENHRMSREDTEENER
TMCEFR ML B XS FFR GRS X FHIR
MMM, IBTRFIETENFBRANREFNEBEZ . 7
RYPREZENENIR. DI EHANEIR M, BT
FHATEED, KHIMMFRBEEXNMRLTNENRMER,

FITTRABINEF BN FE =L FNEEED T EER
BTRERPLEDNE , WEBRITHRES MR AFZER
AIEREIIRITR L ERRBFI. B8, ZEDWHBAT
RIS TR RER £ S TRR B R AT E H (R #H IR1TEIRE
RN TR IF R T AR E IR R K D,

To complement the ES measure, the Bank perform stress
and scenario tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to
event risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of
plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2023 was RMB20.21
million (The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2022 was
RMB10.47million).

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness
of the interest rate risk management structure. The
Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) Division
supports the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk
profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in
net interest earnings under a broad range of possible
economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified
using analysis tools include repricing schedules and
sensitivity analysis. They provide indications of the
potential impact of interest rate changes on interest
income and economic value through the analysis
of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in
interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies with different
repricing periods, currencies and embedded options
mismatches in the longer tenor will experience greater
impact in the price-value of interest rate positions than
similar positions in the shorter tenor.

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method
of net interest income and economic value of net
assets regularly to determine the adequacy of
capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest
rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests are
also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management
of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial
market changes.
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RIREREEN BHEBERERREDTNT:

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices
are managed and controlled under the market risk
framework.

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

2023
31MAR 3MBE1E 1E5F 58 E Tit2 &it
Within 3 3 months to1 1to 5years 5years above Non-interest Total
months year bearing
AN Assets:
. o
RERFHFRR  Cash and deposits withthe 4 733 349 493 ; . . 538,913,080  5,272,223,492
TR Central Bank
Due from banks and other
ENEe - - -
TEHREL SRR financial inctitutions 557,708,982 103,857 557,812,839
wHzEs Placements with banks and 3 334 746 569 496,836,308 - - 19,114,057  3,847,736,934
= other financial institutions e T o RS
. .. Reverse repurchase
ESEA evers - - -
INEERRSE 0 R 6,591,988,451 5,511,827  6,597,500,278
RIREERAN R tﬁ;’tgsm"eﬁg advances to 22,715,475,609  13,948,944,283 619,969,446 74,446,918 481,922,272  37,840,758,528
HAhEaug & Other debt investments 4,845,113,350 451,345,008  4,673,043,736 1,343,051,820 100,936,246  11,413,490,160
HithEmhEr~ Other financial assets - - - - 61,056,246 61,056,246
SRAEESIT Total financial assets 42,775,383,364  14,897,125,599  5,293,013,182 1,417,498,738 1,207,557,594  65,590,578,477
fafk: Liabilities:
Bl R EMEFY]  Due to banks and other
TE IR financial institutions 2,993,419,388 145,106,739 3,515,299 3,142,041,426
N Placement from banks and
R - - -
YN+ thor fooncial nattotons 291,242,050 8,986,492  2,500,228,542
U TERR Customer deposits 38,838,167,899  4,506,418,876  1,439,041,991 - 591,085,311 45,374,714,077
= ! < SR
iﬂj@)@%wﬁm Repurchase agreements - - - - - -
E
RfH5ss Bonds payable 975,897,149  1,840,403,642 998,054,590 - 15,711,475  3,830,066,856
Hitt&mhta Other financial liabilities - - - - 352,421,659 352,421,659
M rERR GE1)  Structured deposits (Note 1) 965,315,613 323,360,000 - - - 1,288,675,613
SRSt Total financial liabilities 46,264,042,099  6,815,289,257  2,437,096,581 - 971,720,236  56,488,148,173
TSRS GE2) (DNE(;'tVe";')VQ financial assets 44 805,690,310 1,416,540,000 - - - 13,222,230,310
FTESRAECE2) ?Neg'tveog)ve financial liobilities 14 544 600,823 1,398,251,800 - - - 13,212,852,623
FIERBEERO Net position (3,497,569,248)  8,100,124,542  2,855,916,601 1,417,498,738  235.837,358  9,111,807,991

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

F2022%12 B 31 H, FTRITKESSHIFMENES KA

RIREREENHHEAARERFEEDTNT:

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of

maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

2022
31MAR 3MBETE 1E58F 5&E FitE &it
Within 3 3 months to1 1to 5years 5yearsabove Non-interest Total
months year bearing
Hi=: Assets:

m ; 4 it wi
RERFFMEHRE  Cash ond depositwiththe 5 goq 79 787 - - - 539776924  6,466,567,706
1TFRI Central Bank

Due from banks and other

— R ) B B
=3 (Rl financial institutions 1,834,459,386 109,785  1,834,569,171

N Placements with banks and

. - -
HFHES thar e ot 371,130,199 693,631,667 17,049,125  4,281,810,991
- = Reverse repurchase

ESRA evers - - -

ENEESBAR [t 4,095,779,264 609,644  4,096,388,908
RINEERABRER t‘astgsm‘g;g advances to 22,269,226,869  14,951,610,202 445310,717 137,358,330 443,366,812  38,246,872,930
Hhaug = Other debt investments 1,160,000,000  3,089,292,000  2,302,000,000 1,512,792,630 87,403,710  8,151,488,340
Hittpar= Other financial assets - - - - 39,215,062 39,215,062
SRAFESIT Total financial assets 38,857,386,500  18,734,533,869  2,747,310,717 1,650,150,960 1,127,531,062 63,116,913,108
fafk: Liabilities:

El R E &R  Due to banks and other

T PRI financial institutions 3,365,185,713 143,110,350 - - 2,826,573 3,511,122,636
N Placement from banks and 5 7 11 825 879,880,403 - - 7,127,596 3,294,009,825

- other financial institutions R B e eI

RIS TERR Customer deposits 35,921,484,823 3,226,644,107 851,541,411 - 926,108,036  40,925,778,377
SEHEMWEREAT Repurchose agreements - - - - - -
RfHERE5 Bonds payable 1,045,190,360 495,391,560  1,996,778,605 - 15,754,520  3,553,115,045
Hfthemata R Other financial liabilities - - - - 107,406,858 107,406,858
ZMEER CE1)  Structured deposits (Note 1) 2,335,100,000 113,830,000 - - - 2,448,930,000
SRAESIT Total financial liabilities 45073,962,722  4,858,856,420  2,848,320,016 - 1,059,223583  53,840,362,741
PTESRAT (£2) (D,\fg't‘g’;')"e financial assets 5 553,233,205 69,645,989 - - - 5202879214
FTESRAEGE2) (D,fg't":g)ve financial liabilities 5 175 003 705 67,481,000 . - - 5242484705
FIERBEERO Net position (6,168,346,702)  13,877,842,438  (101,009,299) 1,650,150,960 68,307,479  9,326,944,876
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A1 ZENEERARZ S WCEMRITICE Z BRI,

E 20 ATRITKELENITESRAF / AFIREXEEN
BREEN R AREREEHITOM,

FIWFHFERTERREENH, WEEMNKTEZREIE
AEEITEERMA it BEERAGHEENE T

UTEEHMZERTNERT, FRATELZENTELHN
bt Nl

Note 1: The structured deposits represent the position
between the trading book and the banking book.

Note 2: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of
banking book are analysed based on the earlier of re-
pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing
date for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest
rate movement on the Bank's net profit is as follows:

L) Change in interest rate
FIZEHEIN 100 MES +100 basis points

FIFFL 100 MES - 100 basis points

2023 2022
PENE Skt 0EA X5 R AR

Impact on net profit Impact on net profit

(171,198) (1,448,343)

171,198 1,448,343

U EBBEDHEFZ-NAGREHSHA NS, B
KODREE—FRFIREN, RRA—FAETESNR
RREHRENN R TIREL BRI BB, BEFUTR

%

M FEE=TRBAR=TARE—FEREMENNEIIHIZE
PR ERIRIRTER X B B EHE N HEIH;

(2) Wean R ph L BEF R B F1T155h;
Q) BEFEatAaHEEMEN;

@) R EREHOFBSHFTESRTAUIIES AR
RIMLBo

HTFETF ERMRIE, FIXREHSEATHEFBRNLIBISERR
T RTRE S UM DTS R

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the
basis that assets and liabilities have static interest
rate risk structure. It reflects the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank's net interest income over a
one-year period. The key assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than
three months or between three months and one year
are assumed to be re-priced in the middle of the
respective time bucket.

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;
(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes;

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial
instruments are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

4. RAMME

NRMME, BRIETZZ5ETTERRENEFRSEH, HE—
AP PR B S E R — A SR RIS, EXHEK
Z2Wy (BUDLARNESRZA) FENFZGT, THHEmIA
NAMEZREIER. AT, FTMFERRITZHBIERE
RABHEDN. BElt, NFEMBOTXHNARZEMTE, U
WTFrRZ BEEMEH G EEERRNE B2, SHILEF
FAEMTZMESZRERRRIATRENE, HEIERIE, UKk
PSR Z ST IR 220,

PREBZ 7 ZERBRIRINT:

(i) URARNEITEEHTHIT N LERENSRE / SRR
5 (BETESMERS [ ERH5R) DEEARSRZHN
HEAEQRNE. MENHSRZHN, WEREREFN
HEAANMEXSZRIZWHHBRNBEQAANE 220
EFTHFNEZKEEM;

(i F1R2NBEAREHZHMERZE~ERA G H THRRE,
ENNIKENMES AANERS;

(i) REBREMIZLNERTFRMERZBHFERREEH, HAR
NEUSRHIHEGELEE. ARAGHERREZZN
EHRESAANENATER, AAERNMRZZMGRIR
ERBTRIAR, NKEERARNMEFIE;

(iv) BEREFERDBETRGIMERREESF DR, ERERNTE
BB EERKFRISEE BIRENN G ETA RN
B. BEEHRZEFRNAANEURERENIEAGESR,
FIMERN S ZEREFRORRARN B IMITERFE,

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Subject to the existence of an active market, such as an
authorised securities exchange, the market value is the
best reflection of the fair value of financial instruments.
As there is no available market value for some of the
financial assets and liabilities held and issued by the Bank,
the discounted cash flow method or other valuation
methods described below are adopted to determine
the fair value of these assets and liabilities. However, the
value determined by such methods would depend on the
amount of future cash flows, time period assumption and
discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair
value by reference to the quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available,
the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows
or quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying
amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at the
balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market
rate at the time the loans are extended shall be
determined using prevailing market rates of similar
loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans within the
portfolio are not taken into account in determining
the fair values as the impact of credit risk is recognised
separately as impairment provision which shall be
deducted from the carrying amounts and fair value.

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate
or floating rate depending on the product type. The
fair value of demand deposits and saving deposits
without specific maturity date is determined based
on the amount payable on demand. The fair value of
fixed deposits is estimated using discounted cash flows
method with the prevailing deposit rate for the remaining
tenor of the fixed deposit as the discount rate.
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IITHE QR ANERN AR LU LUT !
() EHN: TN RIERMRIIHRZ BT HIRN;
(i EEH: thEEREERARH#THE

HERBEARAAANEN —MUELR, BEXRIEENER,
WRZMEHITIRE LUBRQANMERNERE. STERENGE
BEFFEZEITENESR, FINEENEAEREMNELGE
BE, LBRIHNEEEN.

FTRIL T AMEFVNFRBRAANENGEMS. NRKH
RN GE, REPNRRIKATELAETIRITITRNA
BEMNEIE, toh, BEARNMNE. BASHK. RigFGERE
BEERzAIRENES. HtNGEIEFTeEEEZND
MEEES,

FIBFEEITAANEGRENSRFE R R=TER:
E—RR. 2ATHNE

XMEERACABRASNAGNERTZRNSHEES
o WAMLRRNER~ mEER LRSS LB
REFEREATHINEHNEERE.

FRR GHERASHAI LB HNERFINGERR

XEES NRBITERERE, MANNEZESHRELEED
7 LEENE, XHRASEBEASRFWON. BRENREH
—EHHE5ELBERAMZEZIRA RANXDRRBEH
FoEEARSNEFERRE, BoRm, "E2BFE, INOTH
/=288, REREH /=8, RRAON. FIKEHR, KHER.
S, INCEI 1 fno

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter
inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject
to verification and review processes. Other valuation
control includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according
to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Financial instruments included in this category are precious
metals whose market prices are published by Shanghai
Gold Exchange and Shanghai Futures Exchange on daily
basis.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted
by market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly investments in bonds and
negotiable certificates of deposit, loans, precious mental
borrowing and lending, foreign exchange forward/swaps,
precious metal forward/swaps, pledge-style repo, interest
rate swaps, currency swaps, commodity options, foreign
exchange options and structured products.

FZRR. AEBBUIEERNUSRSIRRANMGERR

XMEERACASETHREVEM ERNEBZRTNUES
#H, BRIFITHRANINRANER~mE BT RS R EER
MEASEIBS K ARV EERARRERD 52 B HINA IR EEI

U EBRIGR T ETDARTAFRARZ 2nMERE—BZ it
BN, AM, BFEMNASZERFRZEERRIR, &&
RNAEFTRE 2 AR ERG T2 RE A,

BMEFARKRBFENIEREUAANEITENE~MART
FREHARANETENRRTIRINT:

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-
observable inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed on
reasonable assumptions made on market conditions. The
financial instruments included in this category are mainly
precious metal options and equity options with significant
unobservable components.

All the assumptions and techniques mentioned above
provide a consistent basis for the fair value measurement
of the Bank's assets and liabilities. However, they may differ
with other institutions' practice. Therefore, the fair values
disclosed by different financial institutions may not be
entirely comparable.

The hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a continuing and discontinued basis at each balance
sheet date that were measured at fair value in the current
reporting period is set out below:

2023
RANEITEERNBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
JEET BEAUR BEFRAIME ait
S BWAE BWAE
Quoted Significant Significant non- Total
market price  observable inputs  observable inputs
(B—BR) (BZBRR) (B=BR)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
KEURARNEITEBRIES Recurring fair value assets
nERE Precious metals 2,659,155,486 - - 2,659,155,486
R EERA Financial assets held for trading - 4,976,326,490 - 4,976,326,490
TR Derivative financial assets 2,240,909,516 3,162,399,640 489 5,403,309,645
BARHEITEEEDEITANY LoqtnS ond advancesto - 498,016,028 - 498,016,028
BRSBTS R customers _ 016, 016,
e h at fair value through profit or loss
HMGAIEHE Other debt investments - 11,312,553,914 - 11,312,553,914
HAthZz = Other assets - 1,715,286,067 - 1,715,286,067
EMEFEIT Total financial assets 4,900,065,002 21,664,582,139 489  26,564,647,630
FEUARNEITENRA R Recurring fair value liabilities
. Placements from banks and i} i}
Kam other financial institutions 7,783,532,139 7,783,532,139
R SRR Financial liabilities held for trading - 2,827,366,352 - 2,827,366,352
fTESRA R Derivative financial liabilities 2,390,247,884 3,065,866,317 42,844 5,456,157,045
ERARET Total financial liabilities 2,390,247,884 13,676,764,808 42,844 16,067,055,536
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TEE, FIREEURANMEHENE—BRRNE_RRERM
AP AR BRI,

EERINN, TEX, dTHNEMBERBSNERAGHIAMN
BESHERNKEMEFTERER.

BZREXRN2ANEITE

BaE-_RRAANEITENATERLT:

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level
1 and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets
and liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

Management believes that the difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of other financial assets
and financial liabilities is not material as at the balance
sheet date.

Level 3 fair value measurement

Reconciliation of Level 3 financial instruments is as below:

2022
ARMEITEFERANRNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
SRR BEAUR BERAME &it
S BWAE BWAE
Quoted Significant Significant non- Total
market price  observable inputs  observable inputs
(B—BR) (BZBR) (B=BR)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
FEUARNEITBHIES~ Recurring fair value assets
nEE Precious metals 3,069,452,064 - - 3,069,452,064
R B ERIE = Financial assets held-for-trading - 1,806,804,540 - 1,806,804,540
TESRE Derivative financial assets 1,050,213,592 3,440,106,549 45,196 4,490,365,337
Loans and advances to
URANETEEHETEITAE  customers
R m B R TR R at fair value through profit or loss - 696,434,857 - 696,434,857
HM G Other debt investments - 8,071,625,613 - 8,071,625613
Hhzr= Other assets - 2,099,061,672 - 2,099,061,672
ERAFET Total financial assets 4,119,665,656 16,114,033,231 45,196  20,233,744,083
FHEUARNEITENRAGR Recurring fair value liabilities
IwANEE Placements from banks and - 6,151,309,352 - 6,151,309,352
other financial institutions
Rt R Financial liabilities held for trading - 3,499,822,350 - 3,499,822,350
TR R Derivative financial liabilities 950,364,255 3,597,401,230 83,241  4,547,848,726
ERAGRET Total financial liabilities 950,364,255 13,248,532,932 83,241 14,198,980,428

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

2023

TEERAER PTEEmAG ait

Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total

FYIRE Opening balance 45,196 (83,241) (38,045)

%Eﬁ*ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?&fé\%ﬁ Movement through profit or loss during (44,707) 40,397 (4,310)
It A\ the year

FRRE Closing balance 489 (42,844) (42,355)

2022

PTEERER FTEERA G ait

Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total

FYRE Opening balance 49,112 (66,322) (17,210)

f:"i,ﬁﬁ*gﬁeﬁmﬁ%%%ﬂ Movement through profit or loss during (3.916) (16,919) (20,835)
TR the year

FRREN Closing balance 45,196 (83,241) (38,045)
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BZRREMTRNBRES R

FIXRAEZRLALENERM TRETENSH I RERNESE
B SRR ERARNB I RS BANNES D RERAN. $1TE=
BRAEENERM I AN S AERTHMRSTHITEYEX
H, REAESHEASTE—ELLFENEFEMNE RS
DAV AREE=ZRRNEERATTEREUNENS
%, ERRNFERNGITEGERERHER, BRRTINAX
BESHHRNE TN E MRS AT EF A RFAAE NG
FAEERFM,

RURAMETTENERB~NERAE

FTRURANEITENER TR EEAEEFRPRBITRIA
FHENGRIL FHREE. EANREERES. UBERMAORT
ENRBETRAER UL E AP R AT 2R ERZE ™,

FRUABER A AOETT R A TRETRA RIS, KB EMAF~HT
—EZREE, ERKEMERDLARNME,

RIRETRAN B APE R A A IRz 3+ F1) S0 BRBUE R R 51K
(AR .7) o« AFEARERMBRNMEBERHHRONFEK
KA U REFEREN R EES U RRE R EREE, E
AR RAMBRI AN ES KE MMERT.

FTUMRRATNNERAGEEZSER W R EMERIETE
BB IFAFEE. REFER. ZHEWERES. BEXRITHES
IS LR H MR AT ENERA. FTAFAGREKR, &
TERAGHNKENERLQANE

U EBMBRIER TG EFRAFRTEFRAGRAANENHTERE TSR

—HYE . AT, BRTFEMHNAREIERAENG ERRIR,
Hit, SERIAFHRENAANMER—ERB LS.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 financial instruments

The Bank's level 3 financial instruments are mainly
precious metal options and equity options with significant
unobservable components. All level 3 financial instruments
are hedged back-to-back with the parent company in
Singapore, hence the fluctuation of valuation inputs by a
certain degree will have limited impact on net profit and
other comprehensive income. Therefore, although non-
observable inputs are used in level 3 valuation models, and
management's judgments and estimates on them lead to
the valuation uncertainties, the Bank believes that changes in
the judgments and estimates will not have significant impact
on the Bank's profit and equity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair
value

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair
value mainly include deposits with the central bank, due
from banks, placements with banks, reverse repurchase
financial assets and loans and advances at amortised
cost.

Except for loans and advances measured at amortised
cost, most financial assets are due within one year,
therefore their carrying amounts are close to their fair
values.

Loans and advances to customers are presented at
amortised cost plus accrued interest, and deducted by
impairment losses (Notes V.7). Since the interest rates for
loans and advances are adjusted timely upon loan prime
rate, and the net values of impaired loans reflect the
recoverable amount by deducting the impairment losses,
the carrying amounts of loans and advances are close to
their fair values.

The Bank's financial liabilities that are measured at
amortised cost mainly include due to banks and other
financial institutions, placements from banks and other
financial institutions, customer deposits, repurchase
agreements, debt securities issued and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost. As at the balance
sheet date, the carrying amounts of the Bank's financial
liabilities are close to their fair values.

The above assumptions and methodologies provide the
same basis for fair value valuation of the Bank's assets and
liabilities. However, that may differ with other financial
institutions' practice, hence the fair value disclosed by
different financial institutions may not be comparable.

+. XEAXRRRS
1. XBEB AR

TSR TRIRERTS |

M) HTHNERE;

) FTHNFRE;

() 5FTRE-FAREHNEME; ;

(4) WAITERHEEIEHIBIRET;

(5) WARITHMEBARFIMBIIRET;

6) FTHEERI;

(7) ATHERE R

(8) FITHNEBRAENMANSHIXREVINRERR;

Q) ETHXBEEARHBARNKBEREAR, UKSHEX
RRYINREM SR ;

(10) FTHEERZFENA. XRBEEARHSHEXRETHN
KERSRIER. HEIERIBE MR ;

(1) &TFAR B ERNEAMR R 20 (BFES QR FAR)
NEERIREERI;

(12) WATERHEREFINEIHNEE RV EEKE R

(13) WARTHRMEBRZMO W EERI;

(14) MTRUN BV FEEE,

2. KTRAF

A S5 1ER

Nature of business

KERTERAR RITRERARS

United Overseas Bank Limited  Banking and Financial Service

AR Bz
Registered Address

X. Related Party Transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties
The following parties are the related parties of the Bank:

(1) Parent of the Bank;

(2) Subsidiaries of the Bank;

(3) Other entities controlled by the parent of the Bank;

(4) Investors that have joint control over the Bank;

(5) Investors that have significant influence over the Bank;

(6) Joint ventures of the Bank;

(7) Associates of the Bank;

(8) Principal individual investors of the Bank and close
family members of such individuals;

(9) Key management personnel of the Bank or of the
parent and close family members of such individuals;

(10) Other entities controlled or jointly controlled
by the Bank's principal individual investors, key
management personnel or close family members of
such individuals;

(11) Joint ventures or associates of other members (including
a parent and subsidiary) of a group of which the Bank is
a member;

(12) Joint ventures or associates of an entity that has joint
control over the Bank;

(13) Joint ventures of an entity that has significant influence
over the Bank;

(14) Enterprise pension funds established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

BN L)
Shareholding

Share Capital

N #rmh 50.04 127t
Singapore SGD5,004 Million

100%
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3. FRERASFITEXRERZHEMKERTS

RIZEATHEFIN AT
Entity controlled by the parent

KRERIT (SRAL ) BRAE
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.

KIERIT (RE) BRAF
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited

KIERTT (ENERATL) BRAT
PT Bank UOB Indonesia

LEERBLBRAT
UOB Property China Co., Ltd.

BRI A EE (LE) BRAF
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd

ARERFEEBRATE
UOB Asset Management Ltd.

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc.

BE® (IR BRFEHRAR
Avatec (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

200 A%HRIT(PE)BMRAE 2023FERS

NZ=354
Nature of business

RITRERMARS
Banking and financial service

RITRERARS
Banking and financial service

RITRERARS
Banking and financial service

DAEREISHEREE. AR
B
Operating, leasing and

management for offices and
commercial facilities

RAREE, BARTEE, KASH

Consulting and investment
management

REEE
Investment management

ERAF
Holding company

BAFR. HAH . AL
BAREHE. BARS

Technique services and
consultancy; Application
software development; Other
business consultancy

AR
Registered Address

OREL FEHK
Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

ZEEH
Bangkok Thailand

ENERFAIL HIiA
Jakarta Indonesia

RE EiE
Shanghai China

FE L
Shanghai China

Fhns
Singapore
EE 44

New York USA

FE bR
Beijing China

P21 N
Registered Capital

SRALMERF 793 27T

RM0.793 Billion

ek 248.61Z7T
Baht24.86 Billion

ENERAIFLL 30,568.98

1zt
IDR3,056.898 Billion

AR 1799 1Z7%
RMB1.799 Billion

%7t 1,555 AT
USD15.55 Million

# 6,300 AT
SGD63 Million
%7t 650 AT
USDé.5 Million

#h 500 A7t
SGD5 Million

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
with during the year are as follows

EERRA
Legal
Representative

FRIE
Tan Choon Hin

Hendra
Gunawan

LAIJING WEY

HIEES
Seah Kian Wee

XA
Thio Boon Kiat

Eriberto
Resurreccion de
Guzman

=Srare

Yan Tao Tao

ZHAREATMNAF

Entity under the significant influence of the parent

@mEFEWEREE (LR ) BRAE
InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

EERFRAREERAT

InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

TEREMEESEBERRAR
Shanghai InnoVen Equity Investment
Management Private Limited

RliE (28 tULBEERAT
InnoVen (Jiashan) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

R (F8) tlLBESWEL (BREW
InnoVen (Jiashan) Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)

Rlg (HR) CUEEERAT
InnoVen (Ziyang) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

ANTUREXAES EIESESEIEGIRAT
SIP UOB-KAY HIAN Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

A S5 HER

Nature of business

A EEEIARS
Enterprise management and
consultancy services

RMAARVSRFRESTEWSE
KB RIBAL 55

Financial leasing and related
factoring business

BRI RETER, SR
HEEERS

Private equity fund
management and venture
capital fund management
services

W ER, PIVEERESE 8
FEWEIRS. MSEE. EREE
RS, mHREE

Enterprise management;
Enterprise management
consulting; Social and
economic consulting services;

Financial consulting; Information

consulting services; Market
research

EAVER, RIEEREEH. HRE
FEWRS. WHEE. 5551
RS, mHREE

Enterprise management;
Enterprise management
consulting; Social and
economic consulting services;

Financial consulting; Information

consulting services; Market
research

EWEE, PUERESE HRE
FEWRS. M558, EE518
RS, mHREE

Enterprise management;
Enterprise management
consulting; Social and
economic consulting services;

Financial consulting; Information

consulting services; Market
research

BRI RETEE, IR
HE&EIERS

Private equity fund manage-
ment and venture capital fund
management services

R

Registered Address

FE JbR
Beijing China

hE X2

Tianjin China

RE £
Shanghai China

FE #T
Zhejiang China

E T
Zhejiang China

FE )1
Sichuan China

FRE FHM
Suzhou China

AR
Registered Capital

%75 150 At
USD1.5 Million

%51000 A7
USD10 Million

%75 200 AT
UsSD2 Million

AR 1,000 A7
RMB10 Million

AR 1,000 A7
RMB10 Million

AR 1,000 AT
RMB10 Million

AR 1,000 A7
RMB10 Million

EERRA
Legal
Representative

BEBRE
Cao Ying Xue

ERE

Cao Ying Xue

EME
Cao Ying Xue

BB

Cao Ying Xue

Not applicate

BT
Cao Ying Xue

X
Liu Wei
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I Notes to Financial Statements

%S5 ME

2023 £ Year ended 31 December 2023

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

THIRBEEAR

FREEEBAR, BESTHESR. BENSREEAR,

ZHRITRBEERAREARMIAFT]
Entity under the significant influence of the Bank's key management

il (&) BIEBRAT
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited

REENFEFEHM=FLERAT
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
[RKIE (L£8) BRABEERQE

Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd

ERAESERAR

Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd.

RIEABRAF

Haw Par Corporation Limited

EEt (5#E) KERERAR
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.,
Ltd.

LIS WERAT
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd.

fmEER (KE) KRERAHE

UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

LEREBREIERAR
Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd.

RXFE (L8 BEEEERAT
Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.

BFRITROBMRAE

Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd.

FTRESEEERAR

Ping An Fund Management Company
Limited

WEE (B8 BUIERAR

Qinruijia (Shanghai) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

Key management personnel

NZE=kd5q
Nature of business

ZEERAL
Hotel management

B &R

Real estate development

BHEERE. BULBEEREAEESN
Business information consulting; Corporate
management consulting, Investment
management consulting

HREFT, BmEEO; AREBMEER
5, RIAIREER; BESERS; $—
KETEMHE

Drug production; Drug import and export;
Pharmaceutical Internet information
service. General projects: production of
traditional Chinese medicine extracts;
Health consultation services; Category |
medical device sales

(o) FiE. HEMRABETRES®;

(b) RIESEFEXNYRMRS ;

(0 KHITRK

(0) manufacturing, marketing and trading
healthcare products;

(b) providing leisure-related goods and
services;

(c) investing in properties and securities

B A. L5 AEMEE
Real estate development, operating,
leasing and management

BRIFEFREREE
Real estate development and operation

MARAMEES. 5FH. ABEBEE. Bl
WHEREE. R, B

Manufacturing of new construction
materials, sale, lease and management
of office buildings, apartment hotel,
commercial facilities

BHFEFEREE

Real estate development and operation
BEEEE, BALH. BULEREER

Hotel management, investment consulting
and corporate management consulting

B RIT - RBTFRR TR, NBEE,
Bl EE

Commercial Banks - Customer deposits,
Loans and advances to customers,
settlement and bill business, etc

BEE5E, E2HE, BT8R
Fund raising, fund sales, investment
management

B REE

Real estate development and operation

ARt

Registered Address

FE =7
Xiamen China

FE Xi#
Tianjin China
FE £
Shanghai China

FE E

Xiamen China

Hrhns

Singapore

FRE RLEB
Chengdu China

FE EE
Shanghai China

PE X2

Tianjin China

FE £
Shanghai China

FE £
Shanghai China

PE WK

Shandong China

AE R
Shenzhen China

FE L
Shanghai China

AR A
Registered Capital

%7t 3,700 ATt
USD37 Million

ARMm 113127t
RMB1.13 Billion

%75 650 Bt
USD4.5 Million

%7t 820 A7t

USD8.2 Million

#h 2.66228 127t

SGD266.228 Million

%7t 2400 AT
UsD24 Million

AR 23127t
RMB2.3 Billion

AEM 2406 127
RMB240.6 Million

AR 9191127
RMB919.1 Million

Em5hAT

USD50 Thousand
AE™ 1112.096 127t
RMB111.2096 Billion

AR® 13127
RMB1.3 Billion

ARM 201z27T
RMB?2 Billion

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor
and senior management.

EERRA
Legal

Representative

Rlfi&
Neo Soon Hup

Tan Kian Siew

BB
Wee Ee Chao

Goh Bee Leong

B

Wee Ee Lim

Chua Yu Lee

Lim Beng Teong

RIEN

Eu Zai Jie,
Jonathan

Lim Beng Teong

RIRE
Neo Soon Hup

FEMA
Xin Shu Ren

TEX
Luo Chun Feng

Lim Beng Teong

RETRBEEAREARWHNAE

Entity under the significant influence of the Bank's key management

REFIKE =
Singapore Chamber of Commerce and
Industry in China

UIC Asian Computer Services Pte Ltd.

Nz 35
Nature of business

EHPIHBEZ RN, NRRIEHRS
To promote economic and trade
exchanges between China and
Singapore, provide services to members

BB ERH L HE
Wholesale sales of computer hardware
and auxiliary equipment

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AR

Registered Address

FRE bR
Beijing China

FonsE

Singapore

AR
Registered Capital

Not applicable

#1200 A7
SGD2 Million

EERRA
Legal
Representative

EFFT
Ong Tze Guan

Not applicable
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2023 £ [E Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

4 KTEXREAZEERS

FITESXRKAZBEERZ R

FTEXKAZEETBRZEH

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

Main transactions amount between the Bank and related

RIEITRAER Loans and advances to customers
Due from and placements

FIARRGRIR with banks and other financial
institutions

TSR Derivative financial assets

HAh AR R Other debt investments

fERANRE™ Right-of-use assets

xR pus e rapacements o ks

Hithzsr= Other assets

TR U TR Customer deposits

T ERf G Derivative financial liabilities

izl b Lease liabilities

Hitta i Other liabilities

parties
Main transactions balance between the Bank and related
parties 2023 2022
FEUWN Interest income 75,022,111 54,295,000
2023 2022 FMEXE Interest expense 132,532,119 117,391,534
308,290,065 320447020 FRERASEN Fee and commission income 16,696,248 30,542,393
764,962,103 2,437,430,338 FEoENASIH Fee and commission expense 7,196,607 6,263,894
370,996,781 189,756,301 ARMEZE D \(/JciiLTe/(bSS) from changes i foir (254,976,875) 90,033,076
89,864,190 49,901,588 LR Foreign exchange gain 52,618,953 20,157,099
73,668,170 165,083 etk Investment income/(loss) 452,559,993 (1,434,128,685)
e EEsS General and administrative 148,834,364 118,574,891

9,510,716,500

8,160,340,582

expenses

16,832,013 37,000,340 . ) . e . _
KITSREFAIREHEAEFLRER ST 3,379,375 7T
4,046,474,292 4,027,710,521 (2022 £ 2,837,943 7T) »
372,620,357 367,295,200
71,514,463 167,019
261,899,229 379,864,411

204  AEHRIT(PE)BMRAE 2023FERS

The amount of software development transactions
between the Bank and related parties during the reporting

period was RMB3,379,375 (2022: RMB2,837,943).
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2023 £ [E Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

TTSXREA ZBTF A ARERARIMTESRTRSHIBXER

Main derivatives notional amount between the Bank and
related parties

INOREAELY FX forward
INCIEEREH FX swaps
SNCHAINEL FX options
FIZ=BEREL Interest rate swaps
AmEREY Commodity swaps
BEELGEE)] Commodity options
EMEEBHINEY Equity options
REREREHEN Precious metal swaps
EREIREHN Credit swaps

2023 2022
1,175,098,512 2,246,305,160
10,274,024,507 5197,200,054
1,869,150,059 2,134,637,296
9,970,231,798 4,427,062,813

1,245,475,092 1,753,195,260

9,561,645 30,644,240
413,171,325 392,449,519
4,574,906,071 2,680,140,094
28,354,173 27,881,383

ITEXRETS 2B T E= AR B RINEIERT

Main off-balance commitments between the Bank and
related parties

2023 2022
{REK Letter of guarantee 13,442,345 22,034,558
(S63&E Credit commitments 242,710 4,516
ZEMHEERE Operating lease commitments - 114,972,472

FT5 ERXEK S #HITHRZRIBEEBHE RS 5FHT, U
—RRRBNIEAENEM, FHIREDISEFHIT

KERTT (PE) BRLAE 2023FERS

The Bank's transactions with the above-mentioned related
parties are conducted in accordance with normal
commercial transaction conditions, based on general
transaction prices, and in accordance with normal business
procedures.

TMTEXRBEEEARNRS
I XBREEARFTENNT:

Main transactions between the Bank and key management
personnels

Key management personnel's salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2023 2022
BRI MEMEEREF Employee salaries and other short- 111,616,737 96,300,377
term incentives
FTERITRINZ S Transactions between the Bank and the annuity

FTEEFRUNENFEEESRIEBRMRISZIN, FERR
EHEMKEXZZo

+—. AEARKREESEM

BEAMSHREMERBALE, STREEMBERTIFRERR
BHNERAFARERBREIL

+. LHEREUE
ETLRBBNLSTER G, USSR EEZIIRER,

+=. WSikERZALHE
AMSHRVEATEERT 2024 F 4 5 9 BRI,

No transactions other than normal contribution to the
annuity were conducted between the Bank and the
annuity established by the Bank.

Xl. Post Balance Sheet Events

As at the date on which the financial statements are
approved, there is no material post balance sheet event
that needs to be disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

Xll. Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to
conform to the current year's presentation.

Xlll. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 April 2024.
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